*kkk

*kkk

10

Public Document Pack
SOUTHEND-ON-SEA CITY COUNCIL

Place Scrutiny Committee
Date: Monday, 13th March, 2023
Time: 6.30 pm
Place: Jubilee Room (Committee Room 1), Civic Suite

Contact: Tim Row - Principal Democratic Services Officer
Email: committeesection@southend.gov.uk

AGENDA

Chair's Announcement

Apologies for Absence

Declarations of Interest

Questions from Members of the Public

Minutes of the meeting held on Monday, 30th January, 2023

PART | ITEMS CALLED-IN/REFERRED DIRECT BY CABINET HELD ON
TUESDAY 21ST FEBRUARY 2023

Air Quality Action Plan 2022-2027 (Pages 9 - 104)
Minute No. 722 (Cabinet Book 2, Agenda Item No. 12 refers)
Called-in By Councillors Cowdrey & Woodley

Proposed Community Infrastructure Levy (Pages 105 - 160)
Minute No. 723 (Cabinet Book 2, Agenda Item No. 13)
Called-in by Councillors Cowdrey and Woodley

PART | ITEMS CALLED-IN/REFERRED DIRECT BY CABINET COMMITTEE

HELD ON 20TH FEBRUARY 2023

Traffic Regulation Orders - Junction Protection (Pages 161 - 166)
Minute No. 706 (Cabinet Committee Agenda Item No. 5 refers)
Called-in by Councillors Cowdrey and Woodley

School Streets (West Leigh School - Ronald Hill Grove) (Pages 167 - 172)
Minute No. 707 (Cabinet Committee Agenda ltem No. 6 refers)
Called-in by Councillors Cowdrey and Woodley

Prittle Brook Greenway TRO (Traffic Regulation Order) (Pages 173 - 180)
Minute No. 709 (Cabinet Committee Agenda Item No. 8 refers)
Called-in by Councillors Cowdrey and Woodley



¥+ ITEMS CALLED-IN FROM THE FORWARD PLAN

None

***  ITEMS FOR PRE-CABINET SCRUTINY

None

****  OTHER SCRUTINY ITEMS

11 In-depth Scrutiny Project 2022/23 - Preparing Southend for the EV
Revolution - Update

TO: The Chair & Members of Place Scrutiny Committee:

Councillor J Courtenay (Chair),

Councillors J Warren (Vice-Chair), M Berry, M Borton, K Buck, S Buckley, M Davidson,
M Dent, L Hyde, D Jarvis, A Jones, M Kelly, J Moyies, A Thompson, N Ward, P Wexham
and R Woodley



SOUTHEND-ON-SEA CITY COUNCIL

Meeting of Place Scrutiny Committee

Date: Monday, 30th January, 2023
Place: Jubilee Room - Civic Suite

Present: Councillor J Courtenay (Chair)

Councillors J Warren (Vice-Chair), M Berry, M Borton, K Buck,

S Buckley, T Cox*, M Davidson, M Dent, L Hyde, A Jones, M Kelly,
J Moyies, A Thompson, P Wexham and R Woodley

(*Substitute in accordance with Council Procedure Rule 31.)

In Attendance: Councillors S George, P Collins, C Mulroney, M Terry, S Wakefield

(Cabinet Members) and K Evans
J Burr, A Richards, G Gilbert, N Hoskins, P Rabbitts, K Waters and
T Row

Start/End Time: 6.30 pm - 11.00 pm

638

639

Apologies for Absence

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Jarvis (substitute: Councillor
Cox) and Councillor Ward (no substitute).

Declarations of Interest
The following interests were declared at the meeting:

(i) Councillors Collins, George, Mulroney, Terry and Wakefield (Cabinet Members)
- Interest in the items referred direct; attended pursuant to the dispensation
agreed at Council on 19 July 2012, under S.33 of the Localism Act 2011;

(i) Councillor Berry — Minute No. 643 (Use of Section 106 Contributions) —
Southend City Council appointed board member of Southend on Sea Forum
Management Ltd. which was mentioned during the debate on the basis that the
Forum/Focal Point Gallery had submitted the planning application;

(iii) Councillor Borton — Minute No. 644 (Grassland Management Policy) —
Trustlinks was one of the charities supported by her during her Mayoral year
(2021-22) which was mentioned during the debate;

(iv) Councillor Buck — Minute No. 644 (Grassland Management Policy) — Allotment
holder;

(v) Councillor Buck — Minute No. 645 (Thorpe 20mph Neighbourhood) — Has had
significant levels of contact from local residents on this matter;

(vi) Councillor Dent — Minute No. 645 (Thorpe 20mph Neighbourhood) — Has had
contact from multiple local residents on this matter;



640

641

642

(vii) Councillor K Evans — Minute No. 644 (Grassland Management Policy) — Chair
of Leigh Town Council and son works for Trustlinks both of which were mentioned
during the debate;

(viii) Councillor Hyde — Minute No. 644 (Grassland Management Policy) —
Allotment holder;

(ix) Councillor A Jones — Minute No.640 (Questions from Members of the Public) —
Son works in the Council’s Strategic Transport Team which was mentioned;

(x) Councillor A Jones — Minute No. 644 (Grassland Management Policy) —
Mention of bus stop greening, son works in the Council’s Strategic Transport
Team and antisocial behaviour in Toledo Road was mentioned in the debate,
which is near to her property;

(xi) Councillor Mulroney — Minute No. 646 (Thorpe 20mph Neighbourhood) —
Mention of Leigh 20mph scheme which is located where she lives;

(xii) Councillor Thompson — Minute No. 643 (Use of Section 106 Contributions) —
Southend City Council appointed board member of Southend on Sea Forum
Management Ltd. which was mentioned during the debate on the basis that the
Forum/Focal Point Gallery had submitted the planning application;

(xiii) Councillor Warren — Minute No. 644 (Grassland Management Policy) —
Allotment holder; and

(xiv) Councillor Woodley — Minute No. 646 (Thorpe 20mph Neighbourhood) —
Member of BERA which was mentioned during the debate.

Questions from Members of the Public

The Committee noted the responses of the Cabinet Member for Public Protection
and the Cabinet Member for Highways, Transport & Parking to two questions from
by Mr David Webb.

Minutes of the Special Meeting held on Thursday, 10th November, 2022

Resolved:-

That the Minutes of the special meeting held on Thursday, 101" November 2022
be received, confirmed as a correct record and signed.

Minutes of the Meeting held on Monday, 28th November, 2022

Resolved:-

That the Minutes of the meeting held on Monday, 28" November 2022 be
received, confirmed as a correct record and signed.



643

644

Use of Section 106 Contributions

The Committee considered Minute No. 616 of Cabinet held on 121" January, 2023,
which had been called-in to scrutiny, together with the report of the Executive
Director (Growth & Housing) setting out the legality and wider implications of the
motion of the Opposition Councillors (“Opposition Business”), referred to Cabinet
by the Council on held on 15th December 2022.

The Committee discussed the matter in some detail and asked a number of
questions which the Cabinet Member for Environment, Culture and Tourism and
the Director of Planning responded to.

Resolved:-

1. That the matter be referred back to Cabinet for reconsideration on the basis that
the report considered by Cabinet does not appear to address the points included
in the motion in respect of the Development Control Committee being used to as a
means implement Council policy and, in particular, the consultation and decisions
should have been taken before the matter was referred to Development Control
Committee for determination.

2. That, in accordance with Council Procedure Rule 39.2, the matter be referred
to full Council for consideration.

Note: This is an Executive Function
Cabinet Member: Cllr Mulroney

Grassland Management Policy

The Committee considered Minute No. 621 of Cabinet held on 12th January 2023,
which had been called-in to scrutiny, together with the report of the Executive
Director (Neighbourhoods and Environment) presenting the Grassland
Management Strategy which provides a framework for Southend-on-Sea City
Council to improve the overall status and reduce losses in the diversity of
pollinator species within the City.

The Committee discussed the matter in some detail and asked a number of
questions that were responded to by the Cabinet Member for Environment,
Culture & Planning and the Council’'s Head of Parks and Open Spaces. The
Committee felt there were a number of anomalies in the report, particularly in
respect of cost savings and the lack of consultation with Ward Councillors and
Residents’ Associations regarding the identification of appropriate areas prior to
any decision being taken.

Resolved:-
1. That the matter be referred back to Cabinet for reconsideration.

2. That, in accordance with Council Procedure Rule 39.2, the matter be referred
to full Council for consideration.




645

646

Note: This is an Executive Function
Cabinet Member: Clir Mulroney

Southchurch Park Lake - Removal of Post and Rail

The Committee considered Minute No, 624 of Cabinet held on 12t January 2023,
which had been called-in to scrutiny, together with the report of Executive Director
(Neighbourhoods and Environment) seeking approval to replace small sections of
the shin rail around the eastern section of the lake in Southchurch Park based on
an agreed risk assessment.

The Committee discussed the matter in some detail and asked a number of
questions that were responded to by the Cabinet Member for Environment,
Culture & Planning and the Council’s Head of Parks and Open Spaces.

In response to questions regarding the breakdown of the cost of replacing the
fencing in terms of the labour and material costs, the Cabinet Member for
Environment, Culture and Tourism undertook to circulate the details after the
meeting.

In response to questions regarding the possibility of allocating £15,000 capital
funding to the scheme, the Cabinet Member undertook to speak with the
Executive Director (Finance & Resources) on this matter.

Resolved:-

That the matter be referred back to Cabinet for reconsideration to enable
discussions between the Cabinet Member and the Executive Director (Finance &
Resources) to take place on the possibility of allocating capital funding to enable
the fencing to be installed around the lake.

Note: This is an Executive Function
Cabinet Member: Clir Mulroney

Thorpe 20mph Neighbourhood

The Committee considered Minute No. 593 of Cabinet Committee held on 215t
December 2022, which had been called-in for scrutiny, together with the report of
the Executive Director (Neighbourhoods & Environment) that presented the results
of the public consultation in respect of 20mph scheme proposals in Thorpe Ward.

Resolved:-
That the following decision of Cabinet Committee be noted:

“That neither Option A or B as set out in the public consultation be taken forward
for construction at this time.”

Note: This is an Executive function
Cabinet Member: Clir Wakefield.



647

648

In-depth Scrutiny Project - Preparing Southend for the EV Revolution -
Update

The Committee noted an oral update on the progress that had been made in
respect of the in-depth scrutiny project entitled “Preparing Southend for the EV
Revolution.”

Resolved:-

That the report be noted.

This is a Scrutiny function.

Council Procedure Rule 44.2

During consideration of Minute No. 645 (Southchurch Park Lake — Removal of
Post and Rail) and upon the hour of 10.00pm having been reached, the
Committee:

Resolved:-

That, in accordance with Council Procedure Rule 44.2, all remaining items of
business be dealt with at the meeting.

Chair:




This page is intentionally left blank



Southend-on-Sea City Council

nda
Report of the Interim Executive Director for | No.
Neighbourhoods and Environment — John Burr
To
Cabinet
On

21 February 2023

Report prepared by: Elizabeth Georgeou, Head of Regulatory

Services

Adoption of Air Quality Action Plan 2023-2027
Cabinet Member: Councillor Mulroney

Part 1

1.1

3.2

Purpose of Report

To seek adoption by Cabinet of the Air Quality Action Plan (AQAP) 2023-2027
(Appendix 1), detailing targeted measures to try to improve air quality within Air
Quality Management Area (AQMA) 2 (Appendix 2) and by extension applying
the measures to AQMA 1 (Appendix 3) and the rest of the City of Southend.
The adoption of AQAP2 has been developed to meet the Council’s statutory
duty to develop an Air Quality Action Plan following the declaration of AQMAZ2.

Recommendations

To approve and adopt the Air Quality Action Plan 2023-2027 (Appendix 1)
for the Air Quality Management Area 2 (Appendix 2) Air Quality
Management Area 1 (Appendix 3) and across the City of Southend-on-Sea.

Background

Part IV of the Environment Act 1995 (‘the Act’) introduced the system of Local
Air Quality Management (LAQM), placing a duty on local authorities to
periodically review and assess the air quality within their areas. The provisions
in Part IV of the Act are largely enabling and give local authorities the flexibility
to take forward local policies to suit local needs. Local circumstances will also
determine the content of air quality strategies, the designation of AQMAs and
the content of AQAPs.

The air quality objectives for the protection of human health were set by Air
Quality Directives 2008/50/EC and 2004/107/EC. These were transposed into
UK law via the Air Quality Standards Regulations 2000.

Adoption of Air Quality Action Plan 2023- Page 1 of 5

2027

9



3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

3.8

3.9

3.11

Section 83(1) of ‘the Act’ states that a local authority must designate AQMAs for
those parts of the local authorities’ area where air quality objectives (AQOs) are
unlikely to be met.

Section 83(A) of ‘the Act’ states that where an AQMA is designated, a local
authority shall prepare an AQAP to demonstrate how the authority intends to
achieve and maintain the air quality objectives in the AQMA. Local authorities
should also have regard of the statutory guidance published by the Department
of Environment, Feed and Rural Affairs (DEFRA)

The Government has developed strategies which aim to improve the
environment and air quality on a national basis:

e The Industrial Strategy which has been replaced by the Build Back Better:
our plan for growth, March 2021;

e The Clean Growth Strategy October 2017;

e A Green Future: Our 25 Year Plan to Improve the Environment 2018;

e Clean Air Strategy 2019.

On a local level, guidance is provided to local authorities through Local Air
Quality Management (LAQM) Policy Guidance (PG22) and LAQM Technical
Guidance (TG22). The aim of which is to shift towards evidence-based action
planning for the benefit of public health and wellbeing.

The AQMA1 and AQMA2 in Southend-on-Sea were declared because the
annual objective for Nitrogen Dioxide (NO,) had been exceeded.

Where there are exceedances in the air quality objectives, the Council must
declare an AQMA. Once declared, the Council is then required to develop an
AQAP which must be accepted by DEFRA as being adequate to bring the
AQMA into compliance.

The UK Plan for Tackling Roadside Nitrogen Dioxide Concentrations 2017
outlines measures that are in place to improve air quality nationally and
recognises the local nature of air quality requires action at a local level, with
local authorities having a leading role.

Regulatory Services will continue to ensure that air quality is monitored after the
implementation of the AQAP 2023-2027 and will report regularly on progress
against it through the Air Quality Steering Group locally and the Annual Status
Report to DEFRA.

The UK Plan for Tackling Roadside Nitrogen Dioxide Concentrations 2017
states ‘that air pollution predominantly affects those living in our major towns
and cities due to the concentration of vehicles and other sources of pollution.
This continues to have an unnecessary and avoidable impact of people’s health,
particularly amongst the elderly, people with pre-existing lung and heart
conditions, the young, and those on lower incomes.

The Air Quality “A Briefing for Directors of Public Health March 2017 reports
that both long and short-term exposure to air pollution is known to adversely
affect health. Studies have shown that long-term exposure (over several years)
reduced life-expectancy, mainly due to increased risk of mortality from
cardiovascular and respiratory causes and from lung cancer. The Joint
Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA) 2019, reported that 6 in 100 deaths locally
in Southend were attributable to poor air quality.

Adoption of Air Quality Action Plan 2023- Page 2 of 5

2027

10




3.13 The main source of air pollution in the City is road traffic emissions from major
roads, notably the A127, A13 and A1159. Other pollution sources including
commercial, industrial, and domestic sources also contribute to background
pollutant concentrations.

3.14 Nationally the most immediate air quality challenge is tackling the exceedances
of nitrogen dioxide (NO,) concentrations around roads.

3.15 The Action Plan 2023-27 is an up-dated version of the AQAP, which was
adopted in July 2018, and includes some specific targeted actions for the
AQMA2.

3.16 The purpose of AQAPs is to develop measures that will provide the necessary
emissions reductions to achieve the air quality objectives.

4, Other Options
None.

The Local Authority has a statutory duty to adopt an AQAP where an AQMA has
been declared. Cabinet may choose to amend the proposed AQAP [in
accordance with section 83 (6) of the Act].

5. Reasons for Recommendation

The Council has a statutory duty to put in measures to improve local air quality
through the development and implementation of an AQAP, to reduce the impact
on the health of those living and working within Southend-on-Sea City Council
area.

6. Corporate Implications
6.1  Contribution to the Southend 2050 Road Map

6.1.1 The action plan aligns with and reflects the Southend 2050 objectives and has
been divided into the following 6 key priorities:

Road Transport

Land Use Planning

Connected and Smart City

Public Health and Raising Awareness

Climate Resilience and Sustainable Innovation
Air Quality Monitoring

6.2 Environmental Impact

6.2.1 Air pollutants from transport include nitrogen oxides and fine particles. These
can have a damaging impact on the health of fauna and flora. The actions in
the AQAP do not directly reduce carbon emissions however, none of the
proposed actions have a detrimental impact on the City’s carbon footprint.
Many of the actions that mitigate the impact of air pollution also improve climate
resilience. The AQAP positively supports the Council’'s Corporate Climate
Change Programme and the climate resilience focus area of the Green City
Action Plan.

6.2.2 The implementation of the AQAP to improve air quality will have a positive impact
on vulnerable groups, providing a clear focus for the actions outlined in the
AQAP. There is no known negative impact to the priorities of the Council.

Adoption of Air Quality Action Plan 2023- Page 3 of 5

2027
11



6.3
6.3.1

Financial Implications

The AQAP consists of existing initiatives, as detailed in AQAP, as well as new
actions. Implementation of most of these actions will be met by existing budgets,
consideration having already been given to the funding of air quality initiatives.
Those actions identified as new, will be met through securing new (National)
funding streams, and again consideration will be given when making grant
applications to improvements to air quality.

6.4 Legal Implications
6.4.1 Under Part IV of the Environment Act 1995 (as amended by the Environment Act
2021), the Council has a statutory duty to review air quality in the City and if
required designate an AQMA and adopt an AQAP in line with DEFRA LAQM
Policy Guidance (PG22) and DEFRA LAQM Technical Guidance (TG22)to try to
improve air quality with the AQMA.
6.5 People Implications
6.5.1 There are no People implications associated with this report.
6.6 Property Implications
6.6.1 There are no Property Implications associated with this report.
6.7 Consultation
6.7.1 Stakeholder consultation is a fundamental aspect of Local Air Quality
Management, and the requirements are set out at paragraph 1 Schedule 11 of
the Act.
6.7.2 The consultation took place between 7 May and 12 August 2021
o The appropriate relevant bodies were consulted in line with the
requirements listed above.
o Public opinion via the Southend-on-Sea City Council’s website
o Letters were distributed directly to households within the AQMA2
6.7.3 The response to the consultation is appended to the AQAP 2023-27 as
Appendix 4.
6.8 Equalities and Diversity Implications
6.8.1 The Equalities Assessment did not identify any negative effect on any of the
protected groups.
6.9 Risk Assessment
6.9.1 The DEFRA Policy Guidance 22 at Section 5.3 states that the Local Authority
should produce their AQAP within 18 months of an AQMA being declared.
Adoption of Air Quality Action Plan 2023- Page 4 of 5

2027

12



AQMA2 was declared on 10 November 2020. To discharge the Council’s
statutory duty to manage local air quality and the health risks associated with
poor air quality an AQAP should be adopted as quickly as possible.

6.10 Value for Money

6.10.1 Measures contained within the AQAP will be fully costed in line with financial
requirements and available resources.

6.11 Community Safety Implications
6.11.1 There are no Community Safety implications associated with this report.

7. Background Papers:

Defra technical Guidance (TG22).

Air Quality Action Plan 2018

Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA) Summary Report 2019
Defa Policy Guidance (PG22)

Air Quality - A Briefing for Directors of Public Health March 2

8. Appendices

o Appendix 1 Air Quality Action Plan 2023-2027
o Appendix 2 AQMA (Southend on Sea Borough Council) No. 2 Order
o Appendix 3 AQMA (Southend on Sea Borough Council) No. 1 Order
o Appendix 4 Consultation responses

Adoption of Air Quality Action Plan 2023- Page 5 of 5

2027

13



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 1

ss Southend-on-Sea
As City Council
Southend-on-Sea City Council

Air Quality Action Plan

In fulfilment of Part IV of the Environment Act 1995
Local Air Quality Management

December 2022

Southend-on-Sea City Council Air Quality Action Plan (2023-2027)
15

Bureau Veritas | C2 - Internal



Information

Local Authority Officer

Southend-on-Sea City Council Details

Southend-on-Sea City Council

Elizabeth Georgeou

Department Regulatory Services
Civic Centre,
Victoria Avenue,
Address Southend-on-Sea,
Essex,
SS2 6ER
E-mail airquality@southend.gov.uk

Report Reference Number AQAP_AQMA 2
Date December 2022

Bureau Veritas | C2 - Internal

16

Southend-on-Sea City Council Air Quality Action Plan (2023-2027)



mailto:airquality@southend.gov.uk

Southend-on-Sea City Council

Executive Summary

This Air Quality Action Plan (AQAP) has been produced as part of our statutory duties
required by the Local Air Quality Management (LAQM) framework. It outlines the action

we will take to improve air quality in Southend-on-Sea between 2023-2027.

The purpose of this action plan is to address the air quality concerns associated with
the Air Quality Management Area (AQMA) along Victoria Avenue and the junctions of
East Street, West Street, Priory Crescent and Fairfax Drive. The AQMA 2 Victoria
Avenue was declared in 2020 for exceedances of the annual mean limit for nitrogen

dioxide (NOz2); NO2 emissions in this area are predominantly derived from road traffic.

Air pollution is associated with a number of adverse health impacts. It is recognised as
a contributing factor in the onset of heart disease and cancer. Additionally, air pollution
particularly affects the most vulnerable in society: children and older people, and those
with heart and lung conditions. There is also often a strong correlation with equalities

issues because areas with poor air quality are also often the less affluent areas™2.

The annual health cost to society of the impacts of particulate matter alone in the UK
is estimated to be around £16 billion3. Southend-on-Sea City Council is committed to
reducing the exposure of people in Southend-on-Sea to poor air quality in order to

improve health.

This action plan primarily aims to tackle the main causes of poor air quality within
Southend-on-Sea, namely emissions from combustion engines, particularly diesel

vehicles. We have developed actions that can be considered under various topics:

e Promoting alternatives to private vehicle use;

e Policy guidance and development control,

+ Environmental equity, air quality, socioeconomic status and respiratory health, 2010
2 Air quality and social deprivation in the UK: an environmental inequalities analysis, 2006

s Defra. Abatement cost guidance for valuing changes in air quality, May 2013

Southend-on-Sea City Council Air Quality Action Plan (2023-2027)

Bureau Veritas | C2 - Internal



Southend-on-Sea City Council
e Promoting low emission transport;
¢ Public information;
e Transport planning and infrastructure;
e Traffic management; and

e Vehicle fleet efficiency.

Southend-on-Sea City Council have identified a number of priorities to help achieve
these actions, which are aligned with the corporate Southend 2050 vision, containing
themes of “Pride and Joy”, “Safe and Well”, “Active and Involved”, “Opportunity and

Prosperity”, and “Connected and Smart”. These priorities involve the following:

¢ Promoting Public Health and Wellbeing: Providing information and guidance
so that people are educated and understand the impacts of poor air quality, as

well as actions they can take to bring about improvements in air quality.

¢ Reducing the Need to Travel: Supporting sustainable development/initiatives

that support the local economy, services and facilities.

e Active Travel, Public Transport and Low Emission Vehicles: Encouraging
people to use their private vehicle less by improving infrastructure to promote
walking/cycling, supporting sustainable public transport, car clubs, and travel
plans. Improvements are also to be made to electrical vehicle (EV) charging

infrastructure, to encourage the uptake of EVs.

¢ Local Planning Policy and Development Management: Ensure that any new
development does not have an adverse negative impact on air pollution and,

where this is unavoidable, adequate mitigation measures must be provided.

e Transport Planning and Traffic Management: Work with partners to mitigate

existing areas of traffic and transport.

In this AQAP we outline how we plan to effectively tackle air quality issues within our
control. However, we recognise that there are a large number of air quality policy areas
that are outside of our influence (such as vehicle emissions standards agreed in
Europe), but for which we may have useful evidence, and so we will continue to work
with regional and central government on policies and issues that are beyond the direct

influence of Southend-on-Sea City Council.

Southend-on-Sea City Council Air Quality Actien Plan (2023-2027) i

Bureau Veritas | C2 - Internal



Southend-on-Sea City Council

Responsibilities and Commitment

This AQAP was prepared by Bureau Veritas and the Regulatory Services department
of Southend-on-Sea City Council, with the support and agreement of the following

officers and departments:
¢ Neil Hoskins (Head of Civil Engineering)
e Sharon Harrington (Head of Traffic, Asset Management & Highways Network)
e Denise Wenn (Health Improvement Practitioner)

¢ Jo Gay (Interim Head of Waste and Climate Change)

This AQAP has been approved by:
e ClIr Carole Mulroney (Cabinet Member Environment, Culture and Tourism)

¢ John Burr (Executive Director for Neighbourhoods and Environment)

This AQAP has been signed off by a Director of Public Health.

This AQAP will be subject to an annual review, appraisal of progress and The Air
Quality Steering Group. Progress each year will be reported in the Annual Status
Reports (ASRs) produced by Southend-on-Sea City Council, as part of our statutory
LAQM duties.

If you have any comments on this AQAP please send them to Elizabeth Georgeou at:
Southend-on-Sea City Council

Civic Centre, Victoria Avenue, Southend-on-Sea, Essex SS2 6ER

airquality@southend.gov.uk

Southend-on-Sea City Council Air Quality Action Plan (2023-2027) i

Bureau Veritas | C2 - Internal


mailto:airquality@southend.gov.uk

Southend-on-Sea City Council

Table of Contents

EXECUtiVe SUMMAIY ...cccciiiiiiieeeeeemmmnirirs s ssssss s
Responsibilities and Commitment ... i

1 INtrodUCEioN ... ———— 1
2 Summary of Current Air Quality in Southend-on-Sea City Council.............. 2
2.1 NOz2Concentrations within Southend-on-Sea ..............ccoooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeee, 2
3 Southend-on-Sea City Council’s Air Quality Priorities ............coeeeiiiiiiiiinnnees 5
3.1 Public Health Context...........ccooiiiiiii e 5
3.2  Planning and Policy CONEXt .............uuuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiie e 7
3.2.1 Association of South Essex Local Authorities..............ocoooiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeen. 8
3.2.2 Southend-on-Sea City Council Local Plan.............ccccoooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeee, 8
3.2.3 Southend-on-Sea City Council Local Transport Plan ............ccccvvviiinnnnnnn. 9
3.2.4 Transport East Transport Strategy ..........eeeeiiiiiiiiiieeeeeee 9
3.2.5 Land Use Planning — Air Quality Assessments ..............cccocciiiiiiiiieenen. 10
3.2.6 Green City Action Plan ... 10
3.2.7 Financial Air Quality Improvement Schemes..............oooooiiiiiiiiiiiiieeee, 11
3.2.8 Planning Development (‘Better Southend’).............ccooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieee 12
3.2.9 Additional POlICIES.........cooiiiii e 14
4 Source Apportionment............ccoiiiiiirieee i ———————————— 15
4.1 Required Reduction in EMISSIONS ..........oouuiiiiiiiiiiii e 18

5 Key Priorities. ... i 20
5.1 Priority 1 — Road TranSport .............uuuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieicaee e 20
5.2  Priority 2 — Land Use Planning.............ceeeiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeee 20
5.3  Priority 3 — Connected & Smart City.........ccoviviiiiiiiiiiiiee e 21
5.4  Priority 4 — Public Health & Raising Awareness.............ccccceiciiiviiiiiinieeeeen. 21
5.5  Priority 5 — Climate Resilience & Sustainable Innovation............................ 22
5.6  Priority 6 — Air Quality Monitoring ...........ccoieeiiiiiiie e 22
Southend-on-Sea City Council Air Quality Actien Plan (2023-2027) i

Bureau Veritas | C2 - Internal



Southend-on-Sea City Council

6 Development and Implementation of Southend-on-Sea City Council’s

O 23
6.1 Consultation and Stakeholder Engagement..............ccccccoiiiiiiiiiiniiiiiieeenn. 23
6.2  StEEIMNNG GrOUP ....cci i i e ettt e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e eeeanaaans 24

A - Y@ 1 S |1 (== L= T T 25

Appendix A: Response to Consultation ... 32

Appendix B: Reasons for Not Pursuing Action Plan Measures ...........ccccccuvceeens 33

(€ Lo =13 TV o 0 1= g 0 =N 34

ReferenCes ... —————————————— 35

List of Tables

Table 2.1 — Monitored NO2 Concentrations within Southend-on-Sea ...............cc.ceee... 3

Table 4.1 — NOx Reduction Required within AQMA 2 Victoria Avenue........................ 19

Table 6.1 — Consultation Undertaken by Southend-on-Sea City Council .................. 23

Table 7.1 — Air Quality Action Plan Measures..............ueeeeiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeiveeee 26

Table B.1 — Action Plan Measures Not Pursued and the Reasons for that Decision ..33

List of Figures

Figure 1.1 — AQMA 2 VictOria AVENUE .........ccoeii ittt 1
Figure 4.1 — Source Apportionment of NOx (All Receptors) ... 16
Figure 4.2 — Source Apportionment of NOx (NO2 > 40 ug/m3 & Maximum NOx)......... 17
Southend-on-Sea City Council Air Quatity Action Plan (2023-2027) iv

Bureau Veritas | C2 - Internal



Southend-on-Sea City Council

1 Introduction

1.1

1.2

1.3

This report outlines the actions that Southend-on-Sea City Council will deliver
between 2023-2027 in order to reduce concentrations of air pollutants and
exposure to air pollution; thereby positively impacting on the health and quality
of life of residents and visitors to Southend-on-Sea. It has been developed in
recognition of the legal requirement on the local authority to work towards Air
Quality Strategy (AQS) objectives under Part IV of the Environment Act 1995
and relevant regulations made under that part and to meet the requirements of

the Local Air Quality Management (LAQM) statutory process.

It should be noted that the Environment Act 1995 has recently been amended
(2021). The Environment Act 2021 establishes a legally binding duty on
government to bring forward at least two new air quality targets in secondary
legislation by 31 October 2022. New legally binding targets are to be set for
PMzs. This Plan will be reviewed every five years at the latest and progress on
measures set out within this Plan will be reported on annually within Southend-

on-Sea City Council’s air quality Annual Status Report (ASR).

The main focus of this action plan is on reducing concentrations of NOz2in AQMA

2 Victoria Avenue (illustrated in Figure 1.1 below). However, the measures will

also help reduce NO2 across wider areas of Southend-on-Sea and in AQMA 1

The Bell Junction.

Figure 1.1 — AQMA 2 Victoria Avenue

22


https://www.southend.gov.uk/protecting-environment-emergencies/air-quality/3
https://www.southend.gov.uk/protecting-environment-emergencies/air-quality/3
https://www.southend.gov.uk/protecting-environment-emergencies/air-quality/2
https://www.southend.gov.uk/protecting-environment-emergencies/air-quality/2

TEL

-

Legend

B

Education

Farilitv.

3 AQMA Boundary
LI |

LI =

S

o« Education

Facility ¥ Q_Ng
e X

R/ i bemt™
o
i w2\ Prittlewell
52 «5% /
et \J‘\Wc’w\Ih )

Southend-on-Sea City Council Air Quality Action Plan (2023-2027)

Bureau Veritas | C2 - Internal

23



Southend-on-Sea City Council

2 Summary of Current Air Quality in

2.1

2.2

2.3

24

Southend-on-Sea City Council

Southend-on-Sea is located in south-east Essex, 42 miles from London, and has
a population of 180,700 (2021 census), largely living in the main urban areas of
Southend, Westcliff and Leigh-on-Sea. The main source of air pollution within
these areas originates from road traffic emissions from major roads, notably the
A13, A127 and A1159. Other pollution sources that contribute to the background

concentration include commercial, industrial and domestic sources.

Southend-on-Sea City Council has declared two AQMAs, both for exceedances

of the NO2 annual mean. These include:

AQMA 1: Centred at the junction between Prince Avenue, Hobleythick Lane,
and Rochford Road (known as ‘The Bell Junction’) — declared 2016.

AQMA 2: Short section of the A127 Victoria Avenue, adjacent to the junctions
with Priory Crescent, Fairfax Drive, East and West Street — declared 2020.

This AQAP is designed to tackle the exceedance of the NO2 annual mean
identified within with AQMA 2 Victoria Avenue.

In accordance with LAQM Policy Guidance (22)), the approximate population
within the boundary of AQMA 2 Victoria Avenue is 353 people, based on the total
area of the AQMA being approximately 0.08 km? and the population density* of
Southend-on-Sea being 4,336 per km?2.

2.1 NO2 Concentrations within Southend-on-Sea

NOz2 is the primary pollutant of concern for Southend-on-Sea City Council, due to the

known health effects of exposure to high concentrations. During 2021, NO2was passively

monitored at 45 diffusion tube sites and one automatic site, which is operated as part of
the Automatic Urban and Rural Network (AURN). The monitoring network

« Office for National Statistics. (2022). Population and Household Estimates, England and Wales.

Southend-on-Sea City Council Air Quality Actian Plan (2023-2027) 2

Bureau Veritas | C2 - Internal


https://www.southend.gov.uk/protecting-environment-emergencies/air-quality/2
https://www.southend.gov.uk/protecting-environment-emergencies/air-quality/3

Southend-on-Sea City Council

serves as an ongoing indicator for changing NO2 trends to identify any hotspot areas
and is essential for the assessment of the implementation of the measures detailed
within this AQAP. The monitoring network also provides an initial evidence base for

consideration of the requirement to revoke, amend or declare any AQMAs.

With regards to the AQMA of interest in this AQAP (AQMA 2 Victoria Avenue), there are
two diffusion tube sites located within the AQMA boundary: SOU38 and SOU39.
Monitoring data for the past five years (2017-2021) is presented in Table 2.1 so that the
trends and the frequency of any exceedances can be identified. The numbers in bold
indicate an exceedance of the 40 ug/m3. It should be noted that there is a degree of
uncertainty with regard to the 2020 and 2021 monitoring data, owing to the impact that
the COVID-19 pandemic had on the level of traffic activity during lockdown periods.

Table 2.1 — Monitored NO2 Concentrations within Southend-on-Sea

Annual Mean NO2 Concentration (ug/m3)

Site ID Location 2018 2019 2020 2021
A 2 Victoria Avenue
SOU38 West Street . 38.5 33.7
SOU39 | Victoria Avenue 3 . 42.0 38.4
A1 The Bell Junction

SOU32 | Victoria Avenue 2 . 27.0 23.9

SOU33 | Prince Avenue 1A 49.2 49.3 45.2 44.6 35.5
SOU46 3 Prince Avenue 314 33.5 30.5 29.5 23.4
SOU51 | 88 Prince Avenue - - - - 214

170 Prince
SOU52 AVES - - - - 19.9
201 Prince
SOuU53 G - - - - 20.5
SOU55 | 20 Rochford Road - - - - 19.7
SOU56 21 Larke Rise - - - - 17.2
Outside of AQMASs
SOU21 | Victoria Avenue 1 34.8 324 30.9 24.2 27.3
SOuU22 West Road 28.6 26.9 24.7 20.1 22.7
SOuU24 Eastern Avenue 33.5 30.6 30.0 23.6 25.5
SOU25 | Heygate Avenue 30.2 25.7 24.5 21.3 24.4
SOU26 London Road 2 37.2 34.4 30.8 24.9 27.4
SOu27 London Road 1 21.7 19.1 19.9 15.0 16.5
SOu28 Prince Avenue 2 341 30.5 27.6 23.3 25.0
SOU29 Abbotts Close 25.2 21.8 21.0 16.5 17.5
SOU30 Manners Way 26.1 25.7 21.1 16.0 17.0
SOU31 Boston Avenue 27.8 26.3 24.9 19.8 221
SOU34 Parsons Corner 25.1 24.7 22.3 21.7 18.3
Bournes Green
SOuU35 Chase 24.8 27.4 20.9 221 19.1
Eastern

SOU36 Esplanade 28.9 29.3 27.8 25.5 21.0
SOuU37 Marine Parade 28.9 29.4 23.9 22.8 20.5
SOU40 London Road 3 33.6 33.2 28.1 27.8 23.5
SOU41 London Road 4 31.8 35.7 29.6 30.0 26.8

w

Southend-on-Sea City Council Air Quatity Action Plan (2023-2027)

Bureau Veritas | C2 - Internal



Southend-on-Sea City Council

Annual Mean NO2z Concentration (jg/m?3)

Site ID SR 2018 2019 2020 2021
S0OuU42 Broadway, Leigh 28.3 28.2 26.8 24.2 224
SOuU43 London Road 5 36.5 33.8 31.1 29.1 25.3
Hamlet Court
SOu44 Road 1 37.6 38.3 31.8 30.1 27.4
Hamlet Court
SOuU45 Road 2 28.4 30.8 27.0 22.5 21.2
568 Prince
SOu47 AEIT - - - - 18.7
SOU48 33 The Fairway - - - - 15.5
250 Hamstel
SOuU49 Road - - - - 18.3
SOU50 | 115 Wells Avenue - - - - 14.5
111 Hobleythick
SOU54 Road - - - - 165
SOuU57 285 Sutton Road - - - - 21.5
Greenways
SOuU58 School - - - - 13.8
Library, 1
KE1 Rayleigh Road, 27.7 26.0 247 19.9 21.5
Leigh
Health Centre, 1
KE2 Rayleigh Road, 30.2 28.4 29.3 21.6 19.9
Leigh
55 Broomfield
KE3 Ave, Leigh 23.0 19.9 20.5 15.6 16.5
332 Bridgewater
KE4 Drive 325 29.1 27.4 23.8 25.1
326-328
KE5 Bridgewater Dr 25.7 24.9 22.6 18.7 22.7
327 Bridgewater
KE6 B 31.6 26.9 259 20.8 24.0
685 Prince Ave,
KE7 Westcliff 38.8 35.2 34.1 27.8 30.1
KE8 Essex Auto Group 28.5 27.3 26.7 20.6 22.1
Chalkwell Park
AURN (UKA00409) 21.0 20.0 19.0 14.0 15.4

From the monitoring undertaken by Southend-on-Sea City Council, it is evident that there
have been exceedances of the NO2 annual mean within both AQMAs over the last five
years, and no exceedances outside of the current AQMA boundaries. With regards to
AQMA 2 which this AQAP, there were exceedances in 2017 and 2018, and no
exceedances since. However, this is likely due to the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic
severely reducing vehicular emissions during lockdown periods. However, even during
2020 when vehicle activity was significantly reduced, the NO2 concentration measured at
the diffusion tube site SOU39 within AQMA 2 was still within 10% of the annual mean
objective of 40 ug/m3. Therefore, based on current monitoring, it is evident that the current
designation for AQMA 2 Victoria Avenue should remain, hence the purpose of this AQAP

is to outline measures to ensure future compliance.

Southend-on-Sea City Council Air Quality Actisn Plan (2023-2027) 4

Bureau Veritas | C2 - Internal



Southend-on-Sea City Council

3 Southend-on-Sea City Council’s Air Quality
Priorities

This section presents the main drivers and the approach taken by Southend-on-Sea
City Council for the development and subsequent selection of measures included within
this AQAP. Reference is also made in this section to the existing strategies and policies

that are in place and have an impact on air quality within Southend-on-Sea.

The Council’s priorities have also been informed by results from an air quality
assessment. As part of this, a source apportionment study has been completed across
the modelled area, focusing particularly on AQMA 2 Victoria Avenue. This study has
allowed the most significant sources of oxides of nitrogen (NOx) vehicle contributors to
be identified. Primarily, NOxis emitted into the atmosphere in the form of nitric oxide (NO)
which is then converted to nitrogen dioxide (NOz2) through chemical processes in the
atmosphere. Under most atmospheric conditions, the dominant pathway for NO:2

formation is via the reaction of NO with ozone (O3).

In conjunction with the strategies and policies that are currently in place, the findings of
this source apportionment exercise have been used to inform and prioritise the

measures presented within Section 5.

3.1 Public Health Context

There is increasing scientific evidence that poor air quality has a significant negative
impact on human health. Research shows that the most common pollutants of concern
(NO2, PM1o, and PM25) are linked to various health complications, primarily impacting
the cardiovascular and respiratory systems, but also impacting other bodily organs.
Short-term exposure to these pollutants can bring about symptoms such as nose and
throat irritation, followed by bronchoconstriction and dyspnoea, alongside increased
reactivity to natural allergens, increasing the risk of respiratory infections through the
interaction of pollutants with the immune system. Long-term exposure may lead to
reduced lung function, hampering development in young children, alongside reducing

life expectancy due to cardiovascular and respiratory diseases.
Local authorities are under pressure from members of the public to demonstrate that
action is being taken to actively tackle and reduce air pollution in their area. Previously,

Southend-on-Sea City Council Air Quatity Action Plan (2023-2027) 5

Bureau Veritas | C2 - Internal



Southend-on-Sea City Council

there had been no deaths linked to air pollution, however in 2020 the first person in the
UK had ‘air pollution’ listed as the cause of death. Although there are currently no
legislative outcomes as a result of this, it further increases the pressure and duty of

care that local authorities have in order to protect their residents.

Local authorities have a range of powers which can effectively help to improve air quality.
However, the involvement of public health officials is crucial in playing a role to assess
the public health impacts and providing guidance on taking appropriate action to reduce

exposure and improve the health of everyone within Southend-on-Sea.

The Air Quality Indicator in the Public Health Outcomes Framework (England) provides
further impetus to join up action between various local authority departments which
impact on the delivery of air quality improvements. The “Air Quality — A Briefing for
Directors of Public Health” document (published March 2017) provides a one-stop
guide to the latest evidence on air pollution, guiding local authorities to use existing
tools to appraise the scale of the air pollution issue in their area®. It also provides advice
for local authorities on how to appropriately prioritise air quality alongside other public

health priorities to ensure it is on the local agenda.
The document comprises the following key guides:
e Getting to grips with air pollution — the latest evidence and techniques.
¢ Understanding air pollution in your area.
e Engaging local decision-makers about air pollution.
e Communicating with the public during air pollution episodes.
e Communicating with the public on the long-term impacts of air pollution.

e Air pollution: an emerging public health issue — briefing for elected members.

Besides NOz, there is an increasing focus on fine particulate matter. PM2s is another

pollutant of concern, mean particulate matter which is 2.5 microns or less in diameter.

s Local Government Association, Air Quality: A Briefing for Directors of Public Health, March 2017.

Available at: <https://www.local.gov.uk/publications/air-quality-briefing-directors-public-health>

Southend-on-Sea City Council Air Quality Actisn Plan (2023-2027) 6

Bureau Veritas | C2 - Internal


https://www.local.gov.uk/publications/air-quality-briefing-directors-public-health

Southend-on-Sea City Council

The Public Health Outcomes Framework data tool® compiled by Public Health England

quantifies the mortality burden of PM2.5 within England on a county and local authority

The 2020 fraction of mortality attributable to PM2.sin Southend-on-Sea is 6.1%, which
is above both the national and regional (East of England) averages of 5.6% and 5.8%,
respectively. It should be noted that this figure only accounts for one pollutant (PM2.5)
for which stronger scientific evidence on links with mortality exist, and not NOz2, for
which the AQMA of interest (AQMA 2 Victoria Avenue) is declared.

With regards to the health impacts as a result of air pollution within Southend-on-Sea,
(particularly within AQMA 2 Victoria Avenue) this is predominantly associated to the
concentrations of NO2 exceeding the annual mean AQS objective. It is expected that
some of the measures implemented in this AQAP for the achievement of reductions in

NO:2 will have co-benefits in additionally reducing concentrations of PM1oand PM2s.

3.2 Planning and Policy Context

This AQAP outlines Southend-on-Sea City Council’s plan to effectively tackle air quality
issues within its control. There are numerous existing and impeding policies adopted
at all levels (local, regional, and national) that can exert significant effects, both positive
and negative, on air quality across Southend-on-Sea. It is important to identify and
consider these plans and strategies at an early stage of the development of the plan,
as these will aid the establishment of the context in which specific actions for improving
air quality can be implemented. Whilst certain policies and/or strategies may be outside
of the influence of Southend-on-Sea City Council, there are a number of related policies
and strategies at local and regional levels that can be tied directly with the aims of this
AQAP. Some of these have a primary air quality focus, whilst others relate to
transportation issues and therefore have the additional benefit of contributing to overall

improvements in air quality across Southend-on-Sea.

s Public Health Outcomes Framework: D01 — Fraction of Mortality Attributable to Particulate Air
Pollution. Available at: https:/fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/public-health-outcomes-
framework/data#page/1/gid/1000043/pat/15/ati/402/are/E06000033/iid/93861/age/230/sex/4/cat/-
1/ctp/-1/yrr/1/cid/4/tbm/1

Southend-on-Sea City Council Air Quatity Action Plan (2023-2027) 7

Bureau Veritas | C2 - Internal


https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/public-health-outcomes-framework/data#page/1/gid/1000043/pat/15/ati/402/are/E06000033/iid/93861/age/230/sex/4/cat/-1/ctp/-1/yrr/1/cid/4/tbm/1
https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/public-health-outcomes-framework/data#page/1/gid/1000043/pat/15/ati/402/are/E06000033/iid/93861/age/230/sex/4/cat/-1/ctp/-1/yrr/1/cid/4/tbm/1
https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/public-health-outcomes-framework/data#page/1/gid/1000043/pat/15/ati/402/are/E06000033/iid/93861/age/230/sex/4/cat/-1/ctp/-1/yrr/1/cid/4/tbm/1

Southend-on-Sea City Council

The review of these strategies and policies also assists in preventing duplication of work
within the AQAP but can instead work in concordance for mutual benefit whilst also
focusing on direct measures outside those considered within the already developed
strategies and policies. This section outlines the strategies and policies that have the
most significant potential to impact pollutant concentrations within the city. Given their
importance, most measures listed below have been included as action measures within

this AQAP. The most relevant policies are detailed in the following:

3.2.1 Association of South Essex Local Authorities

Southend-on-Sea City Council are currently working together with the five other local
authorities in South Essex (Basildon, Brentwood, Castle Point, Rochford and Thurrock)
and Essex County Council across local authority boundaries. In January 2018, the local
authorities formed the Association of South Essex Local Authorities (ASELA) to ensure
implementation of the ambition has strong leadership and is managed on a truly
collaborative basis. This collective effort addresses a range of strategic issues and

initiatives.
3.2.2 Southend-on-Sea City Council Local Plan

A local plan that is shaped through community engagement provides an important tool

to help manage future development proposals which may negatively impact air quality.

The plan is divided into three parts: (1) Aims and Objectives, (2) Spatial Strategy, and
(3) Southend Neighbourhoods. Consultation has been undertaken in 2019 and 2021
on ‘Issues and Options’ and ‘Refining the Plan Options’, respectively. A consultation
will be undertaken in the third quarter of 2023 (Q3) on the ‘Preferred Approach’, with
full public consultation on the proposed submission taking place in the third quarter
(Q3) of 2024, and submission of the final adopted local plan in the final quarter of the

same year.

Once adopted, the local plan sets out the long-term planning strategy and forms the
main basis for Southend-on-Sea City Council making decisions on any future planning
application. The local plan includes detailed policies and site proposals for housing,

employment, leisure and infrastructure up to 2040.

Consideration of air quality issues at the plan-making stage can provide a strategic

overview and help to secure net improvements in overall air quality. It can identify the

Southend-on-Sea City Council Air Quality Action Plan (2023-2027) 8

Bureau Veritas | C2 - Internal



Southend-on-Sea City Council

type, scale and location of development most appropriate to the area, the potential
cumulative impact of smaller developments on air quality and opportunities to improve

air quality or mitigate impacts.

3.2.3 Southend-on-Sea City Council Local Transport Plan

The local transport plan (LTP) steers the implementation of national transport policies
at the local level. As a strategic document the LTP does not contain details of schemes,
but sets out a long-term transport strategy, a shorter-term implementation plan and
several supporting strategies. Air quality is closely linked to how people and goods
travel, and how we would like them to travel in the future. The transport strategy and

air quality teams will work closely to ensure policies and plans align.

To reduce the potential for the transport sector to negatively impact air quality, links
need to be made to the wider economic, social, and environmental objectives. The LTP3
has therefore been developed within the context provided by a range of policy
documents, including the Southend Core Strategy. The LTP3 implementation plan
2021/22 has been extended to cover 2022/23 and updated to state how it achieves the

Southend 2050 vision. The actions in the plan will achieve the following outcomes:
e |tis easier for residents, visitors, and workers to get around the city.
e People have a wide choice of transport options.
e Leading the way in making public and private travel smart, clean and green.

e More people have physically active lifestyles, including through the use of local

open space.

Local Transport Plan (LTP4) is currently under preparation with an aim of completion
by the end of 2023. This will include a range of policies and proposals that it is
anticipated will include measures to manage the impacts of congestion on air quality,

promotion of active travel and facilitation of electric vehicles.

3.2.4 Transport East Transport Strategy

Transport East is the sub-national transport body for Norfolk, Suffolk, Essex, Thurrock
and Southend-on-Sea, providing a single voice for councils on the region’s transport
strategy and strategic transport investment priorities. The transport strategy has an

overarching framework of decarbonising transport to reach net-zero emissions.

Southend-on-Sea City Council Air Quasity Action Plan (2023-2027) 9

Bureau Veritas | C2 - Internal



Southend-on-Sea City Council

3.2.5 Land Use Planning — Air Quality Assessments

A key priority for Southend-on-Sea City Council is to integrate air quality considerations
into other policy areas such as land use planning. Primarily, this is because many new
developments have the potential to increase the pollution burden and it is appropriate that
these developments are required to mitigate or offset this to help to achieve an overall
reduction in air pollution. Therefore, it is clear that there is a need to identify air quality
considerations in the planning process at the earliest possible stage. It is no longer
satisfactory to simply demonstrate that a development is no worse than the existing or

previous land use on a particular site.

Where a development is proposed to take place in or adjacent to an AQMA or could
have a significant impact on air quality, an air quality assessment (AQA) is required,
and the resultant mitigation measures must be considered as standard practice. This
is particularly the case where the development is new and does not simply replace an
existing use, and has the provision for parking spaces that will significantly increase the
number of vehicle trips. Where relevant, guidance for dust management on
construction sites and medium combustion plant should be incorporated. In some
cases, it may be necessary to recommend refusal when a development is so contrary
to the objectives of the AQAP and Low Emission Strategy (LES). The LES provides a
comprehensive plan detailing mechanisms for reducing road transport emissions

across hotspot areas in Southend-on-Sea.

3.2.6 Green City Action Plan

Southend-on-Sea City Council is launching a new set of strategies, which combined
will help support the ambition of becoming a green city and the 2050 vision. A new
Green City Action Plan has been created, together with a programme of energy and
greening projects that target our school estate and would have the co-benefit of
improving air quality. In addition will be the Climate Resilience and Urban Green
Strategy 2021-2025. The strategy identifies how the Council can build resilience to the
future impacts of climate change and will prioritise action to deliver an ambitious urban
greening programme. This will also have the added benefit of helping to improve air
quality and reduce the impact of pollutants by increasing the amount of vegetation,

green infrastructure and green spaces within Southend-on-Sea.

Southend-on-Sea City Council Air Quality Actgan Plan (2023-2027) 10

Bureau Veritas | C2 - Internal



Southend-on-Sea City Council

In urban areas, some research suggests trees, vegetation and green spaces can help to
reduce the level of pollutants and improve air quality by absorbing gaseous pollutants,
lowering ambient temperatures and by producing oxygen during photosynthesis. In
addition to using green infrastructure to mitigate the effects of poor air quality,
opportunities exist for individuals to change their transport behaviours and adopt a modal
shift by utilising walking and cycling network, or consider travelling around Southend-on-
Sea by public transport. Green infrastructure therefore has a twofold benefit in terms of
air pollution: (1) directly absorbing gaseous pollutants and (2) encouraging changes in
travel patterns by encouraging cycling and walking. Southend-on-Sea City Council are

seeking funding for the following green infrastructure projects:
e Chalkwell Avenue;
e Victoria Circus; and

e Phase one of ‘Better Queensway’ — a multi-million pound regeneration
scheme.
Southend-on-Sea City Council directly manages thousands of trees growing along its
roads, in its parks and gardens, and woodlands. The new tree policy (2020-2030)
reaffirms Southend-on-Sea City Council’s ongoing commitment to responsible tree
management and to maintaining and enhancing tree canopy covers, along with other

green planting.

There will be a continuation of street tree planting to help maintain and extend the tree
canopy cover across Southend-on-Sea, with a target to increase overall canopy cover
from 12% to 15% by 2050 by planting more trees each year than are removed. The

policy will be reviewed and updated regularly to reflect changes in national legislation.

3.2.7 Financial Air Quality Improvement Schemes

Southend-on-Sea City Council are in the process of creating a public procurement
framework and facilitation service that will enable local authorities and other public sector
bodies to procure ‘healthy’ buildings (including indoor air quality) and net-zero retrofits.
By combining ‘healthy’ buildings with net-zero targets it provides local authorities with an
opportunity to bundle investments together, enabling air quality to become an integral
aspect of all net-zero investments and decarbonation programmes. This approach is
designed to overcome a major barrier for local authority led air quality improvement
schemes, specifically how air quality programmes can be funded without

33
Southend-on-Sea City Council Air Quality Action Plan (2023-2027) 11



Bureau Veritas | C2 - Internal

34



Southend-on-Sea City Council

the need for government grants or subsidies. By linking air quality to the net-zero
agenda, the project will create routes to finance that local authorities have previously

not had access to, linking it to national targets to become net-zero carbon by 2050.

The project is intended to address the critical issues of reducing carbon emissions to
support national, regional, and local net-zero targets; it takes positive actions to make
buildings ‘healthy’ and create safe environments for education and working. Moreover,
local authorities have considerable property estates which will need upgrading to meet
net-zero targets. This upgrade is likely to inadvertently bring about an improvement to air
quality. The project will establish a clear pathway for local authorities to deliver an
investment programme that combined the net-zero and ‘healthy’ building retrofits,
resulting in projects that achieve high levels of carbon reduction and improvements in air
quality, and will initially focus on school buildings. Project partners will develop the public
procurement framework to identify how air quality improvement projects can be linked to
existing net-zero programmes. Enabling the integration of air quality schemes with
existing net-zero programmes is key to facilitating the most efficient strategy to achieve
the required reductions. This will enable the new framework and facilitation service to be
developed in line with planned energy efficiency, and renewable generation projects in
four initial primary schools in Southend-on-Sea. Each pilot will integrate air quality
improvement solutions into the net-zero carbon project, highlighting how the model can
work in practice and be replicated by local authorities throughout the Southeast Local
Enterprise Partnership region, and will be supported by the development of a new air

quality modules for Better Planet Schools.

In 2019, Southend-on-Sea City Council declared a climate emergency which was a
commitment to leading action to becoming net-zero by 2030. This requires substantial
energy efficiency work across Southend-on-Sea City Council’s property estate, whilst
working with communities, residents and business to identify opportunities to increase
the volume of renewable energy in Southend-on-Sea. Shifting to renewable energy and
electric vehicles will have a significant impact on improving air quality and will be a strong

feature throughout the Net-Zero Carbon Strategy (released in early 2021).

3.2.8 Planning Development (‘Better Southend’)

Southend-on-Sea City Council received £25 million from central government to use on

key projects to help with any regeneration and redevelopment work. There are many

Southend-on-Sea City Council Air Quatity Action Plan (2023-2027) 12

Bureau Veritas | C2 - Internal



Southend-on-Sea City Council

transport policies, projects, and schemes that have been developed and implemented
already to improve the travel activity. The projects cover driving, public transport, cycling,

and walking — all of which, if improved, can have a positive effect on air quality.

Kent Elms Project: The completed Kent Elms project junction improvements have
provided maximum benefit with three lanes heading eastward, and a right-hand turn lane
providing improved capacity through the junction. An additional lane is provided heading
westward, again increasing the capacity through the junction. These changes make it
easier for people with reduced mobility and those with pushchairs to cross the highway
to access amenities. The majority of the funding for the Kent Elms junction improvement
(£5.1 million) was from the Local Growth Fund via the South East Local Enterprise
Partnership, with the remainder coming from the Southend-on-Sea’s capital budget.
Together, with a new footbridge, the scheme helps to deliver an improved local

environment and contributes positively towards sustainable transport objective.

The Bell: The Local Growth Fund, via the South East Local Enterprise Partnership, has
provided £4.3 million in support of improvements to The Bell junction. There is also a
£720,000 contribution from Southend-on-Sea City Council, meaning the total funding for

the project is approximately £5 million. The junction improvement works involved:
e A new dedicated left-hand turn onto Rochford Road;

e Extending the right-hand turn onto Hobleythick Lane;

e Better pedestrian facilities on Rochford Road by providing a traffic-signal

pedestrian crossing;

e Better pedestrian facilities on Hobleythick Lane by providing a new pedestrian

island;

e Preventing a right-hand turn onto Rochford Road in order to free up more “green
light” time for motorists going straight ahead along the A127 in both directions,

and improve pedestrian facilities; and

e Removing the footbridge which does not comply with disability discrimination

legislation because of the lack of ramps.

For more information, please email bettersouthend@southend.gov.uk.

Southend-on-Sea City Council Air Quality Actgsn Plan (2023-2027) 13

Bureau Veritas | C2 - Internal


mailto:bettersouthend@southend.gov.uk

Southend-on-Sea City Council

3.2.9 Additional Policies

Core Strategy (2007) Policy KP2 (Development Principles): This policy seeks to
ensure that all new developments, including transport infrastructure, contributes to
economic, social, physical and environmental regeneration in a sustainable way,

including:
¢ Reducing the need to travel;

¢ Respecting, conserving, enhancing and, where required, adequately mitigating

the effects on the natural environment;

e Facilitating the use of travel modes other than the private vehicle;

e Promoting improved and sustainable modes of travel, including appropriate
measure in design, layout, operation and materials to achieve, avoidance or
appropriate mitigation of actual and potential pollution impacts of development

enhancements to the ecological and amenity value of the environment.

Core Strategy Policy KP3 (Implementation and Resources): This policy states that
in planning obligations, Southend-on-Sea City Council will enter the discussion to
ensure the provision of infrastructure and transportation measures (that have an air

quality benefit) such as improvements to:

e Cycling, walking and passenger transport facilities and services, open spaces,

and green grid enhancements; and

¢ Requiring all developments to have regard to and, where appropriate, contribute

to the delivery of the Southend Local Transport Plan.

Core Strategy Policy KP3 (Transport and Accessibility): This policy makes
provision for improvements to transport infrastructure and services, in partnership, to
secure a step change in provision to achieve a modern integrated transport system,
necessary to unlock key development sites and secure sustainable regeneration and
growth. This includes Policy CP3.6 ‘Safeguarding and Enhancing the Environment of

Environmental Rooms’, as defined in the Local Transport Plan.

Southend-on-Sea City Council Air Quatity Action Plan (2023-2027) 14

Bureau Veritas | C2 - Internal



Southend-on-Sea City Council

4 Source Apportionment

Source apportionment is the process by which different pollutant sources in relation to
existing ambient concentrations are quantified. A source apportionment exercise was
carried out using a baseline year prior to 2020 to discount any changes arising as a
result of the effects of COVID-19 restrictions causing significant changes in vehicle
patterns, which may not be representative of future year concentrations. Therefore,
using pre-pandemic traffic levels would more likely represent the normalised level of
vehicle activity in Southend-on-Sea. However, on the professional recommendation of
the transport consultant (Mott MacDonald), 2018 data was used instead of 2019. The
measures presented within this AQAP are targeted towards the predominant sources

of emissions within Southend-on-Sea.

The source apportionment process has been completed in order to:

e Quantify the proportions of NOx that are attributable to both background
concentrations and to local road emissions. The total concentration of a pollutant
comprises those from explicit local emission sources such as roads, chimney

stacks, etc., and those that are transported into an area by the wind.

e Determination of the relative contributions from different vehicle types (cars,
heavy good vehicles (HGVs), light good vehicles (LGVs), buses and coaches,

and motorcycles).

e Determination of whether action plan measures would need to be on a local,
regional, and/or national scale to have a significant impact upon reducing NOx
emissions within the AQMA.

The source apportionment exercise was carried out using detailed dispersion modelling
software (ADMS-Roads Version 5.0) to identify and assess the emission profile of
vehicles within Southend-on-Sea, based upon traffic data and sensitive receptors. To
complete this exercise, NOxand NO2z concentrations have been predicted at a number
of receptors within, and close to AQMA 2 Victoria Avenue. This was undertaken to
determine which vehicle type(s) represent the most significant source of NOx pollution
within the AQMA. The study used the split of vehicle fleet emissions contained in the
Emissions Factors Toolkit provided by Defra and are in line with predictions from the

National Air Emissions Inventory.

Southend-on-Sea City Council Air Quality Actdsn Plan (2023-2027) 15

Bureau Veritas | C2 - Internal



Southend-on-Sea City Council

Emission sources of NO2 are dominated by a combination of different NO2 (f-NO2) and
oxides of nitrogen (NOx), the latter of which is chemically unstable and rapidly oxidised
upon release to form NO2. NOx, once emitted from vehicles, undergoes a number of
chemical reactions and disperses to form the NOz2 concentrations that are measured at
roadside monitoring locations. Reducing levels of NOx emissions therefore reduces the
levels of NO2. As a consequence, the source apportionment study has considered NOx

emissions which are assumed to be representative of the main sources of NO2.

The findings of the above are summarised in Figure 4.1 and Figure 4.2

below. Figure 4.1 — Source Apportionment of NOx (All Receptors)

Average Across All Modelled Receptors

Car-Petrol

3.4%
|

“_Car-Alternative
0.1%

Background

LGV-Diesel
15.3%

Southend-on-Sea City Council Air Quatity Action Plan (2023-2027) 16

Bureau Veritas | C2 - Internal



Southend-on-Sea City Council

Figure 4.2 — Source Apportionment of NOx (NO2 > 40 ug/m? & Maximum NOx)

Average Across All Receptors With NO, Concentration Above 40pg/m? & Maximum NO, Concentration

Car-Petrol
4.7%

Car-Diesel
27.0%

\.Car-Altemative
0.2%

HGV \ LGV-Diesel
4.8% 22.3%

The figures detail the source apportionment results for NOx concentrations at modelled

receptors for three scenarios:

e The average NOx contributions across all modelled locations representative of
sensitive human exposure (called ‘receptors’). This provides useful information

when considering possible action measures to test and adopt.

e The locations where the NO2 annual mean objective of 40 uyg/m3 has been
predicted to be exceeded. This will inform potential prominent NOx contributors
present within the identified area of exceedances and, therefore, be useful when

testing and adopting action measures.

Southend-on-Sea City Council Air Quality Action Plan (2023-2027) 17

Bureau Veritas | C2 - Internal



Southend-on-Sea City Council

e The location where the maximum road NOx concentration has been predicted
within the AQMA. This is likely to be in the area of most concern within the AQMA
and so acts as a good place to test and adopt action measures. Any gains
predicted by the action measures are likely to be greatest at this location and so

would not represent the greatest gains across the whole modelled area.

As the NOz2 annual mean concentration of 40 ug/m? was only predicted to have been
exceeded at one modelled receptor location, the source apportionment analysis results
are the same for receptor locations where the NOz2 concentration is above 40 ug/m3and

the receptor location of the maximum NOx concentration.

The percentage contributions of each vehicle class are relatively similar for the average
of all modelled receptors and at receptor locations where the annual mean is predicted to
exceed the 40 yg/m3 annual limit. As the annual mean threshold was only exceeded at
one receptor location, the source apportionment results for receptor locations above 40

pg/m3 also applies to the receptor location with the maximum NOx concentration.

The NOx source apportionment exercise demonstrates a relative consistent ranking of
contributing vehicle classes exhibited through each scenario, with diesel cars and diesel
LGVs found to be the main contributors to total road NOx concentrations across
Southend-on-Sea. This suggests that the volume of traffic is considered to be the key

contributor to elevated levels of NO2 annual mean concentrations within the AQMA.

4.1 Required Reduction in Emissions

In line with the methodology presented in Box 7.6 of Technical Guidance(22), the
necessary reduction in road NOx emissions required to bring the current AQMA into
compliance is shown in Table 4.1. This has been completed at the maximum annual
mean concentration location, either monitored or modelled within the AQMA. The
procedure calculates the required reduction of road NOx to achieve a total NO2
concentration of 40 pug/m3. However, to account for uncertainties with dispersion
modelling and the degree of potential inaccuracy with diffusion tube monitoring, a more
stringent figure of 36 ug/m3 has been used (10% lower than the annual mean AQS
objective). This will ensure that the AQMA 2 Victoria Avenue is revoked once Southend-
on-Sea City Council are confident that the NO2 concentrations are sufficiently below the

AQS objective. In order to achieve a concentration of 36 ug/m3,

Southend-on-Sea City Council Air Quadity Action Plan (2023-2027) 18

Bureau Veritas | C2 - Internal



Southend-on-Sea City Council

the road NOx concentration needs a reduction of 20.2 ug/m3 (37.0%). The calculation

to obtain such value is shown in Table 4.1.

Table 4.1 — NOx Reduction Required within AQMA 2 Victoria Avenue

Metric Concentration (ug/m3)
Background NO2 Concentration 18.8
Road NOx at 45 pg/m® NO2 54.5
Road NOxat 36 pg/m? NO2 34.3
Required Reduction 20.2 (37.0%)
Southend-on-Sea City Council Air Quality Actian Plan (2023-2027) 19

Bureau Veritas | C2 - Internal



Southend-on-Sea City Council
5 Key Priorities

Based on the information presented within Section 4, and the measures listed within
Section 7, the following have been defined by Southend-on-Sea City Council as key

areas for action.

5.1 Priority 1 — Road Transport

The main source of air pollution leading to the declaration of AQMA 2 Victoria Avenue
is road transport emissions. Therefore, reducing the emissions from road transport is
the key priority. The approach focuses on areas that Southend-on-Sea City Council

have direct control over, so that measures can be implemented without restriction.

Although the roads contributing to high pollutant levels which result in exceedances of the
annual average NOz2 objective are not managed by National Highways, this relevant public

authority has been engaged with whilst for the purposes of preparing this AQAP.

Transport planning and infrastructure improvements can be achieved through both the
Association of South Essex Local Authorities and ‘A Better Southend’. Workplace and
school travel plans are also to be promoted by Southend-on-Sea City Council. In order
to directly reduce the emissions from road transport, alternative forms of transport are
to be encouraged (i.e., walking/cycling) and facilitated through infrastructure
improvements (i.e., installation of electrical vehicle (EV) charging points to promote the
uptake of EVs). Emissions from road transport are also reduced through measures
contained within the local transport plan, which ensures air quality and transport
policies are aligned. In specific relation to AQMA 2 Victoria Avenue, the aim is to reduce
vehicle emissions by enforcing an anti-idling policy. This is to be specifically effective
along areas of Victoria Avenue, in particular the section adjacent to Roots Hall Football
Stadium, where there is a section along the road for vehicles to park and idle their
engines. This area is likely to be frequently used by vehicles idling their engines as the

Smartway Driving School is located along this section of road.

5.2 Priority 2 — Land Use Planning

The local plan and its policies set out the considerations that will be applied by

Southend-on-Sea City Council for all development proposals. Southend-on-Sea City

Southend-on-Sea City Council Air Quadity Action Plan (2023-2027) 20

Bureau Veritas | C2 - Internal



Southend-on-Sea City Council

Council will work with developers and partner organisations to ensure the delivery of
infrastructure, services and community facilities necessary to develop and maintain
sustainable communities. This will not only apply to air quality but also all other relevant
environmental aspects. Furthermore, Southend-on-Sea City Council will look to secure
funding support for initiatives aimed at reducing air pollution either directly or indirectly

via S106 agreements and the Community Infrastructure Levy.

5.3 Priority 3 — Connected & Smart City

Southend-on-Sea City Council are exploring the use of future network technologies,
which will form the foundation of future smart service and smart city developments. Full
fibre technology is being installed by City Fibre, in partnership with Vodafone, in over
64,000 homes across Southend-on-Sea. Key to this is the implementation of the
strategic platform, which will form the basis of future deployments and be the prime
enabler for moving towards a smart, digital city, whilst hosting and analysing the data
feeding into the Smart Southend Portal.

Initiatives that have a beneficial impact on air quality include measures such as ‘smart
parking’. By being able to find a parking space with ease reduces the need for driving
around looking for somewhere to park, which therefore reduces the emissions from
road traffic. Smart solutions such as this are effective measures that, although not

primarily designed to, indirectly reduces the pollutant concentration.

5.4 Priority 4 — Public Health & Raising Awareness

As detailed within Section 3.1, air pollution has a detrimental impact on public health.
Therefore, improving air quality within the borough is a key priority. The main sources of
air pollution in areas of existing exposure in Southend-on-Sea are from vehicle
emissions. Aside from restricting vehicle usage through measures such as Clean Air
Zones and Low Emission Zones, the most effective way to achieve a reduction in the
level of vehicle activity is to influence, and change, the attitudes and behaviours of the
population towards travel. By raising awareness of the health impacts of an individual’s
choice of travel (i.e., private vehicle use over public transport), Southend-on-Sea City
Council hope the residents of Southend-on-Sea will be motivated to change their mode
of transport to a more sustainable form of travel. Raising awareness of the health impacts
of air pollution, especially to high risk and vulnerable groups, will be done

Southend-on-Sea City Council Air Quality Actian Plan (2023-2027) 21

Bureau Veritas | C2 - Internal



Southend-on-Sea City Council

through Southend-on-Sea City Council’'s website and social media pages, as well as
via the ‘Livewell Southend’ page. Southend-on-Sea City Council also plan to issue

alerts and messages to people on poor air quality days.

Measures will include education and awareness raising, alongside schemes which
incentivise change. Improving air quality to protect public health requires changes to

be made across the whole of Southend-on-Sea, not just within the AQMA.

5.5 Priority 5 — Climate Resilience & Sustainable Innovation

Southend-on-Sea City Council are committed to building resilience and facilitating
sustainable innovation against the impacts of future climate change. Key to this is the
implementation of the ‘Green City Action Plan’ and the ‘Climate Resilience and Urban
Green Strategy (2021-2025). These two strategies are a key priority in delivering an
ambitious urban greening programme to resilience to climate change. Despite the fact
that increasing the number of green spaces is primarily to reduce the impacts of climate
change, there is also an additional co-benefit to air quality. This can be either directly
through absorbing gaseous pollutants or indirectly by encouraging a modal shift in

travel behaviour (i.e., green spaces to encouraging walking and cycling).

5.6 Priority 6 — Air Quality Monitoring

Currently, the concentration of NO2 is monitored by Southend-on-Sea City Council
across a passive diffusion tube network at 45 locations and an automatic monitoring
station at Chalkwell Park, which forms part of the Automatic Urban and Rural Network
(AURN). Air quality monitoring is a useful way to continually assess the extent of air
pollution and identify any area of concern within Southend-on-Sea. It also helps to
measure the success of the measures implemented as part of this AQAP, and thus acts
as an evidence base for the AQMA to be revoked once the monitoring shows

compliance with the AQS objective for which the AQMA was declared for.

Southend-on-Sea City Council Air Quadity Action Plan (2023-2027) 22

Bureau Veritas | C2 - Internal



Southend-on-Sea City Council

6 Development and Implementation of
Southend-on-Sea City Council’s AQAP

6.1 Consultation and Stakeholder Engagement

In developing this AQAP, Southend-on-Sea City Council have worked with other local
authorities, agencies, businesses and the local community to improve air quality.
Schedule 11 of the Environment Act 2021 requires local authorities to consult the
bodies listed in Table 6.1. The responses provided to Southend-on-Sea City Council’s
consultation stakeholder engagement on the development of this AQAP are given in

Appendix A.

Table 6.1 — Consultation Undertaken by Southend-on-Sea City Council

Consultee Consultation Undertaken

The Secretary of State Yes

The Environment Agency Yes
The highways authority Yes

All neighbouring local authorities Yes

Other public authorities as appropriate, such as Public Health

" Yes
officials

Bodies representing local business interests and other

e ! Yes
organisations as appropriate

Given the size and nature of the AQMA 2 Victoria Avenue, the above consultation is
considered appropriate, engaging with the relevant bodies as necessary. In addition,

Southend-on-Sea City Council also undertook the following stakeholder engagement:

e Public opinion via Southend-on-Sea City Council’s website.

e Letters distributed directly to households within AQMA 2 Victoria Avenue.

Southend-on-Sea City Council Air Quality Actisn Plan (2023-2027) 23

Bureau Veritas | C2 - Internal



Southend-on-Sea City Council

6.2 Steering Group

Once the AQAP has been adopted, a new Steering Group will be established, and will
be composed mainly of Southend-on-Sea City Council officers from those services with
an interest or potential impact on air quality. The Steering Group will also include those
who may have an influence on the measures being considered. The members of the

Steering Group will include:
e Senior officers from strategic transport planners;
e Local highway authorities;
e Land use planners;
e Environmental protection; and

¢ Climate Change officers.

It is the aim of this steering group to continue to communicate at regular intervals following
the adoption of the AQAP. This is essential to provide progress reports on individual
actions in relation to the AQAP measures, discuss any key lessons learnt from the
continual implementation of the measures and continue to discuss any new ideas in terms
of future measures and actions. Of upmost importance, the steering group should discuss
and reasons for why some actions are not working as effectively as intended or why some

actions are proving more difficult to implement than expected.

Southend-on-Sea City Council Air Quality Action Plan (2023-2027) 24

Bureau Veritas | C2 - Internal

47



Southend-on-Sea City Council

7 AQAP Measures

Through the development of the AQAP, a wide range of measures aimed at improving
air quality within AQMA 2 Victoria Avenue have been considered. It is important to note
that although the primary focus is on the AQMA, these measures should contribute to
improving air quality across wider areas of Southend-on-Sea and in AQMA 1 The Bell
Junction. TG(22) states that an AQAP should be adapted to every local situation and,
most importantly, should be seen as part of an integrated package of measures,

particularly in relation to linking with other key policy areas.

After having undertaken a source apportionment exercise to determine the vehicle
classes which are predominantly responsible for air pollution within the AQMA, the
resultant action measures contained within this AQAP are considered to be the most
effective. These measures are also the most feasible to implement and cost-effective
to pursue in terms of the potential air quality improvements within the AQMA and across
wider areas of Southend-on-Sea. Given that road traffic has been identified as the
principal source of NOxemissions and, therefore, NO2 concentrations within the AQMA,
the measures presented within Table 7.1 focus on the promotion of sustainable
transport, traffic management improvements and improving community awareness to

facilitate behavioural changes.
Table 7.1 shows the Southend-on-Sea City Council AQAP measures. It contains:
e Alist of the actions that form part of the plan;

e The responsible individual and departments/organisations who will deliver this

action;

e Estimated cost of implementing each action (overall cost and cost to the local

authority);

e Expected benefit in terms of pollutant emissions and/or concentration reduction,

where possible;
e The timescale for implementation; and

e How progress will be monitored.

NB: Please see future ASRs for regular annual updates on implementation of these

measures

Southend-on-Sea City Council Air Quality Actisn Plan (2023-2027) 25

Bureau Veritas | C2 - Internal



67

Table 7.1 — Air Quality Action Plan Measures

Southend-on-Sea City Council

Estimated ) Target
Estimated / .
Year . . Defra AQ . Estimated Reduction in Key Comments /
Measure Actual Organisations  Funding Funding Measure Progress to . .
Measure Category Classification Measure to Grant Cost of Pollutant / Performance Potential Barriers to
No. Completion Involved Source Status Status Date
be . Funding Measure Emission Indicator Implementation
ear
Introduced from Measure
Strategic Transport Policy
Basildon, Planning phase
o Regional Regional Brentwood, Aims to reduce air
Association of Transport Transport Castle Point Internal pollution and ensure
1 South Essex Planni d Planni d 2022 2022 Rochford ’ DT ’ No Funded £100k Implementation Indirect Internal PI ) ts in ai
Local Authorities anning an anning an ochford, Transport East improvements in air
Infrastructure Infrastructure Southend, and Transport quality
Thurrock Strategy
“A Better
Southend” Traffic
Better Management, Promoting .
2 Sustainable Transport Travel 2021 Ongoing SCC Internal No Funded £100k Implementation Indirect Internal KP2 Ongoing Corpoari:iir?nonty
Transport and Planning and Alternatives
Mobility Infrastructure
Management
Begﬁcri '}Il'fetaziocrks Traffic Transport Internal Not
3 Planning and 2022 Ongoing SCC ’ No Funded £1m Implementation o Internal KP2 Ongoing LTP3 priority action
Management Management DfT quantifiable
Infrastructure
Schemes
Better
Partnership,
Eg ggg:g;:'?it atr;d Transport Promoting Internal Not Complg fion of
4 b P Planning and Travel 2021 Ongoing scc ’ No Funded £50k Implementation h Projects Ongoing LTP priority action
Support Greater X External quantifiable
A Infrastructure Alternatives KP2
Efficiencies in
Funding and
Delivery
Better Operation
of Traffic
Control,
Information and
Communication UTC,
Systems ' Congestion .
; . Traffic . SCC, Internal, . Expected but . Corporate priority
5 |nc|u.d|ng Management Management, 2020 Ongoing Siemens DT No Funded £500k Ongoing not quantifiable Internal KP2 Ongoing action
Intelligent Traffic
Transport Reduction
Systems and
Urban Traffic
Management
Control (UTMC)
Southend-on-Sea City Council Air Quality Action Plan (2023-2027) 26

Bureau Veritas | C2 - Internal



Southend-on-Sea City Council

0§

Estimated . Target
Estimated / .
Year Defra AQ Estimated Reduction in Key Comments /
Measure Actual Organisations Funding Funding Measure Progress to . .
Measure Category Classification Measure to Grant Cost of Pollutant / Performance Potential Barriers to
No. Completion Involved Source Status Status . Date
be v Funding Measure Emission Indicator Implementation
ear
Introduced from Measure
A132tr7a'tAeQil\c/:lA Traffic uTe, cor'\wllceedr:;]r?t;on
Highw%y Management, Congestion SCC determined by | Completion of Modelling and Corporate priority
6 Transport Management, 2021 2022 ’ SCC, DfT No Funded £1m Completed : : monitoring of air )
Improvement, . . DfT modelling project . ) action
The Bell Planning and Traffic stud quality and traffic
! Infrastructure Reduction udy
Junction commissioned
Promote Traffic
Workplace, Management, Promoting SCC, . o
7 School and Transport Travel 2021 Ongoing Schools, SCC, DfT No Funded £50k Ongoing Indirect ac';/loor;ilgonnpe;qte Implementation Corpo;i:;r?nonty
Personalised Planning and Alternatives Businesses P
Travel Plans Infrastructure
Promoting Low SCC,
Forward Motion Emission, Promoting Essex
8 - SC?Uth Essex Sustainable Travel 2020 Ongoing Count)_/ Complletlon No Funded £3m Implementation Expectec_i .bUt Implementation Ongoing £3m fundlqg source
Active Travel Transport and ; Council, of projects not quantifiable secured in 2017
LS Alternatives
Project Travel Thurrock
Alternatives Council
Promote and Implemented via
Encouragel ' romoting Promoting SCC, Internal Not “Forward Motion”,
9 Cvelin agd Travel Travel 2019 Ongoing Local DfT ’ No Funded £500k Ongoing uantifiable Uptake levels Ongoing Cycle2Work, Trial a
yeling a Alternatives Alternatives Businesses q Mile, Forward Motion
Walking S
initiatives
. Alternatives to Promoting .
10 Promote Train Private Vehicle Travel 2020 Ongoing SCC, Internal, No Funded £100k Implementation N_o.t Uptake levels Ongoing “Implemented.vla"
Travel ; DfT DFT quantifiable Forward Motion
Use Alternatives
Encourage and Encourage and
11 Facilitate Home Promote '!'ravel Facilitate 2022 Ongoing SCC Internal No Funded £10k Implementation N.O.t Uptake levels Ongoing N/A
. Alternatives . quantifiable
Working Home Working
Encourage
Pouements” | atemaes o | POl | |
12 Section 106 Prlvatﬁs\éehlcle Alternatives, 2020 Ongoing SCC Internal No Funded £10k Ongoing quantifiable Uptake levels Ongoing N/A
Agreements and Car Clubs
Motion Hub
Procuring .
Promote Uptake Alternative L Proer\rllgrt]ltc;nal
f Sustainable Refuelling oW = a
0 . reduction in completed.
Transport such | Promoting Low | Infrastructures NO2
13 as Electric Emission to Promote 2021 Ongoing SCC Internal No Funded £50k Implementation . Uptake levels | Two EV charging N/A
. L concentrations .
Vehicles and Transport Low Emission f points installed.
Installation of EV Vehicles and 0.4-0 g m3 . .
Charging Points Electric Vehicle 400 Hgim | W?Lk'n.g with
Charing Points ocal businesses.
Southend-on-Sea City Council Air Quality Action Plan (2023-2027) 27

Bureau Veritas | C2 - Internal



TS

Southend-on-Sea City Council

Estimated . Target
Estimated / .
Year Defra AQ Estimated Reduction in Key Comments /
Measure Actual Organisations Funding Funding Measure Progress to . .
Measure Category Classification Measure to . Grant Cost of Pollutant / Performance Potential Barriers to
No. Completion Involved Source Status Status Date
be v Funding Measure Emission Indicator Implementation
ear
Introduced from Measure
Procuring
A
EIePcr?r\i/cISg:r;;or Promoting Low | Infrastructures redu,\fgc;n in Uptake and Two cars Lor?tl:mg ;? cl)?c(:;r:;se
14 Staff Business Emission to Pror.nof(e 2021 Ongoing SCC Internal No Funded £100k Implementation concentrations numper of curr_ently available to 5 cars
; Transport Low Emission vehicles available
and Private Use . of Green Fleet Strategy
Vehicles and 0.4-0.6 ug/m?
Electric Vehicle 40O Mg
Charing Points
Basic
Introduce Green Transport Promoting indicative air Number of
Zones outside . . SCC, . quality Adopted by 3 Schemes to be
15 Schools Elfa;ggtlpfctaur:cej Alt;—:r?;tei\l/es 2021 Ongoing Schools Internal No Funded £50k Implementation monitoring, - Izeonr;zited schools expanded
(‘School Streets’) remote P
sensors
Number of
Anti-ldling Zone , . Reductionin | fixed penalty
16 | introduced along Traffic Anti-ldiing 2023 Ongoing scc Internal No Funded | <£10k Planning NO2 notices issued Planning N/A
L Management Enforcement .
Victoria Avenue concentration NO2
concentration
Working with bus
Public Vehicle operators
. Percentage Number of
Bus Service Promoting Low Pr?f#;ﬁ?:i:t contribution of buses being throusgehn}.réz Bus
17 Improvement Emission Untake of ng 2023 Ongoing SCC Internal No Funded < £10k Planning bus fleet to Euro 6 with Im rov;ment N/A
Plan Transport plaxe o NO2 stop-start P
Emission concentrations technology Plan and
Vehicles Enhanced
Partnership
Land Use Planning
Secure Funding
for Air Quality
Action Planning,
Monitoring and
Initiatives aimed . . .
at Reducing Air GuidF;?:lc?ey and P/I:;r?irl:: lgﬁd Annual . .
18 Pollution Directly Devel t Poli 2021 Ongoi ’ SCC Internal No Funded £10k Implementation N/A N/A Implementation N/A
or Indirectly via e\ée o;t)mlen s '(c)j icy ngoing
Section 106 ontro uidance
Agreements and
the Community
Infrastructure
Levy
Policy
Promote Green Guidance and Green Funded, Not
19 Infrastructure Infrastructure, 2022 Ongoing SCC Internal No Partially £10k Implementation o Uptake Implementation N/A
L Development quantifiable
Initiatives Other Funded
Control
Southend-on-Sea City Council Air Quality Action Plan (2023-2027) 28

Bureau Veritas | C2 - Internal



4]

Southend-on-Sea City Council

Estimated _ Target
Estimated /
Year L . Defra AQ . Estimated Reduction in Key Comments /
Measure Actual Organisations  Funding Funding Measure Progress to
Measure Category Classification Measure to . Grant Cost of Pollutant / Performance Potential Barriers to
No. Completion Involved Source . Status Status . . Date .
be v Funding Measure Emission Indicator Implementation
Introduced from Measure
Connected and Smart
Full fibre technology
is in place, being
implemented by City
Fibre. The project to
provide full fibre to
. the home solution for
Intelligent Hub- Transport
20 Smart Planning and Other 2018 2018 scc intomal, No Funded £1m | Implementation Nt " C°rp|‘.’rate ; up o 64,000 homes
Connected Cities | Infrastructure quantiiable policy within Southend-on-
Sea is underway by
City Fibre in
partnership with
Vodafone, and due
for completion by
March 2021
Discussions Enable deployment
Internal around of loT solutions, such
Provision of Transport Local ’ Not Corporate participation in | as air quality sensors
21 Future Network Planning and Other 2021 2022 LPWAN PoC BUSI No Funded £1m Implementation ifiabl i an loT for LAs / or smart traffic
Technologies Infrastructure usIiness quantifiable policy mobile networks | management based
9 Consortium geme :
around 5G on real-time air
deployment quality data.
Public Health and Raising Awareness
Review of all
relevant
transport data
standards
Review of
Potential air parking data
quality impact within existing
low. This will systems
actas an
enabler for System / data-
smart parking flow mapping to | Ability to pull data
DfT APDS Smart| _ Transport SccC, services, understand the | from existing parking
22 Parking Proiect Planning and Other 2019 2022 ICT, Internal No Funded £50k potentially - - system systems and share
g ol Infrastructure Highways reducing the landscape publicly in an open
time veh_icles Best practice format
spenq either research
.Io.oklng, or including
idling whilst understanding of
wgltlng for how best-
parking spaces practice use
cases are
currently being
achieved (e.g.
utilising ANPR/
DVLA database)

Southend-on-Sea City Council Air Quality Action Plan (2023-2027) 29

Bureau Veritas | C2 - Internal



Southend-on-Sea City Council

€g

Estimated . Target
Estimated / .
Year L . Defra AQ Estimated Reduction in Key Comments /
Measure Actual Organisations Funding Funding Measure Progress to . .
Measure Category Classification Measure to . Grant Cost of Pollutant / Performance Potential Barriers to
No. Completion Involved Source Status Status Date
be Y. Funding Measure Emission Indicator Implementation
ear
Introduced from Measure
Implement
Domestic Solid
Fuel
Regulations.
Raising
Awareness with
regard to Air
Pollution in ) Updates at air
General (e.g. Promoting quality meetings
Domestic Sustainable Public Not and in annual Links to Defra and
23 Biomass Travel and Information 2021 Ongoing SCC Internal No Funded £10k Implementation quantifiable N/A public health SEAT Active Travel
Burners, Health Public Health report Plan
Effects, Travel Information P
Choices,
Behavioural
Changes etc) via
Social Media,
SCC’s Website,
and Clear
Message Health
Alerts
Raising Target low-cost
A\/lv_igzrins_sskof alternative and
Grouos via s Public Health linkage to GP
SociZI Mediég. Information on Public Not Introduce digital disease register
24 Live-Well Usmg.Alr Information 2021 Ongoing SCC Internal No Funded £10k Implementation quantifiable N/A _air qqallty
Southend and Quality information tool
Health Alerts Information Potential air quality
such as on Poor impact — behavioural
Air Quality Days change
Raise .
Awareness and |Eflé>kl)'lrlr?alt-i|0er?lghn Potential air quality
Provide Practical . . Public . . Not Social media . .
25 Guidance for Usmg.Alr Information 2021 Ongoing SCC Internal No Funded £10k Implementation quantifiable N/A campaigns impact — behavioural
Domestic Solid Quality change
Fuel Burning Information
=3 ti Uptake, school
vl Potential air participation in
Promote ; . SCC, quality impact campaigns
26 National Clean | Alternatives Public 2021 Annual, | b piic Schools,|  Internal N/A Funded £10k _ changing Not N/A Promoted GAP resources
) and Public Information Ongoing s quantifiable romote
Air Day Annually Health GAP yourhpeqple S through Clean
Campaign behaviour Air Hub — Your
Say Southend
Promote Global . .
Action Planning Policy Public sce Poﬁnt.'ril alrt Not Corgpltetl_zn
27 Clean Air Guidance . 2021 2022 ’ Internal No Funded £10k quality Impac o update in Planning N/A
Framework for | (Public Health) Information GAP — behavioural quantifiable annual public
Schools change health report
Southend-on-Sea City Council Air Quality Action Plan (2023-2027) 30

Bureau Veritas | C2 - Internal



https://yoursay.southend.gov.uk/clean-air-day-2022
https://yoursay.southend.gov.uk/clean-air-day-2022
https://yoursay.southend.gov.uk/clean-air-day-2022

1]

Southend-on-Sea City Council

Estimated . Target
Estimated /
Year Defra AQ Estimated Reduction in Key Comments /
Measure Actual Organisations Funding Funding Measure Progress to . .
Measure Category Classification Measure to Grant Cost of Pollutant / Performance Potential Barriers to
No. Completion Involved Source Status Status . Date
be v Funding Measure Emission Indicator Implementation
ear
Introduced from Measure
Climate Resilience and Sustainable Innovation
Implementation . . Climate resilience
. Policy . Not Adoption and . ’
28 of the _Green City Guidance Other 2021 2023 SCC Internal No Funded £10k Implementation quantifiable implementation Ongoing cool towns,_ _nature
Action Plan smart cities
Net Zero Policy . Not Adoption and .
29 Strategy Guidance Other 2022 2023 SCC Internal No Funded £10k Implementation quantifiable implementation Adoption N/A
Climate
30 Resilience and Policy Other 2023 2023 scc Internal No Funded £10k | Implementation Not _Adoptionand | Adoption and N/A
Urban Greening Guidance quantifiable implementation| implementation
Strategy
Policy : Pilot project
Guidance ﬁg#v(;alg”ct); (Launchpad) with | Business model has
been introduced over
Nature Smart . Interreg 2 green . . green ”
31 Cities Other 2019 2023 SCCandwider| " Seas and No Funded | >E10k | infrastructure | MOt Adoplionand | infrastucture 30 local authorities
(Interreg 2 Seas) SCC that has a q P h 9 di . . i
ositive impact t gbwdmg. improve air quality
P . . Business model across the U
on air quality L
finalised
Policy Delivery of
Guidance high quality Pilot project
Interreg 2 green . complete and
Cool Towns . Not Adoption and :
32 (Interreg 2 Seas) Other 2019 2022 SCC Seas and No Funded >£10k infrastructure quantifiable implementation community N/A
SCC that has a engagement
positive impact ongoing
on air quality
Apply for Green
Infrastructure
Funding Bids to Policy . .
. Level of Climate resilience,
33 help to.wa.rds Guidance and Other 2021 Ongoing SCC Funding No Funded £10k Implementation N_o.t Number of Ongoing cool towns,
Establishing Development quantifiable bids secured ”
Secured nature smart cities
Southend-on- Control
Sea as a ‘Nature
Smart City’
Southend-on-Sea City Council Air Quality Action Plan (2023-2027) 31

Bureau Veritas | C2 - Internal



ul
a1

Southend-on-Sea City Council

Appendix A: Response to Consultation

Length of Consultation

7 May - 12 August 2021

People Viewing Document

431

A
Responses to Consultation
183 (33 online)

No Response to Consultation

333

Key Questions:

1) Are any significant actions/initiatives already being undertaken
or committed to that could improve air quality? No = 76%

Majority answering no shows limited awareness. Of those saying yes, mention
of road improvements, such as ‘The Bell Junction’ and ‘Kent Elms Project.

3) Are any significant actions/initiatives missing that could improve
air quality? Yes = 91%

Suggested measures for inclusion included encourage uptake of EVs, better
cycle lanes, and preserving/enhancing the number of green spaces.

5) Are any of the actions listed within the AQAP no longer of any
relevance? Yes = 9%

Majority answering no indicates need for a range of new measures to be
considered as public feel current measures not working or are not applicable.

7) Are there any barriers that need to be overcome for us to take
up these measures in the plan? Yes = 70%

Barriers that need to be overcome included road infrastructure improvements
to ease traffic flow and public awareness of air quality issues is very low.

Southend-on-Sea City Council Air Quality Action Plan (2023-2027)

Bureau Veritas | C2 - Internal

32



99

Southend-on-Sea City Council
Appendix B: Reasons for Not Pursuing Action Plan Measures

Table B.1 — Action Plan Measures Not Pursued and the Reasons for that Decision

Action category Action description Reason action is not being pursued

Urban Innovation Action (UIA)

Sustainable Innovation Innovate Air Quality Initiatives

Funding Bid Unsuccessful

Public Health Health Impact Assessment Effective Alternative Exists

Southend-on-Sea City Council Air Quality Action Plan (2023-2027)
33

Bureau Veritas | C2 - Internal



Southend-on-Sea City Council

Glossary of Terms

Abbreviation Description

Air Quality Action Plan - A detailed description of measures,
outcomes, achievement dates and implementation methods,
AQAP
showing how the local authority intends to achieve air quality limit
values’
Air Quality Management Area — An area where air pollutant
concentrations exceed / are likely to exceed the relevant air quality
AQMA
objectives. AQMAs are declared for specific pollutants and
objectives
AQS Air Quality Strategy
ASR Air quality Annual Status Report
Defra Department for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs
EU European Union
HGV Heavy Goods Vehicles
LAQM Local Air Quality Management
LGV Large Goods Vehicles
NO2 Nitrogen Dioxide
NOx Nitrogen Oxides
Airborne particulate matter with an aerodynamic diameter of 10um
PM
" (micrometres or microns) or less
M Airborne particulate matter with an aerodynamic diameter of 2.5um
2.5
or less

Southend-on-Sea City Council Air Quality Action Plan (2023-2027)

57 34

Bureau Veritas | C2 - Internal



Southend-on-Sea City Council

References

e Local Air Quality Management Technical Guidance LAQM TG(22). August
2022. Published by Defra in partnership with the Scottish Government, Welsh
Assembly Government and Department of the Environment Northern Ireland.

e Local Air Quality Management Policy Guidance LAQM PG(22). August 2022.
Published by Defra in partnership with the Scottish Government, Welsh
Assembly Government and Department of the Environment Northern Ireland.

e Public Health England - Public Health Outcomes Framework (D01). Available

at: https://fingertips.phe.orqg.uk/profile/public-health-outcomes-framework

e Southend-on-Sea City Council Annual Status Report (2022). Published by
Southend-on-Sea City Council.

e Southend-on-Sea City Council Green City Action Plan (2021). Available at:
https://democracy.southend.gov.uk/documents/s42573/18%20-
%20Appendix%201%20-%20Green%20City%20Action%20Plan.pdf

Southend-on-Sea City Council Air Quality Action Plan (2023-2027)
58 35

Bureau Veritas | C2 - Internal


https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/public-health-outcomes-framework
https://democracy.southend.gov.uk/documents/s42573/18%20-%20Appendix%201%20-%20Green%20City%20Action%20Plan.pdf
https://democracy.southend.gov.uk/documents/s42573/18%20-%20Appendix%201%20-%20Green%20City%20Action%20Plan.pdf

SOUTHEND ON SEA BOROUGH COUNCIL

ENVIRONMENT ACT 1995, SECTION 83

Air Quality Management Area Order

Southend on Sea Borough Council ("The Council"), in exercise of the powers conferred upon it by

Section 83(1) of the Environment Act 1995, hereby makes the following Order.

1. This Order may be referred to as the Air Quality Management Area (Southend on Sea Borough
Council) (No.2) Order 2020 and shall come into effect on fO% /Vovqm]w( 1000

2. The effect of the Order is to designate an Air Quality Management Area ("the AQMA"), in respect of
the area shown edged purple on the plan in Schedule 1 which includes the properties listed in
Schedule 2 attached.

3. Where the AQMA includes any part of a property, it shall be taken to include the whole of that

property (buildings and associated open space) within the same curtilage.

4. This area is designated in relation to a likely breach of the Nitrogen Dioxide (NO2z) Annual Mean

Objective as specified in the Air Quality Regulations 2000.

5. This Order shall remain in force until it is varied or revoked by a subsequent Order.

The Common Seal of SOUTHEND-ON-SEA o
BOROUGH COUNCIL was hereto affixed DATED:|o /Vowrw.‘aw 202()

Un e ne Eﬁ % .
péee ' SIGNED: 7= ¢& .
6\4;3 \$ C" \g,{b—(l\ttesting Officer

Address for all communications:
Southend on Sea Borough Council, Civic Centre
Victoria Avenue, Southend, Essex SS2 6ER

Notes: A copy of this Order and associated plan have been deposited and may be seen, free of charge,
at the above address during normal working hours. It is also available on the Council's website
www.southend.gov.uk/airquality. Enquiries should be directed to Regulatory Services at the above
address, via telephone on 01702 215000 or else via the website.

59



Schedule 1

w?ug?ggg Air Quality Management Area 2
A Victoria Avenue, West/East Street, Fairafx Drive/Priory Crescent

" ——— BT
3

f \&= . - <) 52 z : f-_"' 3 \\’ ) \ \\

- [ ssc Proposed aaua *‘% == e P\l \\

’ e : = =t \ L — S B al 2 & B (/’\\\\i /\\\
mis St mey 100025 45T

Scale 1:4250

Page 2 of 16 60



Schedule 2

Air Quality Management Area (Southend-on-Sea Borough

ADDRESS

Mens Snooker Club St Marys Hall
Victoria Avenue Southend-On-Sea
Essex SS2 6NA

Bills Grills The Spread Eagle 263 - 267
Victoria Avenue Southend-On-Sea
Essex SS2 6NE

St Marys Hall Victoria Avenue
Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6NA

Church Hall Providence Baptist Chapel
East Street Southend-On-Sea Essex
SS2 6LH

St Marys Prittlewell C Of E Primary
School East Street Southend-On-Sea
Essex SS2 6LQ

Rear Of 9 West Street Southend-On-
Sea Essex SS2 6HH

Rear Of 279 Victoria Avenue Southend-
On-Sea Essex SS2 6NE

Rear Of 373 Victoria Avenue Southend- Stair Designs Essex

On-Sea Essex SS2 6NA

Unit 2 Roots Hall Avenue Southend-On-
Sea Essex SS2 6HN

East Rear Of Prittlewell House 30 East
Street Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2
6L.H

9A Fairfax Drive Westcliff-On-Sea
Essex SS0 9AG

12 West Street Southend-On-Sea
Essex SS2 6HJ

15 - 17 Fairfax Drive Westcliff-On-Sea
Essex SS0 9AG

Rooms 2 4 And 5 Prittlewell House 30
East Street Southend-On-Sea Essex
$S2 6LH

Rooms 7 And 7a Prittlewell House 30
East Street Southend-On-Sea Essex

Schedule 2 Page 1 of 5

ORGANISATION

Limited

Sainsbury's

Electronic Music

Services

Cash For Clothes

Room Escape

Southend

BMI Southend Hospital

LLars Davidsson

Consulting

International

61

Council) (No.2) Order 2020

CLASS

Commercial

Commercial

Commercial, Community
Services, Church Halls

Commercial, Community
Services, Church Halls

Commercial, Education,
Primary, Junior, Infants or
Middle School

Commercial, Industrial,
Workshops and Light
Industrial

Commercial, Industrial,
Workshops and Light
Industrial

Commercial, Industrial,
Workshops and Light
Industrial

Commercial, Industnial,
Workshops and Light
Industrial

Commercial, Industrial,
Warehouses, Stores and
Storage Depots

Commercial, Industrial,
Warehouses, Stores and
Storage Depots

Commercial, Leisure,
Indoor and outdoor leisure
and sporting activities

Commercial, Medical,
Hospitals and Hospices

Commercial, Medical,
Professional Medical
Services

Commercial, Offices,
Offices and Work Studios



SS2 6LH

Room 9 Prittlewell House 30 East
Street Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2
6LH

9 Fairfax Drive Westchff-On-Sea Essex
SS0 9AG

Room 1 Prittlewell House 30 East
Street Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2
6LH

Room 6 Prittlewell House 30 East
Street Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2
6LH

Rooms 8 And 8a Prittlewell House 30
East Street Southend-On-Sea Essex
SS2 6LH

Room 10 Prittlewell House 30 East
Street Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2
6LH

Clear Structures Ltd West Rear Of
Prittlewell House 30 East Street
Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6LH

Show Flat And Office At Prospects
Place 10 Fairfax Drive Westcliff-On-Sea
Essex SSO 9FR

19 West Street Southend-On-Sea
Essex SS2 6HH

Tanners Funeral Directors 26 East
Street Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2
6LH

Swan Hall 255 Victoria Avenue
Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 BNE

14 West Street Southend-On-Sea
Essex SS2 6HJ

The Blue Boar 177 Victoria Avenue
Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6EL

263 - 267 Victoria Avenue Southend-
On-Sea Essex SS2 B6NE

Golden Lion Public House 287 - 289
Victoria Avenue Southend-On-Sea
Essex SS2 6NE

11 East Street Southend-On-Sea Essex
SS2 6LQ

13 West Street Southend-On-Sea
Essex SS2 6HH

359 Victoria Avenue Southend-On-Sea
Essex SS2 6NH

372 Victoria Avenue Southend-On-Sea
Essex SS2 6NA

Bridal Boutique 376 Victoria Avenue
Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6NA

32 East Street Southend-On-Sea Essex Dragonfly Florist

Clear Structures Ltd

1st Call Premier Wills

Tanners Funeral
Directors

Leaders Limited

People's Chemist

Spread Eagle

The Fish House

Channy's Kitchen

Golden Locks Ltd

Bridal Boutique

Schedule 2 Page 2 of 5 62

Commercial, Offices,
Offices and Work Studios

Commercial, Offices,
Offices and Work Studios

Commercial, Offices,
Offices and Work Studios

Commercial, Offices,
Offices and Work Studios

Commercial, Offices,
Offices and Work Studios

Commercial, Offices,
Offices and Work Studios

Commercial, Offices,
Offices and Work Studios

Commercial, Offices,
Offices and Work Studios

Commercial, Retail, Retall
Service Agents

Commercial, Retail, Retail
Service Agents

Commercial, Retail, Retall
Service Agents

Commercial, Retail, Retail
Service Agents

Commercial, Retall, Pubs,
Bars and Nightclubs

Commercial, Retall, Pubs,
Bars and Nightclubs

Commercial, Retall, Pubs,
Bars and Nightclubs

Commercial, Retall,
Restaurants and Cafes

Commercial, Retall,
Restaurants and Cafes

Commercial, Retail, Shops
and Showrooms

Commercial, Retail, Shops
and Showrooms

Commercial, Retail, Shops
and Showrooms

Commercial, Retail, Shops



SS2 6LH

374 Victoria Avenue Southend-On-Sea
Essex SS2 6NA

275 Victoria Avenue Southend-On-Sea
Essex SS2 6NE

277 Victoria Avenue Southend-On-Sea
Essex SS2 6NE

343 Victoria Avenue Southend-On-Sea
Essex SS2 6NH

351 Victoria Avenue Southend-On-Sea
Essex SS2 6NH

257 - 259 Victoria Avenue Southend-
On-Sea Essex SS2 6NE

Spira 373 Victoria Avenue Southend-
On-Sea Essex SS2 6JL

9 West Street Southend-On-Sea Essex
SS2 6HH

82 Fairfax Drive Westcliff-On-Sea
Essex SS0 9AF

355 Victoria Avenue Southend-On-Sea
Essex SS2 6NH

106 Fairfax Drive Westcliff-On-Sea
Essex SS0O 9BH

6 West Street Southend-On-Sea Essex
SS2 6HJ

15 West Street Southend-On-Sea
Essex SS2 6HH

Shop 104 Fairfax Drive Westcliff-On-
Sea Essex SS0 9AF

7 West Street Southend-On-Sea Essex
SS2 6HH

8 West Street Southend-On-Sea Essex
SS2 6HJ

300 Victoria Avenue Southend-On-Sea
Essex SS2 6NA

11 West Street Southend-On-Sea
Essex SS2 6HH

Essex Barber 3 West Street Southend-
On-Sea Essex SS2 6HH

Happy House 21 West Street
Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6HH

Southend FC Shop 299 Victoria Avenue
Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6NE

10 West Street Southend-On-Sea
Essex SS2 6HJ

Ground Floor 16 - 22 West Street
Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6HJ

17 West Street Southend-On-Sea
Essex SS2 6HH

2A West Street Southend-On-Sea

Schedule 2 Page 3 of 5

Samsbury's

T CWong & Co
Leaders Limited
Spira

Habeeb Essentials
Bel Air Sub-Aqua

Sainsbury's

Meades Florist

Corner Supermarket
Desi Foods

Blow Hairdressers
Kindercare

Shiloh Beauty
Essex Barber
Happy House

Southend FC Shop
Gems Supporting

Great Ormond Street

Premier Stores

Sikall Recruitment
Limited

63

and Showrooms

Commercial, Retall, Shops
and Showrooms

Commercial, Retail, Shops
and Showrooms

Commercial, Retall, Shops
and Showrooms

Commercial, Retail, Shops
and Showrooms

Commercial, Retail, Shops
and Showrooms

Commercial, Retail, Shops
and Showrooms

Commercial, Retail, Shops
and Showrooms

Commercial, Retail, Shops
and Showrooms

Commercial, Retail, Shops
and Showrooms

Commercial, Retail, Shops
and Showrooms

Commercial, Retail, Shops
and Showrooms

Commercial, Retail, Shops
and Showrooms

Commercial, Retall, Shops
and Showrooms

Commercial, Retall, Shops
and Showrooms

Commercial, Retall, Shops
and Showrooms

Commercial, Retail, Shops
and Showrooms

Commercial, Retall, Shops
and Showrooms

Commercial, Retall, Shops
and Showrooms

Commercial, Retall, Shops
and Showrooms

Commercial, Retall, Shops
and Showrooms

Commercial, Retail, Shops
and Showrooms

Commercial, Retail, Shops
and Showrooms

Commercial, Retail, Shops
and Showrooms

Commercial, Retall, Shops
and Showrooms

Commercial, Retail, Shops



Essex SS2 8HJ

Room 3 Prittlewell House 30 East
Street Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2
6LH

Willam Hill Bookmakers 2 - 4 West
Street Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2
6HJ

363 Victoria Avenue Southend-On-Sea
Essex SS2 6NH

365 Victoria Avenue Southend-On-Sea
Essex SS2 6NH

Best Kebab 5 West Street Southend-
On-Sea Essex SS2 6HH

The Pizza Man 345 Victoria Avenue
Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6NH

117A Fairfax Drive Westcliff-On-Sea
Essex SS0 9BQ

316 Victoria Avenue Southend-On-Sea
Essex SS2 6NA

320 Victoria Avenue Southend-On-Sea
Essex SS2 6NA

28A East Street Southend-On-Sea
Essex SS2 6LH

54 East Street Southend-On-Sea Essex
SS2 6LH

56 East Street Southend-On-Sea Essex
SS2 6LH

70 Fairfax Drive Westcliff-On-Sea
Essex SS0 9AF

119 Fairfax Drive Westcliff-On-Sea
Essex SS0 9BQ

96 Shakespeare Drive Westcliff-On-Sea
Essex SS0 9AE

312 Victoria Avenue Southend-On-Sea
Essex SS2 6NA

318 Victoria Avenue Southend-On-Sea
Essex SS2 6NA

338 Victoria Avenue Southend-On-Sea
Essex SS2 6NA

The Coach House 36 Roots Hall
Avenue Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2
6HN

28 East Street Southend-On-Sea Essex
SS2 6LH

388 Victoria Avenue Southend-On-Sea
Essex SS2 6NB

390 Victoria Avenue Southend-On-Sea
Essex SS2 6NB

6 Priory Crescent Southend-On-Sea
Essex SS2 6JX

8 Priory Crescent Southend-On-Sea

Schedule 2 Page 4 of 5

Hottwerk Ltd

Willam Hill
Bookmakers

Super Pizza

Himalaya Punjab

Best Kebab

The Pizza Man

64

and Showrooms

Commercial, Retail, Other
Licensed Premises/
Vendors

Commercial, Retall, Other
Licensed Premises/
Vendors

Commercial, Retall, Fast
food Outlets/ Takeaways

Commercial, Retail, Fast
food Outlets/ Takeaways

Commercial, Retall, Fast
food Outlets/ Takeaways

Commercial, Retail, Fast
food Outlets/ Takeaways

Residential, Dwellings,
Detached

Residential, Dwellings,
Detached

Residential, Dwellings,
Detached

Residential, Dwellings,
Detached

Residential, Dwellings,
Detached

Residential, Dwellings,
Detached

Residential, Dwellings,
Detached

Residential, Dwellings,
Detached

Residential, Dwellings,
Detached

Residential, Dwellings,
Detached

Residential, Dwellings,
Detached

Residential, Dwellings,
Detached

Residential, Dwellings,
Detached

Residential, Dwellings,
Detached

Residential, Dwellings,
Semi-Detached

Residential, Dwellings,
Semi-Detached

Residential, Dwellings,
Semi-Detached

Residential, Dwellings,



Essex SS2 6JX

10 Priory Crescent Southend-On-Sea
Essex SS2 6JX

12 Priory Crescent Southend-On-Sea
Essex SS2 6JX

1 St Mary's Road Southend-On-Sea
Essex SS2 6JR

50 East Street Southend-On-Sea Essex
SS2 B6LH

52 East Street Southend-On-Sea Essex
SS2 6LH

59 Fairfax Drive Westcliff-On-Sea
Essex SS0O 9AG

49 Fairfax Drive Westchff-On-Sea
Essex SS0 9AG

51 Fairfax Drive Westcliff-On-Sea
Essex SS0 9AG

53 Fairfax Drive Westchff-On-Sea
Essex SS0O 9AG

55 Fairfax Drive Westcliff-On-Sea
Essex SSO 9AG

57 Fairfax Drive Westcliff-On-Sea
Essex SS0 9AG

279 Victoria Avenue Southend-On-Sea
Essex SS2 6NE

61 East Street Southend-On-Sea Essex
SS286LQ

59 East Street Southend-On-Sea Essex
SS286LQ

36 East Street Southend-On-Sea Essex
SS2 6LH

340 Victoria Avenue Southend-On-Sea
Essex SS2 6NA

105 Fairfax Drive Westclff-On-Sea
Essex SSO 9BQ

96 Fairfax Drive Westcliff-On-Sea
Essex SSO SAF

98 Fairfax Drive Westcliff-On-Sea
Essex SSO 9AF

100 Fairfax Drive Westcliff-On-Sea
Essex SSO 9AF

102 Fairfax Drive Westcliff-On-Sea
Essex SSO SAF

111 Fairfax Drive Westcliff-On-Sea
Essex SS0O 9BQ

114 Fairfax Drive Westcliff-On-Sea
Essex SS0O 9BH

86 Fairfax Drive Westcliff-On-Sea
Essex SS0O 9AF

88 Fairfax Drive Westcliff-On-Sea

Schedule 2 Page 5 of 5 65

Semi-Detached

Residential, Dwellings,
Semi-Detached

Residential, Dwellings,
Semi-Detached

Residential, Dwellings,
Semi-Detached

Residential, Dwellings,
Semi-Detached

Residential, Dwellings,
Semi-Detached

Residential, Dwellings,
Semi-Detached

Residential, Dwellings,
Semi-Detached

Residential, Dwellings,
Semi-Detached

Residential, Dwellings,
Semi-Detached

Residential, Dwellings,
Semi-Detached

Residential, Dwellings,
Semi-Detached

Residential, Dwellings,
Semi-Detached

Residential, Dwellings,
Semi-Detached

Residential, Dwellings,
Semi-Detached

Residential, Dwellings,
Semi-Detached

Residential, Dwellings,
Terraced

Residential, Dwellings,
Terraced

Residential, Dwellings,
Terraced

Residential, Dwellings,
Terraced

Residential, Dwellings,
Terraced

Residential, Dwellings,
Terraced

Residential, Dwellings,
Terraced

Residential, Dwellings,
Terraced

Residential, Dwellings,
Terraced

Residential, Dwellings,



Essex SSO 9AF

90 Fairfax Drive Westcliff-On-Sea
Essex SS0 9AF

118 Fairfax Drive Westcliff-On-Sea
Essex SS0O 9BH

120 Fairfax Drive Westcliff-On-Sea
Essex SS0 9BH

92 Fairfax Drive Westcliff-On-Sea
Essex SS0 9AF

271 Victoria Avenue Southend-On-Sea
Essex SS2 6NE

342 Victoria Avenue Southend-On-Sea
Essex SS2 6NA

364 Victoria Avenue Southend-On-Sea
Essex SS2 6NA

60 Fairfax Drive Westcliff-On-Sea
Essex SS0 9AF

61 Fairfax Drive Westcliff-On-Sea
Essex SS0 9AG

62 Fairfax Drive Westcliff-On-Sea
Essex SSO 9AF

72 Fairfax Drive Westcliff-On-Sea
Essex SS0 9AF

74 Fairfax Drive Westcliff-On-Sea
Essex SSO 9AF

76 Fairfax Drive Westcliff-On-Sea
Essex SSO 9AF

84 Fairfax Drive Westcliff-On-Sea
Essex SS0 9AF

42 Fanfax Drive Westclff-On-Sea
Essex SSO 9AF

46 Fairfax Drive Westcliff-On-Sea
Essex SSO 9AF

54 Fairfax Drive Westcliff-On-Sea
Essex SS0 9AF

56 Fairfax Drive Westcliff-On-Sea
Essex SS0 9AF

58 Fairfax Drive Westchff-On-Sea
Essex SS0 9AF

273 Victoria Avenue Southend-On-Sea
Essex SS2 6NE

75 Fairfax Drive Westcliff-On-Sea
Essex SS0 9AG

113 Fairfax Drive Westcliff-On-Sea
Essex SS0 9BQ

116 Fairfax Drive Westcliff-On-Sea
Essex SS0O 9BH

117 Fairfax Drive Westcliff-On-Sea
Essex SS0 9BQ

67 Fairfax Drive Westcliff-On-Sea

Schedule 2 Page 6 of 5 66

Terraced

Residential, Dwellings,
Terraced

Residential, Dwellings,
Terraced

Residential, Dwellings,
Terraced

Residential, Dwellings,
Terraced

Residential, Dwellings,
Terraced

Residential, Dwellings,
Terraced

Residential, Dwellings,
Terraced

Residential, Dwellings,
Terraced

Residential, Dwellings,
Terraced

Residential, Dwellings,
Terraced

Residential, Dwellings,
Terraced

Residential, Dwellings,
Terraced

Residential, Dwellings,
Terraced

Residential, Dwellings,
Terraced

Residential, Dwellings,
Terraced

Residential, Dwellings,
Terraced

Residential, Dwellings,
Terraced

Residential, Dwellings,
Terraced

Residential, Dwellings,
Terraced

Residential, Dwellings,
Terraced

Residential, Dwellings,
Terraced

Residential, Dwellings,
Terraced

Residential, Dwellings,
Terraced

Residential, Dwellings,
Terraced

Residential, Dwellings,



Essex SS0O 9AG

73 Fairfax Drive Westcliff-On-Sea
Essex SS0O 9AG

269 Victoria Avenue Southend-On-Sea
Essex SS2 6NE

40 Fairfax Drive Westcliff-On-Sea
Essex SSO SAF

44 Fairfax Drive Westcliff-On-Sea
Essex SSO 9AF

63 Fairfax Drive Westcliff-On-Sea
Essex SSO 9AG

64 Farrfax Drive Westcliff-On-Sea
Essex SSO 9AF

344 Victoria Avenue Southend-On-Sea
Essex SS2 6NA

360 Victoria Avenue Southend-On-Sea
Essex SS2 6NA

362 Victoria Avenue Southend-On-Sea
Essex SS2 6NA

366 Victoria Avenue Southend-On-Sea
Essex SS2Z2 6NA

368 Victoria Avenue Southend-On-Sea
Essex SS2 6NA

34 East Street Southend-On-Sea Essex
SS2 6LH

365A Victoria Avenue Southend-On-
Sea Essex SS2 6NH

155A Victoria Avenue Southend-On-
Sea Essex SS2 6EL

23A West Street Southend-On-Sea
Essex SS2 6HH

93 Fairfax Drive Westcliff-On-Sea
Essex SS0 9AG

95 Fairfax Drive Westchiff-On-Sea
Essex SSO 9AG

97 Fairfax Drive Westcliff-On-Sea
Essex SSO 9AG

99 Fairfax Drive Westcliff-On-Sea
Essex SS0 9AG

101 Fairfax Drive Westcliff-On-Sea
Essex SS0O 9AG

107A Fairfax Drive Westcliff-On-Sea
Essex SS0O 9BQ

115A Fairfax Drive Westcliff-On-Sea
Essex SS0 9BQ

77 Fairfax Drive Westcliff-On-Sea
Essex SS0 9AG

81 Fairfax Drive Westcliff-On-Sea
Essex SS0 9AG

85 Fairfax Drive Westcliff-On-Sea

Schedule 2 Page 7 of 5 67

Terraced

Residential, Dwellings,
Terraced

Residential, Dwellings,
Terraced

Residential, Dwellings,
Terraced

Residential, Dwellings,
Terraced

Residential, Dwellings,
Terraced

Residential, Dwellings,
Terraced

Residential, Dwellings,
Terraced

Residential, Dwellings,
Terraced

Residential, Dwellings,
Terraced

Residential, Dwellings,
Terraced

Residential, Dwellings,
Terraced

Residential, Dwellings,
Terraced

Residential, Dwellings, Flat
Residential, Dwellings, Flat
Residential, Dwellings, Flat
Residential, Dwellings, Flat
Residential, Dwellings, Flat
Residential, Dwellings, Flat
Residential, Dwellings, Flat
Residential, Dwellings, Flat
Residential, Dwellings, Flat
Residential, Dwellings, Fiat
Residential, Dwellings, Flat

Residential, Dwellings, Flat

Residential, Dwellings, Flat



Essex SS0 9AG

91 Fairfax Drive Westcliff-On-Sea
Essex SS0 9AG

Flat A 350 Victoria Avenue Southend-
On-Sea Essex SS2 6NA

Flat B 350 Victoria Avenue Southend-
On-Sea Essex SS2 6NA

Flat C 350 Victoria Avenue Southend-
On-Sea Essex SS2 6NA

Flat D 350 Victoria Avenue Southend-
On-Sea Essex SS2 6NA

Flat E 350 Victoria Avenue Southend-
On-Sea Essex SS2 6NA

Flat F 350 Victoria Avenue Southend-
On-Sea Essex SS2 6NA

91 Gainsborough Drive Westcliff-On-
Sea Essex SSO OSN

Lower Flat 32 East Street Southend-
On-Sea Essex SS2 6LH

89 Gainsborough Drive Westcliff-On-
Sea Essex SS0 OSN

115 Fairfax Drive Westclff-On-Sea
Essex SS0 9BQ

306 Victoria Avenue Southend-On-Sea
Essex SS2 6NA

310 Victoria Avenue Southend-On-Sea
Essex SS2 6NA

341 Victoria Avenue Southend-On-Sea
Essex SS2 6NH

349 Victoria Avenue Southend-On-Sea
Essex SS2 6NH

357 Victoria Avenue Southend-On-Sea
Essex SS2 6NH

370A Victornia Avenue Southend-On-
Sea Essex SS2 6NA

370 Victoria Avenue Southend-On-Sea
Essex SS2 6NA

7A West Street Southend-On-Sea
Essex SS2 6HH

9A West Street Southend-On-Sea
Essex SS2 6HH

13A West Street Southend-On-Sea
Essex SS2 6HH

17A West Street Southend-On-Sea
Essex SS2 6HH

23 West Street Southend-On-Sea
Essex SS2 6HH

1 St Marys Court Victornia Avenue
Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6NF

3 St Marys Court Victoria Avenue

Schedule 2 Page 8 of 5

68

Residential, Dwellings, Flat
Residential, Dwellings, Flat
Residential, Dwellings, Flat
Residential, Dwellings, Flat
Residential, Dwellings, Flat
Restidential, Dwellings, Flat
Residential, Dwellings, Flat
Residential, Dwellings, Flat
Residential, Dwellings, Flat
Residential, Dwellings, Flat
Residential, Dwellings, Flat
Residential, Dwellings, Flat
Residential, Dwellings, Flat
Residential, Dwellings, Flat
Residential, Dwellings, Flat
Residential, Dwellings, Flat
Residential, Dwellings, Flat
Residential, Dwellings, Flat
Residential, Dwellings, Flat
Residential, Dwellings, Flat
Residential, Dwellings, Flat
Residential, Dwellings, Flat
Residential, Dwellings, Flat

Residential, Dwellings, Flat

Residential, Dwellings, Flat



Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6NF

5 St Marys Court Victoria Avenue

Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6NF
6 St Marys Court Victoria Avenue

Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6NF
8 St Marys Court Victoria Avenue

Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6NF
10 St Marys Court Victoria Avenue
Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6NF
12 St Marys Court Victoria Avenue
Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6NF
15 St Marys Court Victoria Avenue
Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6NF
17 St Marys Court Victoria Avenue
Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6NF
19 St Marys Court Victoria Avenue
Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6NF
21 St Marys Court Victoria Avenue
Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6NF
23 St Marys Court Victoria Avenue
Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6NF
25 St Marys Court Victoria Avenue
Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6NF
27 St Marys Court Victoria Avenue
Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6NF
29 St Marys Court Victoria Avenue
Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6NF
32 St Marys Court Victoria Avenue
Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6NF
36 St Marys Court Victoria Avenue
Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6NF

1 Stable Mews Victoria Avenue
Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6WR

3 Stable Mews Victoria Avenue
Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6WR

5 Stable Mews Victoria Avenue
Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6WR
7 Stable Mews Victoria Avenue
Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6\WR
9 Stable Mews Victoria Avenue
Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6\WR
11 Stable Mews Victoria Avenue
Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6WR
12 Stable Mews Victoria Avenue
Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6WR

32A East Street Southend-On-Sea
Essex SS2 6LH

Staff Accomodation The Spread Eagle
Public House 263 - 267 Victona Avenue

Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6NH

Schedule 2 Page 9 of 5

Residential, Dwellings, Flat
Residential, Dwellings, Flat
Residential, Dwellings, Flat
Residential, Dwellings, Flat
Residential, Dwellings, Flat
Residential, Dwellings, Flat
Residential, Dwellings, Flat
Residential, Dwellings, Flat
Residential, Dwellings, Flat
Residential, Dwellings, Flat
Residential, Dwellings, Flat
Residential, Dwellings, Flat
Residential, Dwellings, Flat
Residential, Dwellings, Flat
Residential, Dwellings, Flat
Residential, Dwellings, Flat
Residential, Dwellings, Flat
Residential, Dwellings, Flat
Residential, Dwellings, Flat
Residential, Dwellings, Flat
Residential, Dwellings, Flat
Residential, Dwellings, Flat

Residential, Dwellings, Flat

Residential, Dwellings, Flat



Lower Flat 65 Fairfax Drive Westcliff-
On-Sea Essex SSO 9AG

Upper Flat 65 Fairfax Drive Westcliff-
On-Sea Essex SS0 9AG

4A West Street Southend-On-Sea
Essex SS2 6HJ

Flat Above 11 East Street Southend-
On-Sea Essex SS2 6L.Q

48 Fairfax Drive Westchff-On-Sea
Essex SS0 9AF

Flat 2 The Blue Boar Public House 177

Victoria Avenue Southend-On-Sea
Essex SS2 6EQ

Flat 4 The Blue Boar Public House 177

Victoria Avenue Southend-On-Sea
Essex SS2 6EQ

1 Reynolds House West Street
Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6WY

3 Reynolds House West Street
Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6WY

5 Reynolds House West Street
Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6WY

7 Reynolds House West Street
Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6WY

8 Reynolds House West Street
Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6WY

9A East Street Southend-On-Sea
Essex SS2 6LQ

B6A West Street Southend-On-Sea
Essex SS2 6HJ

9B East Street Southend-On-Sea
Essex SS2 6LQ

79 Fairfax Drive Westcliff-On-Sea
Essex SS0 9AG

83 Fairfax Drive Westcliff-On-Sea
Essex SS0 9AG

87 Fairfax Drive Westcliff-On-Sea
Essex SS0 9AG

89 Fairfax Drive Westcliff-On-Sea
Essex SS0 9AG

107 Fairfax Drive Westcliff-On-Sea
Essex SS0 9BQ

109 Fairfax Drive Westcliff-On-Sea
Essex SS0 9BQ

101 Gainsborough Drive Westcliff-On-
Sea Essex SS0 OSN

109A Fairfax Drive Westcliff-On-Sea
Essex SS0 9BQ

93 Gainsborough Drive Westcliff-On-
Sea Essex SSO OSN

77 A Fairfax Drive Westcliff-On-Sea

Schedule 2 Page 10 of 5

70

Residential, Dwellings, Flat
Residential, Dwellings, Flat
Residential, Dwellings, Flat
Residential, Dwellings, Flat

Residential, Dwellings, Flat

Residential, Dwellings, Flat

Residential, Dwellings, Flat

Residential, Dwellings, Flat
Residential, Dwellings, Flat
Residential, Dwellings, Flat
Residential, Dwellings, Flat
Residential, Dwellings, Flat
Residential, Dwellings, Flat
Residential, Dwellings, Flat
Residential, Dwellings, Flat
Residential, Dwellings, Flat
Residential, Dwellings, Flat
Residential, Dwellings, Flat
Residential, Dwellings, Flat
Residential, Dwellings, Flat
Residential, Dwellings, Flat
Residential, Dwellings, Flat
Residential, Dwellings, Flat

Residential, Dwellings, Flat

Residential, Dwellings, Flat



Essex SS0 9AG

4 Tudor Mews Southend-On-Sea Essex
SS2 6AU

5 Tudor Mews Southend-On-Sea Essex
SS2 6AU

Staff Accomodation Golden Lion 287 -
289 Victoria Avenue Southend-On-Sea
Essex SS2 6NE

3A West Street Southend-On-Sea
Essex SS2 6HH

11A West Street Southend-On-Sea
Essex SS2 6HH

19A West Street Southend-On-Sea
Essex SS2 6HH

Flat Above 104 Faifax Drive Westchff-
On-Sea Essex SS0 9AF

82A Farirfax Drive Westcliff-On-Sea
Essex SSO 9AF

372A Victoria Avenue Southend-On-
Sea Essex SS2 6NA

155 Victoria Avenue Southend-On-Sea
Essex SS2 6EL

48A Fairfax Drive Westcliff-On-Sea
Essex SS0O 9AF

345A Victoria Avenue Southend-On-
Sea Essex SS2 6NH

374A Victoria Avenue Southend-On-
Sea Essex SS2 6NA

310A Victoria Avenue Southend-On-
Sea Essex SS2 6NA

Flat 1 The Blue Boar Public House 177
Victoria Avenue Southend-On-Sea
Essex $S2 6EQ

Flat 3 The Blue Boar Public House 177
Victoria Avenue Southend-On-Sea
Essex SS2 6EQ

Flat 5 The Blue Boar Public House 177
Victoria Avenue Southend-On-Sea
Essex SS2 6EQ

21A West Street Southend-On-Sea
Essex SS2 6HH

5A West Street Southend-On-Sea
Essex SS2 6HH

15A West Street Southend-On-Sea
Essex SS2 6HH

2 Stable Mews Victoria Avenue
Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6WR

4 Stable Mews Victoria Avenue
Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6WR

6 Stable Mews Victoria Avenue
Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6WR

Schedule 2 Page 11 of 5 1

Residential, Dwellings, Flat

Residential, Dwellings, Flat

Residential, Dwellings, Flat

Residential, Dwellings, Flat
Residential, Dwellings, Flat
Residential, Dwellings, Flat
Residential, Dwellings, Flat
Residential, Dwellings, Fiat
Residential, Dwellings, Flat
Residential, Dwellings, Flat
Residential, Dwellings, Flat
Residential, Dwellings, Flat
Residential, Dwellings, Flat

Residential, Dwellings, Flat

Residential, Dwellings, Flat

Residential, Dwellings, Flat

Residential, Dwellings, Flat

Residential, Dwellings, Flat
Residential, Dwellings, Flat
Residential, Dwellings, Flat
Residential, Dwellings, Flat
Residential, Dwellings, Flat

Residential, Dwellings, Flat



8 Stable Mews Victoria Avenue
Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6WR

10 Stable Mews Victoria Avenue
Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6WR

261 Victoria Avenue Southend-On-Sea

Essex SS2 6NE

257A Victoria Avenue Southend-On-
Sea Essex SS2 6NE

2 Reynolds House West Street
Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6WY

4 Reynolds House West Street
Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6WY

6 Reynolds House West Street
Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6WY

9 Reynolds House West Street
Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6WY

2 St Marys Court Victoria Avenue
Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6NF

4 St Marys Court Victoria Avenue
Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6NF

7 St Marys Court Victoria Avenue
Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6NF

9 St Marys Court Victoria Avenue
Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6NF

11 St Marys Court Victoria Avenue
Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6NF

14 St Marys Court Victoria Avenue
Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6NF

16 St Marys Court Victoria Avenue
Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6NF

18 St Marys Court Victoria Avenue
Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6NF

20 St Marys Court Victoria Avenue
Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6NF

22 St Marys Court Victoria Avenue
Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6NF

24 St Marys Court Victoria Avenue
Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6NF

26 St Marys Court Victoria Avenue
Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6NF

30 St Marys Court Victoria Avenue
Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6NF

33 St Marys Court Victoria Avenue
Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6NF

35 St Marys Court Victoria Avenue
Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6NF

37 St Marys Court Victoria Avenue
Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6NF

28 St Marys Court Victoria Avenue
Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6NF

Schedule 2 Page 12 of 5

72

Residential, Dwellings, Flat
Residential, Dwellings, Flat
Residential, Dwellings, Flat
Residential, Dwellings, Flat
Residential, Dwellings, Flat
Residential, Dwellings, Flat
Residential, Dwellings, Flat
Residential, Dwellings, Flat
Residential, Dwellings, Flat
Residential, Dwellings, Flat
Residential, Dwellings, Flat
Residential, Dwellings, Flat
Residential, Dwellings, Flat
Residential, Dwellings, Flat
Residential, Dwellings, Flat
Residential, Dwellings, Flat
Residential, Dwellings, Flat
Residential, Dwellings, Flat
Residential, Dwellings, Flat
Residential, Dwellings, Flat
Residential, Dwellings, Flat
Residential, Dwellings, Flat
Residential, Dwellings, Flat
Residential, Dwellings, Flat

Residential, Dwellings, Flat



34 St Marys Court Victoria Avenue
Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6NF

31 St Marys Court Victoria Avenue
Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6NF

32B East Street Southend-On-Sea
Essex SS2 6LH

Flat At Rear Of 279 Victoria Avenue
Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6NE

3 Tudor Mews Southend-On-Sea Essex
SS2 6AU

2 Tudor Mews Southend-On-Sea Essex
SS2 6AU

353 Victoria Avenue Southend-On-Sea
Essex SS2 6NH

Flat 1 Roots Hall House 10 - 22 West
Street Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2
6HJ

Flat 2 Roots Hall House 10 - 22 West
Street Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2
6HJ

Flat 3 Roots Hall House 10 - 22 West
Street Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2
6HJ

Flat 4 Roots Hall House 10 - 22 West
Street Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2
6HJ

Flat 5 Roots Hall House 10 - 22 West
Street Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2
6HJ

Flat 6 Roots Hall House 10 - 22 West
Street Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2
6HJ

Flat 7 Roots Hall House 10 - 22 West
Street Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2
6HJ

Flat 8 Roots Hall House 10 - 22 West
Street Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2
6HJ

Flat 9 Roots Hall House 10 - 22 West
Street Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2
6HJ

Flat 10 Roots Hall House 10 - 22 West
Street Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2
6HJ

Flat 11 Roots Hall House 10 - 22 West
Street Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2
6HJ

Flat 12 Roots Hall House 10 - 22 West
Street Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2
6HJ

Flat 13 Roots Hall House 10 - 22 West
Street Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2

Schedule 2 Page 13 of 5 73

Residential, Dwellings, Flat
Residential, Dwellings, Flat
Residential, Dwellings, Flat
Residential, Dwellings, Flat
Residential, Dwellings, Flat
Residential, Dwellings, Flat

Residential, Dwellings, Flat

Residential, Dwellings, Flat

Residential, Dwellings, Flat

Residential, Dwellings, Flat

Residential, Dwellings, Flat

Residential, Dwellings, Flat

Residential, Dwellings, Flat

Restdential, Dwellings, Flat

Residential, Dwellings, Flat

Residential, Dwellings, Flat

Residential, Dwellings, Flat

Residential, Dwellings, Flat

Residential, Dwellings, Flat

Residential, Dwellings, Flat



6HJ

Flat 14 Roots Hall House 10 - 22 West
Street Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2
6HJ

Flat 36 Prospects Place 10 Fairfax
Drive Westcliff-On-Sea Essex SS0 9FR

Flat 37 Prospects Place 10 Fairfax
Drive Westcliff-On-Sea Essex SS0 9FR

Flat 38 Prospects Place 10 Fairfax
Drive Westcliff-On-Sea Essex SS0 9FR

Flat 39 Prospects Place 10 Fairfax
Drive Westcliff-On-Sea Essex SS0 9FR

Schedule 2 Page 14 of 5

74

Residential, Dwellings, Flat

Residential, Dwellings, Flat
Residential, Dwellings, Flat
Residential, Dwellings, Flat

Residential, Dwellings, Flat



SOUTHEND ON SEA BOROUGH COUNCIL

ENVIRONMENT ACT 1995, SECTION 83

Air Quality Management Area Order

Southend on Sea Borough Council ("The Council"), in exercise of the powers conferred upon
it by Section 83(1) of the Environment Act 1995, hereby makes the following Order.

1. This Order may be referred to as the Air Quality Management Area (Southend on Sea
Borough Council) (No.1) Order 2016 and shall come into effect on 7" November 2016.
The Cabinet confirmed the making of this Order on 20" September 2016 (Minute 276
refers) and this was noted at Council on 20" October 2016 (Minute 400 refers).

2. The effect of the Order is to designate an Air Quality Management Area ("the AQMA"), in
respect of the area shown edged green on the plan in Schedule 1 which includes the

properties listed in Schedule 2 attached.

3. Where the AQMA includes any part of a property, it shall be taken to include the whole of
that property (buildings and associated open space) within the same curtilage.

4. This AQMA is designated in relation to a likely breach of the Nitrogen Dioxide (NO,)
Annual Mean Objective as specified in the Air Quality Regulations 2000.

5. This Order shall remain in force until it is varied or revoked by a subsequent Order.

The Common Seal of Southend on
Sea Borough Council was hereto affixed in the presence of:

Qe

Proper Officer

Address for !f'cmfcaz‘fons: ~
Southend©n Sea Borough Council, Civic Centre CQ 3 / /6
Victoria Avenue, Southend, Essex SS2 6ER

Notes: A copy of this Order and associated schedules may be seen, free of charge, at the
above address during normal working hours. It is also available on the Council's website
www.southend.gov.uk/airquality. Enquiries should be directed to Customer Services at the
above address, via telephone on 01702 215000 or else via the website.

75



| 8|Npayos

oSz

\

SO8 L0001 AAIE SR (LI SUED SERGIED S i A o)
o )

£A6n gome
ANOWOD) PUD ZON
e

9102 4opJO (I "ON) lounod ybnoiog Bag uo puUsyYINog
ealy Juswabeueyy Anenp iy u:!::g



Schedule 2

Air Quality Management Area (Southend on Sea Borough

Council) (No.1) Order 2016

8 Bell Walk Southend-On-Sea Essex S52 6GU

7 Earls Hall Parade Southend-On-Sea Essex S52 6NW

12 Earls Hall Parade Southend-On-Sea Essex S52 6NW

6 Earls Hall Parade Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6NW

11 Earls Hall Parade Southend-On-Sea Essex S52 6NW

10 Earls Hall Parade Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6NW

3 Earls Hall Parade Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6NW

9 Earls Hall Parade Southend-On-Sea Essex S52 6NW

Commercial premises at 4 - 5 Earls Hall Parade Southend-On-Sea Essex S52 6NW
Commercial premises at 8 Earls Hall Parade Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6NW
Commercial premises at 1-2 Earls Hall Parade Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6NW
4A Earls Hall Parade Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6NW

5A Earls Hall Parade Southend-On-Sea Essex S52 6NW

10A Earls Hall Parade Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6NW

1A Earls Hall Parade Southend-On-Sea Essex $S2 6NW

6A Earls Hall Parade Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6NW

9A Earls Hall Parade Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6NW

Flat At 12 Earls Hall Parade Southend-On-Sea Essex $52 6NW

2A Earls Hall Parade Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6NW

3A Earls Hall Parade Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6NW

8A Earls Hall Parade Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6NW

7A Earls Hall Parade Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6NW

11A Earls Hall Parade Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6NW

143A Hobleythick Lane Westcliff-On-Sea Essex SSO ORL

Commercial premises 138 Hobleythick Lane Westcliff-On-Sea Essex SSO ORJ
Commercial premises at 143-145 Hobleythick Lane Westcliff-On-Sea Essex
136 Hobleythick Lane Westcliff-On-Sea Essex SSO ORJ

138A Hobleythick Lane Westcliff-On-Sea Essex SSO ORJ

141 Hobleythick Lane Westcliff-On-Sea Essex SSO ORL

147 Hobleythick Lane Westcliff-On-Sea Essex SSO ORL

137 Hobleythick Lane Westcliff-On-Sea Essex SSO ORL

139 Hobleythick Lane Westcliff-On-Sea Essex SSO ORL

21 Larke Rise Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6GQ

St John Fisher Hall St John Fisher Catholic Church 2 Manners Way Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6PT

St John Fisher Catholic Church 2 Manners Way Southend-On-Sea Essex S52 6PT

Presbytery St John Fisher Catholic Church 2 Manners Way Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6PT

5 Manners Way Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6QR
8 Manners Way Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6PT
7 Manners Way Southend-On-Sea Essex 552 6QR
10 Manners Way Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6PT

Schedule 2 Page 1 of 5 &



12 Manners Way Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6PT

85 Prince Avenue Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6RL

94 Prince Avenue Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6NN

87-89 Prince Avenue Southend-On-Sea Essex $S2 6RL

95 Prince Avenue Southend-On-Sea Essex $52 6RL

83 Prince Avenue Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6RL

Prince Avenue Surgery 3 Prince Avenue Southend-On-Sea Essex S52 6RL
Commercial premises at 53 Prince Avenue Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6RL
Commercial premises 79 Prince Avenue Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6RL
Commercial premises at 77 Prince Avenue Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6RN
Commercial premises at 59 Prince Avenue Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6RL
Commercial premises at 53 Prince Avenue Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6RL
Commercial premises at 126 Prince Avenue Westcliff-On-Sea Essex SS0 ONW
Commercial premises at 96-118 Prince Avenue Southend-On-Sea Essex $S2 6RL
Commercial premises currently The Bell Prince Avenue Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6RL
Commercial premises Cafe 91 - 93 Prince Avenue Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6RL
Commercial premises at 130 Prince Avenue Westcliff-On-Sea Essex SSO ONW
Commercial premises at 120 Prince Avenue Westcliff-On-Sea Essex SSO ONW
Commercial premises at 122 Prince Avenue Westcliff-On-Sea Essex SSO ONW
Commercial premises at 140 Prince Avenue Westcliff-On-Sea Essex SSO ONW
134 Prince Avenue Westcliff-On-Sea Essex SSO ONW

Commercial premises 91-93 Prince Avenue Southend-On-Sea Essex 552 6RL
42 Prince Avenue Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6NN

46 Prince Avenue Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6NN

48 Prince Avenue Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6NN

92A Prince Avenue Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6NN

92C Prince Avenue Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6NN

33 Prince Avenue Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6RL

37 Prince Avenue Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6RL

41 Prince Avenue Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6RL

43 Prince Avenue Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6RL

47 Prince Avenue Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6RL

142 Prince Avenue Westcliff-On-Sea Essex SSO ONW

144 Prince Avenue Westcliff-On-Sea Essex SSO ONW

150 Prince Avenue Westcliff-On-Sea Essex SSO ONW

152 Prince Avenue Westcliff-On-Sea Essex SSO ONW

156 Prince Avenue Westcliff-On-Sea Essex SSO ONW

50 Prince Avenue Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6NN

58 Prince Avenue Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6NN

60 Prince Avenue Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6NN

64 Prince Avenue Southend-On-Sea Essex S52 6NN

68 Prince Avenue Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6NN

70 Prince Avenue Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6NN

74 Prince Avenue Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6NN

78 Prince Avenue Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6NN

82 Prince Avenue Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6NN

84 Prince Avenue Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6NN

88 Prince Avenue Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6NN

Schedule 2 Page 2 of 5 8



49 Prince Avenue Southend-On-Sea Essex 552 6RL

1 Princes Court Prince Avenue Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6RN
11 Princes Court Prince Avenue Southend-On-Sea Essex 552 6RN
13 Princes Court Prince Avenue Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6RN
15 Princes Court Prince Avenue Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6RN
17 Princes Court Prince Avenue Southend-On-Sea Essex S52 6RN
19 Princes Court Prince Avenue Southend-On-Sea Essex 552 6RN
2 Princes Court Prince Avenue Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6RN
21 Princes Court Prince Avenue Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6RN
23 Princes Court Prince Avenue Southend-On-Sea Essex 552 6RN
25 Princes Court Prince Avenue Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6RN
27 Princes Court Prince Avenue Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6RN
29 Princes Court Prince Avenue Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6RN
30 Princes Court Prince Avenue Southend-On-Sea Essex 5S2 6RN
5 Princes Court Prince Avenue Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6RN
7 Princes Court Prince Avenue Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6RN
8 Princes Court Prince Avenue Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6RN
30 Prince Avenue Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6NN

36 Prince Avenue Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6NN

38 Prince Avenue Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6NN

1 Prince Avenue Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6RL

19 Prince Avenue Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6RL

21 Prince Avenue Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6RL

25 Prince Avenue Southend-On-Sea Essex $52 6RL

5 Prince Avenue Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6RL

9 Prince Avenue Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6RL

128 Prince Avenue Westcliff-On-Sea Essex SSO ONW

80 Prince Avenue Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6NN

86 Prince Avenue Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6NN

90 Prince Avenue Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6NN

31 Prince Avenue Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6RL

35 Prince Avenue Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6RL

39 Prince Avenue Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6RL

45 Prince Avenue Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6RL

52 Prince Avenue Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6NN

56 Prince Avenue Southend-On-Sea Essex S52 6NN

62 Prince Avenue Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6NN

66 Prince Avenue Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6NN

72 Prince Avenue Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6NN

76 Prince Avenue Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6NN

146 Prince Avenue Westcliff-On-Sea Essex SSO ONW

148 Prince Avenue Westcliff-On-Sea Essex SSO ONW

154 Prince Avenue Westcliff-On-Sea Essex SSO ONW

44 Prince Avenue Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6NN

83A Prince Avenue Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6RL

92B Prince Avenue Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6NN

95A Prince Avenue Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6RL

32 Prince Avenue Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6NN

Schedule 2 Page 3 of 5 79



34 Prince Avenue Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6NN
40 Prince Avenue Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6NN

11 Prince Avenue Southend-On-Sea Essex S52 6RL

15 Prince Avenue Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6RL

17 Prince Avenue Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6RL

23 Prince Avenue Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6RL

29 Prince Avenue Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6RL

7 Prince Avenue Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6RL

16 Princes Court Prince Avenue Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6RN
18 Princes Court Prince Avenue Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6RN
20 Princes Court Prince Avenue Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6RN
22 Princes Court Prince Avenue Southend-On-Sea Essex S52 6RN
24 Princes Court Prince Avenue Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6RN
26 Princes Court Prince Avenue Southend-On-Sea Essex 552 6RN
28 Princes Court Prince Avenue Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6RN
3 Princes Court Prince Avenue Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6RN
4 Princes Court Prince Avenue Southend-On-Sea Essex $S2 6RN
6 Princes Court Prince Avenue Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6RN
9 Princes Court Prince Avenue Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6RN
10 Princes Court Prince Avenue Southend-On-Sea Essex $S2 6RN
12 Princes Court Prince Avenue Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6RN
14 Princes Court Prince Avenue Southend-On-Sea Essex 552 6RN
Flat Above 93 Prince Avenue Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6RL
Flat Above 85 Prince Avenue Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6RL
Residential Accommodation above the commercial premises currently at The Bell Hotel Prince Avenue
Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6RL ‘

136 Prince Avenue Westcliff-On-Sea Essex SS0 ONW

138 Prince Avenue Westcliff-On-Sea Essex SSO ONW

Flat Above 94 Prince Avenue Southend-On-Sea Essex $S2 6NN
Flat 1 122 Prince Avenue Westcliff-On-Sea Essex SSO OEW

87A Prince Avenue Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6RL

89A Prince Avenue Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6AL

51 Prince Avenue Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6RL

236 Priory Crescent Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6PR

240 Priory Crescent Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6PR

244 Priory Crescent Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6PR

246 Priory Crescent Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6PR

250 Priory Crescent Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6PR

254 Priory Crescent Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6PR

258 Priory Crescent Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6PR

260 Priory Crescent Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6PR

238 Priory Crescent Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6PR

242 Priory Crescent Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6PR

248 Priory Crescent Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6PR

252 Priory Crescent Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6PR

256 Priory Crescent Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6PR

262 Priory Crescent Southend-On-Sea Essex 552 6PR

266 Priory Crescent Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6PR

Schedule 2 Page 4 of 5 80



264 Priory Crescent Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6PR

Commercial premises at 6A Rochford Road Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6SP
Commercial premises at 2 Rochford Road Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6SP
Commercial premises at 4 Rochford Road Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6SP
8A Rochford Road Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6SP

2A Rochford Road Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6SP

Flat Above 4 Rochford Road Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6SP

8B Rochford Road Southend-On-Sea Essex SS52 6SP

458 Victoria Avenue Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6ND

460 Victoria Avenue Southend-On-Sea Essex 552 6ND

503 Victoria Avenue Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6NL

507 Victoria Avenue Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6NL

454 Victoria Avenue Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6ND

456 Victoria Avenue Southend-On-Sea Essex $S2 6ND

452 Victoria Avenue Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6ND

505 Victoria Avenue Southend-On-Sea Essex SS2 6NL

Premises listed with usage at time of declaration.

Schedule 2 Page 5 of 5 81



82



€8

Air Quality Consultation Submissions with Council Responses

Question

Comment

Council response

APPENDIX 4

Q1 and Q2 - Are any significant actions/initiatives already being undertaken or committed to that could improve air quality? (if yes please tell us

more)
No

Yes

Yes

No
No
No
No
No
No

Yes

No
No
No
No
No

Yes

Page 1 of 22

| would be interested to see the air quality plans from the airport alongside the one from
the council - the air around my local community was surely affected severely before the
pandemic due to the volume of planes taking off on a daily basis.

Closing roads off outside schools

The Bell Junction is underway; however overall the action plan appears to have many
actions with little headway or measurable outcomes.

No use spending money if current building programmes are pursued, sort out the
infrastructure first. The current policy | view as a nice little earner for councils and will be a
good excuse to introduce congestion charging. The roads claimed to be pollution hotspots
are those that are already busy and will even more so with the current building

No response required

The Council is expanding its Safer Streets
programme, ensuring that unsuitable traffic
volumes and vehicle types are not directed
onto smaller, quiet residential streets.

No response required
No response required
No response required
No response required
No response required
No response required

Details of the Bell Junction can be found at The
Bell Junction Improvements — The Bell Junction

— Southend-on-Sea City Council with further

information available through emailing

bettersouthend@southend.gov.uk

No response required
No response required
No response required
No response required
No response required

Major development proposals are required to
be supported by a range of technical
assessments so that impacts on matters such
as traffic and transportation, including the


https://www.southend.gov.uk/better-southend/bell-junction/1
https://www.southend.gov.uk/better-southend/bell-junction/1
https://www.southend.gov.uk/better-southend/bell-junction/1
mailto:bettersouthend@southend.gov.uk

v8

Question

No
No
No

Yes

Yes

No
No
No
No
No
No
No

Yes

Page 2 of 22

Comment
programmes. It will become obvious the electric cars will be a failure and will cost more
overall in pollution from producing lithium to the 'recycling of the batteries

as described in the plan. Unfortunately many are dependent on cultural change which is
not easy to implement.

The A127 AQAP has been a failure and appears to only be a money grab for speeding not
anything to do with traffic management or air pollution
This should be reviewed and published results before taking on a further “project”

Maybe | have misunderstood this question - but clearly SBC has a number of initiatives
underway such as the A127 Kent Elms Strategic Highway Improvement that should make a
difference going forward? If you are talking about me personally, then apart from working
with West Leigh Schools on the Safer Streets scheme and moving the bus stand from
outside the school | have not.

APPENDIX 4

Council response

effect on the highway network, can be taken
carefully into account. All planning applications
are assessed against relevant planning policies
set out in national and local plans and
guidance.

The government policy on electric vehicles can
be accessed UK electric vehicle infrastructure
strategy - GOV.UK (www.gov.uk)

No response required

No response required

No response required

Details of how the Council tries to influence
modal shift is contained in the AQAP.

There have been no additional speed cameras
installed as a result of the AQAP for the
AQMA1. Action plans will be reviewed and
reported to DEFRA via the Air Quality Status
Report and through the Air Quality Steering
Group.

No response required

No response required

No response required

No response required

No response required

No response required

No response required

No response required



https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/uk-electric-vehicle-infrastructure-strategy
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/uk-electric-vehicle-infrastructure-strategy

G8

APPENDIX 4

Question Comment Council response
1000 new trees planted. Traffic calming areas with schools. Some public green spaces left No response required. All suggestions already
to grow. contained in policy.
Yes Electric vehicle charging points to increase and form a requirement in planning

applications. Cycling and healthy lifestyles promoted.
Green energy in public buildings developed.

No No response required
No No response required
No No response required
Q3 and Q4 - Are any significant actions/initiatives missing that could improve air quality? (if yes please tell us more)
Yes Extensive EV charging network within the whole of the borough. SBC currently has a very The installation of installing EV on the

low charger to population, with a large density of houses without off-street parking. Leigh- | carriageway is being considered by the
on-Sea town centre has 0 charging points. Until this is dealt with, residents will either be Working Party Preparing Southend for the EV

forced to continue to purchase polluting ICE cars or carry on using their existing vehicles. revolution.
No No response required
Yes An application for a grant has been made to

Outside all schools . More cycling/ electric scooters
ycling/ DEFRA to support travel plans for schools.

Yes It should be noted that within the canopy
cover report there are many areas Southend-
on-Sea City Council do not own which have low
tree cover. Some of these cover substantial
areas of land. Existing land use can also
influence the availability of land for planting
which Southend-on-Sea Borough Council do

ask all the residents living near the Bell including Hampton Gardens to plant lots of trees in = own, for example, the airport and its flight

their gardens for canopy cover and even provide them for the residents to plant. approaches. The canopy cover report
commissioned in October 2019 will be used to
inform future planting. Initially planting
undertaken until 2023 will be focused on
wards with the lowest cover where it is
practically viable to plant new trees with
planting above that which is normally carried
out. After 2023 tree planting will continue to

Page 3 of 22



98

Question

Yes

Yes

Yes

No

Page 4 of 22

Comment

The recycling plant on stock road must be looked at as it smells very bad for miles around

The plan is essentially a tactical sticking-plaster project, that MAY deliver some short-term
local improvements. At a strategic level Southeast Essex needs a new arterial road from
the A130 to feed into the north part of Southend with new park-and-ride systems. This
would obviously take time to plan and build, by which time electric/hydrogen vehicle use
would have risen and better 24-hour green public transport would be in place — well |
suppose we can all dream! Britain is heading towards the 22nd century but this plan gives
no indication where SBC is going and consequentially how it would get there? Short term
fixes are just kicking the can down the road until national emission restrictions solve the
problem for you.

Better bus service. Some sort of congestion charge. Park & ride service.

APPENDIX 4

Council response

be programmed based on the overall canopy
cover of the city. The council is committed to
maintaining and enhancing tree canopy cover
in the city and it is our aim to increase the
canopy cover to a city average of at least 15%
by 2050.

Any waste recycling sites (except for
the Anglian Water Recycling Centre)
require Environmental Permits to
operate which are issued and regulated
by the Environment Agency. Any
complaints about sites in Stock Road or
anywhere else should be made to the
EA to 0800 80 70 60 and at
incident_communication_service@envir
onment-agency.gov.uk

The Council is undertaking work on the
Transport East Strategy which will be aligned
to the LTP4, which is in development.

Bus services are independently delivered. The
Council aims to influence the emissions
through the Bus Service Improvement Plan and
the Enhanced Partnership.

No response required


mailto:incident_communication_service@environment-agency.gov.uk
mailto:incident_communication_service@environment-agency.gov.uk

18

Question Comment

Yes . - . . . .
get all residents near main junctions and main roads to plant lots of trees to provide air
purification through the leaves, don't know scientific terms.

Yes
Do not build 7000 new homes on green belt land between Bournes Green Chase and
Rochford. The road infrastructure is not able to withstand such a development. It is
already a grid lock to reach Shoeburyness. Example, 1530 hours, 11June 2021, it took 60
minutes to complete a 35 minute journey. No accidents, just pure weight of traffic.

ves Air quality in the Marine Parade / Thames Drive area relating to air traffic when the airport
resumes full working pattern

Yes
Shut the airport, biggest polluter in the town

Yes Proposed passenger and freight growth plans for Southend Airport will significantly add to

air pollution and mitigate any AQAP improvements. That needs to be properly recognised
and acted upon. Aside from traffic pollution, there is the problem of significant, and
health-damaging, emissions from aircraft, particularly from the very old planes used for
freight.

Page 5 of 22

APPENDIX 4

Council response

The Council continues to plan more trees than
those removed, and planted over 600 in the
last year, which more planned this season.
Major development proposals are required to
be supported by a range of technical
assessments so that impacts on matters such
as traffic and transportation, including the
effect on the highway network, can be taken
carefully into account. All planning applications
are assessed against relevant planning policies
set out in national and local plans and
guidance.

The Council has 45 diffusion tubes sited across
the City which are located in line with the
DEFRA Technical Guidance.

London Southend Airport has an Air
Quality Monitoring Programme agreed
with Southend-On-Sea City Council
and Rochford District Council. The
results of the monitoring are submitted
regularly to the councils for review and
currently are within their targets. For
more information on their monitoring
programme please contact the airport
at General enquiry - London Southend
Airport

London Southend Airport has an Air
Quality Monitoring Programme agreed
with Southend-On-Sea City Council
and Rochford District Council. The
results of the monitoring are submitted



https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fsouthendairport.com%2Fcontact-us%2Fgeneral-enquiry&data=05%7C01%7CElizabethGeorgeou%40southend.gov.uk%7C943e752e28044600a77708dacc9c49bb%7C513aa9ea00af4720a181678d737878de%7C0%7C0%7C638047268865543013%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=Zd0rwLPuGgiZmvreVoI5pnDUtICOUVJocGZzj6zZmXE%3D&reserved=0
https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fsouthendairport.com%2Fcontact-us%2Fgeneral-enquiry&data=05%7C01%7CElizabethGeorgeou%40southend.gov.uk%7C943e752e28044600a77708dacc9c49bb%7C513aa9ea00af4720a181678d737878de%7C0%7C0%7C638047268865543013%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=Zd0rwLPuGgiZmvreVoI5pnDUtICOUVJocGZzj6zZmXE%3D&reserved=0

88

APPENDIX 4

Question Comment Council response
regularly to the councils for review and
currently are within their targets. For
more information on their monitoring
programme please contact the airport
at General enquiry - London Southend

Airport
Yes Proper commitment to protecting green spaces / green belt in Southend and surrounding | The Council has a commitment to increase the
areas. More mature trees protected & planted. tree canopy cover to a city average of at least
15 by 2050.

Less new houses therefore less cars & rubbish, not so much strain on old outdated sewers, = Major development proposals are required to

drains, etc. be supported by a range of technical
assessments so that impacts on matters such
as traffic and transportation, including the
effect on the highway network, can be taken
carefully into account. All planning applications
are assessed against relevant planning policies
set out in national and local plans and

guidance.
Limit airport flights especially at night, therefore limiting freight containers travelling on London Southend Airport has an Air
the roads. Quality Monitoring Programme agreed

with Southend-On-Sea City Council
and Rochford District Council. The
results of the monitoring are submitted
regularly to the councils for review and
currently are within their targets. For
more information on their monitoring
programme please contact the airport
at General enquiry - London Southend

Airport

Page 6 of 22


https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fsouthendairport.com%2Fcontact-us%2Fgeneral-enquiry&data=05%7C01%7CElizabethGeorgeou%40southend.gov.uk%7C943e752e28044600a77708dacc9c49bb%7C513aa9ea00af4720a181678d737878de%7C0%7C0%7C638047268865543013%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=Zd0rwLPuGgiZmvreVoI5pnDUtICOUVJocGZzj6zZmXE%3D&reserved=0
https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fsouthendairport.com%2Fcontact-us%2Fgeneral-enquiry&data=05%7C01%7CElizabethGeorgeou%40southend.gov.uk%7C943e752e28044600a77708dacc9c49bb%7C513aa9ea00af4720a181678d737878de%7C0%7C0%7C638047268865543013%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=Zd0rwLPuGgiZmvreVoI5pnDUtICOUVJocGZzj6zZmXE%3D&reserved=0
https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fsouthendairport.com%2Fcontact-us%2Fgeneral-enquiry&data=05%7C01%7CElizabethGeorgeou%40southend.gov.uk%7C943e752e28044600a77708dacc9c49bb%7C513aa9ea00af4720a181678d737878de%7C0%7C0%7C638047268865543013%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=Zd0rwLPuGgiZmvreVoI5pnDUtICOUVJocGZzj6zZmXE%3D&reserved=0
https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fsouthendairport.com%2Fcontact-us%2Fgeneral-enquiry&data=05%7C01%7CElizabethGeorgeou%40southend.gov.uk%7C943e752e28044600a77708dacc9c49bb%7C513aa9ea00af4720a181678d737878de%7C0%7C0%7C638047268865543013%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=Zd0rwLPuGgiZmvreVoI5pnDUtICOUVJocGZzj6zZmXE%3D&reserved=0

68

Question

Yes

Yes

Yes

Page 7 of 22

Comment
Encourage businesses into the area so less people have to commute especially to out of
town workplaces therefore cutting down on the need for car travel.

Much greater concentration and Action on preserving green spaces, not cutting
verges/hedgerows during seeding time to encourage pollinators. Doubling the tree
planting commitment (at least). Encouraging public spaces (schools, commercial spaces,
factories etc to plant trees)

Look to marine conservation of sea grasses etc to catch carbon

Greater concentration on providing SAFE cycling routes. Ban cars from town centre.

Every new housing or commercial development needs to consider how to make their
buildings carbon neutral and a risk assessment completed to ensure that the eventual
buildings will not increase traffic.

From the figures | have read the whole thing is based on the wrong premise and are
biased. The pressure for all of this is from financial interests - there is no altruism.
Banning petrol cars older than 15 years and diesel cars over 5 years as diesel cars are very
bad polluters. Converting buses and civic and refuse vehicles to electric. Ban any new
house building as new houses always results in increase traffic . Take action on the roads
to make traffic move more smoothly egs more filter lanes such as at Tesco from west to
east when a left turn is required and install intelligent traffic lights that give greater times
to the busiest road at a junction. Ban wood burning fires. Plant many more trees.- sadly

APPENDIX 4

Council response

The Council has opportunity and
prosperity outcomes planned, which
are contained in The Local Plan. There
ae projects and schemes, including
development of the High Street.

The Council continues to plant more trees than
are removed, over 600 were planted last year,
which more planned this season. The
Grassland Management Policy will be
considered by Cabinet, which if adopted will
increase the number of areas for longer grass.

Contained in the AQAP

Major development proposals are required to
be supported by a range of technical
assessments so that impacts on matters such
as traffic and transportation, including the
effect on the highway network, can be taken
carefully into account. All planning applications
are assessed against relevant planning policies
set out in national and local plans and
guidance.

No response required.

There is a government strategy on older cars,
there is a partnership in place for influencing
the bus fleets, and a Green Fleet Strategy for
the Council.

Traffic is already controlled through intelligent
signalling.



Question

06

Yes

Yes

Page 8 of 22

Comment
the tree planting policy appears to have currently petered out Allow grass verges to grow

much longer rather than regularly cutting them. More average speed cameras would

reduce unnecessary speeding up and slowing down when passing a fixed speed camera eg

Royal Artillery Way and by getting the traffic running smoothly less fumes are emitted.

Extend the 2 small areas in the AQAP to cover many more bad pollution areas.

Encouraging more people to take up electric vehicles (EVs). Currently there are no
incentives in the borough for drivers of EVs. These could include: free parking at the
weekends; £5 off their Council Tax bill; access to the town centre (like in other European
countries) and the banning of ICE vehicles on certain days,

Allow EV owners to charge their vehicles in the council car park,

Install more chargers,

Stop all of the widening of the A127 in a bid to encourage more people commuting by cars
in and out of the town. We should be trying to stop long range commuting not
encouraging it,

Introduce a park and ride system for non-residents.

1.

Banning the use of high polluting vehicles on our busiest roads and in our town
centres.

There could be a similar action to London’s ULEZ that is being extended in October
this year.

APPENDIX 4

Council response

The AQAP also contains details of our
proposed action regarding wood burners.

The Council continues to plant more trees than
are removed, over 600 were planted last year,
which more planned this season. The
Grassland Management Policy will be
considered by Cabinet, which if adopted will
increase the number of areas for longer grass.
Speed cameras are generally in areas
renowned for accidents or where drivers are
known to drive at high speeds. The cameras
act as a deterrent.

AQMAs are statutorily declared in response to
air quality not meeting the air quality
objectives. The modelling undertaken
confirms that the air quality outside the
AQMA'’s is within the air quality objectives.
The parking strategy addresses thee need for
increased electric vehicle charging points at
key locations.

Details of the aims of the schemes can be
obtained by emailing
bettersouthend@southend.gov.uk

The Council is developing an updated LTP4.
There are a number of items raised here, many
of which have already been responded either
in the AQAP or in consultation responses
above.


mailto:bettersouthend@southend.gov.uk

T6

Question

APPENDIX 4

Council response

Also banning of large polluting SUV’s and older polluting cars.

Page 9 of 22

Comment

3.

4. Encouraging more EV take up by supplying the necessary infrastructure through
government grants.

5. plant more Street trees and hedgerows along our verges to help absorb and filter
local air pollution.

6. Encourage cycling by creating designated space on our roads for cyclists and
supplying on-street cycle parking that would take up a whole car space, similar
schemes are being used in Lambeth for example.

7. restrict car use to certain times of the day.

8. increase parking costs and fines to discourage car use

9. Encourage e-car clubs to be more prevalent across the whole town

10. install signage across the whole town to encourage people to switch off their
engines so that it becomes antisocial behaviour to idle engines unnecessarily

11. start a campaign to explain the aims objectives of a new green vision to tackle air
pollution within our town

12. totally rethink Southend airport, its activities are as polluting as a major trunk
road, of which Southend has only one

13. encourage out of town daytrippers to use public transport rather than their cars
when travelling to Southend - unless they are in electric vehicles, this could also
include a park and ride scheme —

14. where possible - encourage all companies that deliver within our town to use
electric vehicles rather than their polluting diesel counterparts

15. devise an action plan that will deal with the highly polluting freight traffic on the
River Thames where much of the emissions will be blown across to Southend by
the south-westerly winds....

16. Think about tree canopy cover along the coast to offer some protection against
this —

17. also large ships could be made to turn their main engines off and towed from the
Isle of Sheppey to port by new high-tech electric tugboats this would cancel out a
major and growing source of pollution for Southend.

18. phase out all combustion engine taxis and only allow new licences for EV taxis

offer financial support to do so.

Consideration will be given to working with
businesses on their fleets and the impact on
the surrounding local air quality.



[45)

Question

Yes

Yes

Yes

No
Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Page 10 of 22

Comment

19. encouraging EV take up by implementing on street EV parking bays and increasing

charging infrastructure starting with lamp-post conversion in partnership with
Siemens or similar

20. immediately implementing “twenty is plenty” 20mph speed restrictions in
pollution hotspots

21. Enforcing “all”

the help of government grants
23. Enforcing bus companies to use the latest clean Technologies in their fleets
Hydrogen fuel.
Bus lanes and more cycle routes
Better and more secure cycle parking - feedback in our organisations indicates that
insecure cycle parking is one of the biggest deterrents to cycling.
More carbon capture elements

Better quality of road surfaces allowing for smoother driving and less stop start due to
potholes/road surface sinkage/unkept roads.

Better cycle lanes across Southend that doesn’t keep stopping.
Better link paths along seafront
Parks lit at night to enable evening running/walking

banning night flights and stopping the expansion of southend airport

Improve traffic flow.

Traffic lights in particular, should ALWAYS be 30secs and not on occasions 8 secs.

If you really want to here from constituents don’t ask them to read 68 pages of jargon
first! This is one of the finest examples of a non survey I've ever had the misfortune to
come across! One might almost feel it’s deliberate or would that be cynical of me?!?
Stop using contractors that use diesel vehicles when alternatives are available. Give
concessions to drivers of electric vehicles.

In addition to proposing 20mph speed limits on roads consider making more roads one

way. This would enable free flowing traffic in the congested roads of Southend, Westcliff

local retail delivery vans to be fully EV or zero emissions by 2023
22. Encouraging local businesses to switch to EV or zero emission vehicles ASAP with

APPENDIX 4

Council response

Cycle routes and provision are contained in the
AQAP as is the green infrastructure.

The local authority undertakes a pothole repair
programme to improve road conditions and
safety.

Cycle routes and provision are contained int eh
AQAP.

No response required

LSA has an air quality monitoring programme
which is operating within its targets.
Intelligent signalling is used to improve the
traffic flow across the city.

No response required.

The Council is implementing a Green Fleet
Strategy
Noted



€6

Question

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Page 11 of 22

Comment

and Leigh. | am aware that the thinking is that one way streets would encourage rat runs
but in my experience the success of North, South and Central Avenues in Southchurch
proves that it is successful in preventing vehicles having to frequently stop to let other
vehicles pass.

Making sure that the buses can move through the town more efficiently - looking at where
buses are stopping in terms of schools and residential homes.

Wild flower verges. Increased cycle network. Education and incentives car clubs. Green
and accessible public transport.

Green walls and roofs included in local plan to support SUDs.

Electric bike hubs

Reduction in air travel education

Business partnership to incentives visitors to access Southend by public transport.

A scheme that does connects to other council services in order to align regulations with
increasing concern for health risks would prove more farsighted and cost effective

Whole streets suffer in silence; cement paved parking areas fully replaced front gardens.
Isn’t it time to consider regulations in the borough that prioritise the convenience of
parking (lowering the kerb) over maintaining a percentage of green spaces in our streets?
Without setting limits to the extinguishing of nature’s ‘green’ lungs, wherever vehicles run,
lower air quality eventually follow.

The plan rightly emphasises the impact of nitrogen dioxide but underemphasises the
impact of particulate matter pollution, which is proven to be very harmful to human health
when inhaled, particularly to children. Research from BLF (https://www.blf.org.uk/take-
action/clean-air/map) found illegal PM pollution in 97% of schools and colleges in
Southend West so more needs to be done about this.

Particularly more action is needed to reduce air pollution from transport, including
transition to electric vehicles, mode shift to public transport and active travel, and
measures to restrict car use, such as school streets.

There are currently huge conflicts of interest with building more infrastructure, building
thousands more houses , extending existing roads to cater for more vehicles, likely support
to extend Southend Airport further, the owners have made clear they intend to target
expand to up to 8/10 million customers, as this will lead to poorer air quality.

APPENDIX 4

Council response

There is a Bus Service Improvement Plan in
place as part of the Enhanced Partnership
There is a proposed Grassland Strategy. Other
items contained in the AQAP.

The Green City Action Plan aims to integrate
services across the City

The AQAP was developed in response to the
AQMA which was declared for NO2. By
extension actions contained in the AQAP aims
to improve air quality, both for NO2 and
particulates.

Noted, and consideration, where the Council is
able to influence will be given.



v6

Question

Yes

Comment

To reduce reliance on petrol/diesel there should be planned infrastructure for the most
efficient and future proof electric vehicle charging, extensive new safe cycle lanes,
including a plan with other boroughs along Thames path

Incentives to use electric train network more such as reduced ticket costs. Flexible season
tickets/smart cards are hardly discounted for commuters, some commuters can no longer
afford to use the network at £25+ per day.

Plan with the government to reduce gas boilers, replace with green recycled hydrogen or
discounted heat pump run boilers

Borough wide plan to install solar panels, domestic and businesses for recyclable power
Build wind farms offshore to use green energy which could be utilised by the borough

banning night flights and stopping the expansion of southend airport

APPENDIX 4

Council response

London Southend Airport has an Air
Quality Monitoring Programme agreed
with Southend-On-Sea City Council
and Rochford District Council. The
results of the monitoring are submitted
regularly to the councils for review and
currently are within their targets. For
more information on their monitoring
programme please contact the airport
at General enquiry - London Southend

Airport

Q5 and Q6 - Are any of the actions listed in the AQAP Report no longer relevant (if yes, please tell us more)

Yes
No
No
No
No
No
No
No
No

Page 12 of 22

Car club has been trailed and not been a success. This should be omitted.

The Council is still committed to car clubs.
No response required
No response required
No response required
No response required
No response required
No response required
No response required
No response required


https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fsouthendairport.com%2Fcontact-us%2Fgeneral-enquiry&data=05%7C01%7CElizabethGeorgeou%40southend.gov.uk%7C943e752e28044600a77708dacc9c49bb%7C513aa9ea00af4720a181678d737878de%7C0%7C0%7C638047268865543013%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=Zd0rwLPuGgiZmvreVoI5pnDUtICOUVJocGZzj6zZmXE%3D&reserved=0
https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fsouthendairport.com%2Fcontact-us%2Fgeneral-enquiry&data=05%7C01%7CElizabethGeorgeou%40southend.gov.uk%7C943e752e28044600a77708dacc9c49bb%7C513aa9ea00af4720a181678d737878de%7C0%7C0%7C638047268865543013%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=Zd0rwLPuGgiZmvreVoI5pnDUtICOUVJocGZzj6zZmXE%3D&reserved=0

G6

Question
No
No
No
No
No
No

Yes

No
No
No
No

Yes

No
No
No
No
No
No
No
No
No
No
No
No

Q7 and Q8 - Are there any barriers that need to be overcome for us to take up these measures in the plan? (if yes, please specify)

Yes

Page 13 of 22

Comment

Most of them

The new plans SHOULD NOT be relevant until the current plans are proven to work!
Instead of wasting time, money and infrastructure building something that will not work or
will cause further delays and pollution.

Charging infrastructure needs to dramatically improve.

Council response

No response required
No response required
No response required
No response required
No response required
No response required

APPENDIX 4

All actions contained in the AQAP will be
reviewed buy DEFRA in the Annual Status
Report and via the Air Quality Steering Group

No response required
No response required
No response required
No response required

All actions contained in the AQAP will be
reviewed buy DEFRA in the Annual Status
Report and via the Air Quality Steering Group

No response required
No response required
No response required
No response required
No response required
No response required
No response required
No response required
No response required
No response required
No response required
No response required

Noted



96

Question
Yes

Yes
No
Yes
Yes
No
Yes

Page 14 of 22

Comment

The road infrastructure of Southend means that many major roads, such as the A127 have
an excess of traffic, including many diesel vehicles. | don't know how the measures will
really improve this - there is such limited ways to get in and out of the borough.

Contract with Veolia
There seems to be a thought barrier to long term strategic vision ?

get all residents near main junctions and main roads to plant lots of trees to provide air
purification through the leaves, don't know scientific terms.

APPENDIX 4

Council response

The Council is committed to modal shift, and
actions to assist with this are contained in the
AQAP.

No response required

No response required

No information around the topic provided.
Noted

No response required

No response required

It should be noted that within the canopy
cover report there are many areas Southend-
on-Sea City Council do not own which have low
tree cover. Some of these cover substantial
areas of land. Existing land use can also
influence the availability of land for planting
which Southend-on-Sea City Council do own,
for example, the airport and its flight
approaches. The canopy cover report
commissioned in October 2019 will be used to
inform future planting. Initially planting
undertaken until 2023 will be focused on
wards with the lowest cover where it is
practically viable to plant new trees with
planting above that which is normally carried
out. After 2023 tree planting will continue to
be programmed based on the overall canopy
cover of the city. The council is committed to
maintaining and enhancing tree canopy cover
in the city and it is our aim to increase the
canopy cover to a city average of at least 15%
by 2050.



L6

Question
Yes

No
Yes
Yes
Yes

Yes
Yes

Yes

Yes
No

Yes

Yes

No
No
Yes
No
No
Yes
No

Page 15 of 22

Comment

Most of this draft plan is not specific and often does not show actions to be taken rather
what the potential hazard is with no quantifiable evidence.

The council don't believe in protecting residents health, it's all about money with them.

Greedy Landlords & construction firms.

Cost - need to factor in the cost to nhs of chronic lung conditions and the loss of education

and work hours (productivity)

Sort out infrastructure and don't blame everyone else for planning shortcomings.
A lot of people will not be happy with these plans so they need to be well sold to the public

which the Council has a poor record of doing

Decisions being made about the wrong parts of Southend and only benefiting the

commuters.

Cultural shift/change
Finance/resources

Improve current road network and infrastructure around the area before altering already

working non issue routes!

Improve current public transport and bus networks as they’re dated, always breaking

down and continually late.

Perhaps the council could order a backbone and take notice of residents views.

More attention needs to be given to traffic control and traffic flow.

APPENDIX 4

Council response
Quantification provided in AQAP

No response required
No response required
No response required
No response required
Noted

Contained in LTP.
Noted

Noted

No response required
Noted

Details of the aims of the schemes can be
obtained by emailing
bettersouthend@southend.gov.uk

Enhanced partnership in place with bus
services

No response required

No response required

No response required

No response required

No response required

There is intelligent signalling in place
No response required


mailto:bettersouthend@southend.gov.uk

86

Question Comment
A lack of understanding in the general population about what air pollution is and who is

Yes causing it and that a large proportion of making this better needs to come from our
community.

Yes Public perception of car ownership and visibly viable alternatives.

No

Public awareness of the dangers of air pollution is very low. | regularly encounter parents
idling their engines at the school gates and when | shared the BLF research above with

ves parents, they were shocked air quality was so bad. The council must do much more to
raise awareness and foster personal responsibility.
Government housing policy to build 20,000 plus homes, including loss of green belt land.
Continued support to expand Southend Airport to increase number of flights

Yes Funding to build new roads without a joined up plan to reduce number of car journeys

High cost of electric train travel [5x the cost in UK versus central Europe]

Please see Leeds as a comparable example, recently approving airport expansion
Q9 - Please tell us about anything else you feel is necessary as part the Air Quality Action Plan
We need to be as ambitious and forward thinking as possible in the AQAP. We should not be just trying
to hit the basic standard, but be confident to exceed and have the best quality air in the whole of the
UK
ask all the residents living near the Bell including Hampton Gardens to plant lots of trees in their
gardens for canopy cover and even provide them for the residents to plant. | have already got three
large trees in my back garden towards the rear of the Bell junction which all help.

The quality of air is very poor in the area. New developments go up and all around the smell of stock
road recycling centre

Page 16 of 22

APPENDIX 4

Council response
Education contained in AQAP

Influencing modal shift contained in AQAP.
No response required
Education contained in AQAP

Noted

Noted

Addressed above.

Any waste recycling sites (except for
the Anglian Water Recycling Centre)
require Environmental Permits to
operate which are issued and regulated
by the Environment Agency. Any
complaints about sites in Stock Road or
anywhere else should be made to the
EA to 0800 80 70 60 and at



66

Question Comment

An implementation plan for green public transport. There needs to be a strategic transport plan that
will reduce east-west vehicular traffic through the residential areas of the Borough - reduce vehicle
mileage and consequentially idling times and you reduce emissions. Acknowledge that the east-west
routes comprise the A127, A13 and associated rat-runs through residential streets and treat these as
one.

See question 3

get all residents near main junctions and main roads to plant lots of trees to provide air purification
through the leaves, don't know scientific terms, perhaps the council could provide some of them as an
incentive.

Page 17 of 22

APPENDIX 4

Council response
incident communication service@envir
onment-agency.gov.uk

The Council has a Green Fleet Strategy and the
Green City Action Plan. Idling is addressed in
the AQAP.

No response required

It should be noted that within the canopy
cover report there are many areas Southend-
on-Sea City Council do not own which have low
tree cover. Some of these cover substantial
areas of land. Existing land use can also
influence the availability of land for planting
which Southend-on-Sea City Council do own,
for example, the airport and its flight
approaches. The canopy cover report
commissioned in October 2019 will be used to
inform future planting. Initially planting
undertaken until 2023 will be focused on
wards with the lowest cover where it is
practically viable to plant new trees with
planting above that which is normally carried
out. After 2023 tree planting will continue to
be programmed based on the overall canopy
cover of the city. The council is committed to
maintaining and enhancing tree canopy cover
in the city and it is our aim to increase the
canopy cover to a city average of at least 15%
by 2050.


mailto:incident_communication_service@environment-agency.gov.uk
mailto:incident_communication_service@environment-agency.gov.uk

00T

Question Comment

A decent cycle network that links throughout the Borough.

Impact of emissions from standing traffic moving from west to east of the Borough.
Greater impact of building in the east of the Borough.

Start monitoring the real impact of the airport.
Not a token gesture by offering monitors when there are no planes running... AND include the night
flights. Old planes pollute more.

Budget

What are other the things that determine climate? (Which has always changed). Volcano's, earth tilt,
rotation relative to the sun and moon. Don't pick on an easy target, you would have us all living in caves
Very strong and swift action is needed to start improving the air quality in Southend and action needs
to be taken in the next year. If we await much longer we will see a massive increase in number of
deaths and hospital admissions for people with acute breathing problems

Encouraging more people to take up electric vehicles (EVs). Currently there are no incentives in the
borough for drivers of EVs. These could include: free parking at the weekends; £5 off their Council Tax
bill; access to the town centre (like in other European countries) and the banning of ICE vehicles on
certain days,

Allow EV owners to charge their vehicles in the council car park,

Page 18 of 22

APPENDIX 4

Council response

Contained in AQAP.

Major development proposals are required
to be supported by a range of technical
assessments so that impacts on matters
such as traffic and transportation, including
the effect on the highway network, can be
taken carefully into account. All planning
applications are assessed against relevant
planning policies set out in national and
local plans and guidance.

London Southend Airport has an Air
Quality Monitoring Programme agreed
with Southend-On-Sea City Council
and Rochford District Council. The
results of the monitoring are submitted
regularly to the councils for review and
currently are within their targets. For
more information on their monitoring
programme please contact the airport
at General enquiry - London Southend
Airport

Noted

No response required

The AQAP is the process by which the local
authority can influence air quality

Answered above.


https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fsouthendairport.com%2Fcontact-us%2Fgeneral-enquiry&data=05%7C01%7CElizabethGeorgeou%40southend.gov.uk%7C943e752e28044600a77708dacc9c49bb%7C513aa9ea00af4720a181678d737878de%7C0%7C0%7C638047268865543013%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=Zd0rwLPuGgiZmvreVoI5pnDUtICOUVJocGZzj6zZmXE%3D&reserved=0
https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fsouthendairport.com%2Fcontact-us%2Fgeneral-enquiry&data=05%7C01%7CElizabethGeorgeou%40southend.gov.uk%7C943e752e28044600a77708dacc9c49bb%7C513aa9ea00af4720a181678d737878de%7C0%7C0%7C638047268865543013%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=Zd0rwLPuGgiZmvreVoI5pnDUtICOUVJocGZzj6zZmXE%3D&reserved=0

10T

Question Comment

Install more chargers,

Stop all of the widening of the A127 in a bid to encourage more people commuting by cars in and out of
the town. We should be trying to stop long range commuting not encouraging it,

Introduce a park and ride system for non-residents.

1. Banning the use of high polluting vehicles on our busiest roads and in our town centres.

2. There could be a similar action to London’s ULEZ that is being extended in October this year.

3. Also banning of large polluting SUV’s and older polluting cars.

4. Encouraging more EV take up by supplying the necessary infrastructure through government

grants.

5. plant more Street trees and hedgerows along our verges to help absorb and filter local air

pollution.

6. Encourage cycling by creating designated space on our roads for cyclists and supplying on-
street cycle parking that would take up a whole car space, similar schemes are being used in
Lambeth for example.
restrict car use to certain times of the day.
increase parking costs and fines to discourage car use
Encourage e-car clubs to be more prevalent across the whole town
10. install signage across the whole town to encourage people to switch off their engines so that it

becomes antisocial behaviour to idle engines unnecessarily
11. start a campaign to explain the aims objectives of a new green vision to tackle air pollution

within our town
12. totally rethink Southend airport, its activities are as polluting as a major trunk road, of which

Southend has only one
13. encourage out of town daytrippers to use public transport rather than their cars when

travelling to Southend - unless they are in electric vehicles, this could also include a park and

ride scheme —

14. where possible - encourage all companies that deliver within our town to use electric vehicles
rather than their polluting diesel counterparts

15. devise an action plan that will deal with the highly polluting freight traffic on the River Thames
where much of the emissions will be blown across to Southend by the south-westerly winds....

16. Think about tree canopy cover along the coast to offer some protection against this —

o oo

Page 19 of 22

Council response

Answered above

APPENDIX 4



[40)

Question Comment
17. also large ships could be made to turn their main engines off and towed from the Isle of
Sheppey to port by new high-tech electric tugboats this would cancel out a major and growing
source of pollution for Southend.
18. phase out all combustion engine taxis and only allow new licences for EV taxis offer financial
support to do so.
19. encouraging EV take up by implementing on street EV parking bays and increasing charging
infrastructure starting with lamp-post conversion in partnership with Siemens or similar
20. immediately implementing “twenty is plenty” 20mph speed restrictions in pollution hotspots
21. Enforcing “all” local retail delivery vans to be fully EV or zero emissions by 2023
22. Encouraging local businesses to switch to EV or zero emission vehicles ASAP with the help of
government grants
23. Enforcing bus companies to use the latest clean Technologies in their fleets
Addition of carbon capture activities.
Support to enable people to change to lower carbon energy options at home.
Improve current local public transport services instead of using 20+ year old busses polluting local areas
multiple times a day.
Cut the subsidy to the airport and use the money elsewhere (not a salaried economic executive
position to 'encourage' companies to go green
Improve traffic flow.
Monitoring traffic specifically during schools runs.
An up front and honest attempt to actually gather opinion and more to the point take some action to
reduce the two main scourges of air pollution in Southend, motorised traffic and aviation. First
lockdown would have given everyone an indication of how effective that can be and how pleasant it is
to breathe clean air.
More positive action regarding vehicles used by the council to move to electric vans etc.
Fundamentally | agree with the need for the strategy however a lot of the congestion in Southend,
Leigh and Westcliff is caused by overuse of cars for short journeys and the apparent need for school
children to be dropped of and picked up every day! If there was safe, reliable and reasonably priced
public transport the number of cars could be drastically reduced, plus of course a campaign to dissuade
parents from driving their offspring to school. It would need some re-education and maybe some
penalties?

Page 20 of 22

APPENDIX 4

Council response

Green City Action Plan

Contained in bus service improvement plan
and enhanced partnership.

Noted

Intelligence traffic controls In place.

Noted

Contained in the Green Fleet Strategy
Contained in AQAP, Safer Streets programme
and influencing modal shift.



€01

Question Comment

You need to find a way to make this much less jargon led and much clearer for the general public. This
survey isn't brilliant - | feel that | don't really understand what you are asking in many of the questions

and that's not a great place to be if this is a community survey.

The key is not to keep promoting car travel, this needs to be on an essential basis.

Because of the geography of Southend public transport has many gaps and a modal shift can only be
obtained when there are alternative and manageable ways of getting from A to B

The goals and general sentiment of this outline deserve praise: a wider, cross Borough approach to
improve air quality, “focussing on prevention rather than just tackling hot-spots.” Its plan of action
appears far less ambitious, however. The proposals to affect changes raise more questions than they
answer about their likely impact on improving air quality across the borough.” Below are some such
queries and an example.

Where are the details of an inspiring scheme to protect all residents’ health in their homes, especially
the most vulnerable ?

What provisions tend to the long-term (unexpected) challenges that the pandemic added? Do these
measures safeguard the respiratory health of increasing numbers of people at the streets where they
live, not just during travel in the main roads?

How does the scheme relate to other council services? A stand alone plan unconnected to other
departments would be curious. To illustrate, recently, the highways team updated its policies to
facilitate applications for dropping kerbs, but seemed to include little in way of protecting slices of
garden space.

Would not adopting a programme to align regulations with increasing concern for health risks, prove
more farsighted and cost effective?

Whole streets suffer in silence; cement paved parking areas fully replaced front gardens. Isn’t it time to
consider regulations in the borough that prioritise the convenience of parking (lowering the kerb) over

maintaining a percentage of green spaces in our streets?

Without setting limits to the extinguishing of nature’s ‘green’ lungs, wherever vehicles run, lower air
quality eventually follow. Why not create incentives to preserving, albeit tiny, green areas in house
fronts, instead of giving greater weight to the expediency of easier parking?

Should not the climate plan for a subsidence-prone Southend take note of the recent floods across the

world, including London?
Preventive steps to protect everyone in their homes would go a long way to address the unfair
disadvantage that the most vulnerable have long suffered without redress, besides rhetoric.

Page 21 of 22

APPENDIX 4

Council response
Noted

Noted

The AQAP has been developed as required by
DEFRA following the declaration of the
AQMA?2. It does however address broader
issues and by extension aims to improve air
quality across the whole of the Borough.

The Council has a Green City Action Plan which
co-ordinates the activities across the whole
organisation



70T

Question Comment

To summarise: Proactive, bold measures that touch every resident in the borough would allow
Southend to lead the way. It could provide a successful blue print for other councils across Britain.
More specific actions and measurable KPlIs. For example, it's good that the plan mentions school streets
but not how many will be implemented and in what timeframe. Will it be up to individual schools and
groups of parents to initiate a campaign or will the council gradually roll out school streets across all
schools. Please also require schools to raise awareness of air quality among parents. It should be
required as part of the curriculum to make use of materials like these
(https://www.cleanairday.org.uk/free-resources/schools) and to educate parents and children on the
benefits of walking and cycling to school (https://www.sustrans.org.uk/for-
professionals/education/how-schools-can-promote-an-active-school-run;
https://www.livingstreets.org.uk/wow?gclid=EAlalQobChMI18sGDjdyz8gIVyBoGAB2QdA4EEAMYASAAEg
LAFfD_BwE).

The plan also wants to encourage cycling and walking via Forward Motion initiatives but this would be
fruitless unless accompanied by safe infrastructure throughout the borough, especially key corridors
like London Road and Broadway/ Leigh Road. People in the borough want to be active and many own
bikes but the only way to cycle is to load up the bikes in a car and drive to the leisure routes such as to
Hadleigh Castle. | used to be a keen cyclist in London and don't have a car, but feel unable to cycle in
Southend for work or leisure. If there were segregated cycle lanes along London Road and similar, | and
people like would be able to cycle to the shops and to do chores.

Also, please allow car clubs to operate in the borough. We are a family of 4 (2 kids aged 4 and 6),
recently moved over from London and we don't own a car and frequently we feel trapped, not being
able to access shops or leisure facilities further away like in Hadleigh or Chelmsford. It feels like we are
being pushed to buy a car even though we don't need it daily for work, shops, the park or the school
run. If there were car clubs available, we'd be able to access this for occasional day trips rather than
buy a car that sits parked 99% of the time. Similarly many families may be able to get rid of a second or
third car.

This is a once in generation opportunity with the climate change emergency to build a really ambitious
long term plan to make a real difference in improved air quality, such as the period after first pandemic
lockdown between March to June 2020.

Page 22 of 22

APPENDIX 4

Council response

Safer Streets is not suitable for all schools
across the city as the scheme cannot push
unsuitable traffic volumes and vehicle types
onto smaller, quiet residential roads. The
Council has a programme of working with
schools or air quality and is captured in the
AQAP. Cycling is also addressed through
actions contained within the AQAP.

The Council is also committed to car clubs.

Noted


https://www.livingstreets.org.uk/wow?gclid=EAIaIQobChMI8sGDjdyz8gIVyBoGAB2QdA4EEAMYASAAEgLAFfD_BwE
https://www.livingstreets.org.uk/wow?gclid=EAIaIQobChMI8sGDjdyz8gIVyBoGAB2QdA4EEAMYASAAEgLAFfD_BwE

Southend-on-Sea City Council Agenda

Report of Executive Director of Neighbourhoods & Item No.
Environment and Interim Executive Director for Growth &
Housing
To

Cabinet
On
21 February 2023
Report prepared by:

Neil Hoskins (Head of Civil Engineering)
and Mark Sheppard (Service Manager — Strategic Planning)

Proposed Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) spending — Cycle Infrastructure

Improvement Programme

Place Scrutiny Committee

Cabinet Members: Councillor Steven Wakefield and Councillor Carole Mulroney

A Part 1 (Public Agenda Item)

1.1

1.2

2.1

2.2

2.3

Purpose of Report

To seek agreement to spend up to £1million from the Community Infrastructure
Levy (CIL) CIL Main Fund on enhancing cycle infrastructure within the city. The
business case for agreeing this spend is set out in the proposed ‘Cycle Routes &
Path Improvement Programme — CIL Main Fund Application’ (Appendix A)
together with further details in Appendix A1-A3.

The Infrastructure Funding Statement 2021-22 (Appendix B) sets out the total
amount in the CIL Main Fund as at the 31 March 2022. It is noted that at the 12
January 2023 Cabinet members agreed to allocate £1million of this funding to a
Parks Improvement Programme. However, it is confirmed that sufficient funds
remain available for the proposed ‘Cycle Routes & Path Improvement Programme
— CIL Main Fund Application’ also.

Recommendation

Note the ‘Cycle Routes & Path Improvement Programme — CIL Main Fund
Application’ (Appendix A) together with further details in Appendix A1-A3.

Agree that up to £1million from the CIL Main Fund is spent on enhancing
cycle infrastructure within the city of Southend.

Agree to delegate authority to the Director for Planning, in consultation with
the Cabinet Member for Environment, Culture and Tourism, to take all
necessary steps to ensure compliance with the objectives of the CIL

Report Title: Proposed Community Page 1 of 6
Infrastructure Levy (CIL) spending

— Cycle Infrastructure Improvement

Programme

105


https://democracy.southend.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=130&MId=4202
https://democracy.southend.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=130&MId=4202

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

Governance Framework (Background Paper — 7.5) when spending the sum
agreed under Recommendation 2.2 of this report.

Background

Southend City Council has an adopted Community Infrastructure Levy Charging
Schedule (“CIL”), which came into effect on 27t July 2015.

At the end of the financial year 2021-22 the council held £2,766,558 in the CIL
Main Fund (See Appendix B); and these funds continue to accrue as
development is implemented.

The spending and reporting arrangements for CIL are set out in the council’s CIL
Governance Framework (July 2015) (Background Paper — 7.5).

The initial intention was to prepare an Infrastructure Business Plan (IBP),
identifying the project(s) from the Regulation 123 Infrastructure List that would
benefit from CIL receipts within the CIL Main Fund, for consideration by Cabinet
each year. However, to date, an IBP has not been required because Cabinet has
agreed to carry forward monies in the CIL Main Fund with a view to accumulating
a bigger ‘pot’ that may be more effective in enabling the council to meet strategic
infrastructure needs. This position is reviewed annually when the Southend
Infrastructure Funding Statement is presented to Cabinet.

The 2019 amendments to the CIL Regulations removed the requirement for
authorities to publish a CIL Regulation 123 Infrastructure List. Regulation 123 lists
previously set out the projects that may be funded through CIL and included a list
of infrastructure required for the delivery of the council's adopted Development
Plan Documents. Although the requirement for the list has now been removed, it
is noted that when Southend published its list it included ‘Local walking and
cycling measures to upgrade network’.

Regulation 123 lists have now been replaced by Infrastructure Funding
Statements, which are updated annually. The Southend Infrastructure Funding
Statement (Appendix B) includes ‘public realm and environment as an
infrastructure category that can be delivered through developer contributions,
including those secured through CIL.

The purpose of the CIL Main Fund is for it to be spent on strategic infrastructure
that is considered essential to deliver the growth identified in the city’s Local
Development Plan. This infrastructure was initially identified in the Infrastructure
Delivery Plan (IDP) where it states that ‘measures to improve walking and cycling
infrastructure connectivity to planned growth’ are required.

In Appendix A, the highway team state that ‘To support and reinforce work that
is already in the process of being delivered through the Active Travel Fund, we
have taken this opportunity to review the Cycling Delivery Report (Background
Paper — 7.4) This report has been produced from the results of the holistic cycle
audit, public consultation, and engagement with the cycling community. The
report has a proposed programme of future phased (short, medium and long
term) cycling measures to be delivered across the city. It should be noted that the

Report Title: Proposed Community Page 2 of 6
Infrastructure Levy (CIL) spending

— Cycle Infrastructure Improvement

Programme

106



http://www.southend.gov.uk/downloads/file/3717/cil_governance_framework
http://www.southend.gov.uk/downloads/file/3717/cil_governance_framework
https://www.southend.gov.uk/local-planning-framework/community-infrastructure-levy-cil
https://www.southend.gov.uk/local-planning-framework/community-infrastructure-levy-cil

3.9

41

5.1

5.2

5.3

6.

6.1

report looks at all opportunities for cycling provisions and that not all
recommendations are agreed with. As an example, there is currently no intention
to implement cycling measures on the A13 or Southchurch Road.’ Furthermore,
‘By utilising the CIL funding, it will be possible to expedite the delivery of the
cycling measures within the report. These improvements will address a number
of identified network deficiencies and also network improvement requests from
the cycling community. Taken together, these two cycling improvement
programmes will provide the added impetus to net zero by enabling our citizens
who are able to travel around the city sustainably.’ This CIL bid is in three phases:
short, medium and long-term projects (as set out in Appendix A1-A3).

The Proposed Cycle Infrastructure Improvement Programme set out in Appendix
A is considered sufficiently detailed to constitute a sound and reasonable
business case for spending up to £1million of the CIL Main Fund on enhancing
the cycle infrastructure within the city. This aligns to the evidenced need for
infrastructure as set out in the IDP and shows that the works are still relevant.
While an IBP has not yet been prepared in the format fully envisaged in the
original CIL Governance Framework, national legislation has since moved on and
compliance with the objectives of the CIL Governance Framework will be met
through subsequent work, as set out in paragraph 2.3 of the Recommendation in
this report.

Other Options

Do not agree to spend up to £1million from the CIL Main Fund on improving and
enhancing cycle infrastructure. Whilst other funding sources may become
available at some point, there is no guarantee as to if this would occur, when it
would take place and the sums provided.

Reasons for Recommendation

The proposed works set out in the Cycle Infrastructure Improvement Programme
(Appendix A) fall within the definition of infrastructure that can be CIL funded in
accordance with the CIL Regulations 2010 (as amended) and the provision of
cycling measures was evidenced as an infrastructure priority within the Southend
IDP.

At a time when the financial position is particularly challenging and funding may
not be available from other sources, CIL funding that has previously been secured
from new development in the city, can make a significant difference to the well-
being of our residents by delivering the infrastructure needed to support
development in the area.

If the use of CIL funding is agreed, it is the intention to commence works by March
2023. They will deliver substantial improvements to our cycle infrastructure
across the city over a relatively short implementation period.

Corporate Implications

Contribution to the Southend 2050 Road Map

Report Title: Proposed Community Page 3 of 6
Infrastructure Levy (CIL) spending

— Cycle Infrastructure Improvement

Programme

107




6.1.1

6.2

6.2.1

6.2.2

6.3

6.3.1

6.4

6.4.1

6.5

6.5.1

6.6

6.6.1

6.7

CIL income is to be spent on community infrastructure that supports development
in the city. The proposed CIL spending will support the delivery of several of the
council’s corporate priorities as identified in the Southend 2050 ambition,
particularly those under the themes of Connected and Smart and Safe and Well,
through promoting active travel and associated benefits.

Financial Implications

A proposed CIL main spend of £1million would use 36% of the CIL Main Fund as
it stood at the end of the financial year 2021-22. It is considered that this is
appropriate use of CIL funding. The provision of improved cycle routes will ensure
that revenue maintenance costs are minimised. Where revenue costs are
required, this is to be funded by the Traffic and Highways maintenance budget.

Other common sources of income for improving cycle infrastructure, may be
included through the capital programme, S106 and specific funding bids.
However, apart from the identified Local Transport Plan funding there is no
guarantee of funding through other sources.

Legal Implications

All procedures in relation to CIL implementation, collection, reporting and
spending must adhere to the Planning Act 2008 (as amended) and the
Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010 (as amended). The proposed
spending is fully compliant with the relevant legislation.

People Implications

Staff resources, particularly within the Neighbourhoods and Environment Team,
will be required to liaise with procurement, stakeholders and to effectively project
manage the proposed works to ensure the infrastructure is delivered in a timely
manner and within the agreed budget. Planning staff resource will also be needed
to administer the spending of CIL Main Fund monies.

Property Implications

The Neighbourhoods and Environment Team may need to liaise with the Property
and Estate Management Team as work goes ahead in relation to enhancing any
council assets.

Consultation

Spending of the CIL Main Fund does not require statutory consultation. The
identification of necessary infrastructure to support growth identified in adopted
Local Development Plan Documents as set out by Southend IDP was subject to
stakeholder engagement. In addition, the highway team state in Appendix A, that
they have undertaken a ‘city-wide holistic cycle audit, which included public
consultation’.

Equalities and Diversity Implications

Report Title: Proposed Community Page 4 of 6
Infrastructure Levy (CIL) spending

— Cycle Infrastructure Improvement

Programme

108




6.7.1

6.8

6.8.1

6.9

6.9.1

6.10

CIL funding contributes towards infrastructure and community needs across a
wide spectrum of businesses and residents within the city. Any decisions in
relation to CIL spending must be made taking into consideration issues of equality
and diversity. Correct procurement procedures would need to be followed and
the infrastructure provided should be accessible to all. This can be ensured
through the appropriate detailed design of the cycle infrastructure as it is
developed.

Risk Assessment

There is a possible risk that spending the CIL Main Fund as set out above is not
delivered in a timely manner. Appropriate management of the process by the
council highways team should provide adequate mitigation for such risk.

Value for Money

Appropriate council procurement/tendering processes will ensure value for
money in delivering the proposed cycle infrastructure improvements.

Community Safety Implications

6.10.1 Community safety can be improved and ensured through the appropriate detailed

6.11

design of the cycle infrastructure as it is developed.

Environmental Impact

6.11.1 The proposed Cycle Routes & Path Improvement Programme will support

increased cycling in the city, which in turn will help tackle some of the most
challenging issues we face as a society including improving air quality,
combatting climate change, improving health and wellbeing, addressing
inequalities, and tackling congestion on our roads.

7. Background Papers/Reference Documents
7.1 The Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010 (as amended)
7.2  Southend-on-Sea City Council CIL Charging Schedule 2015
7.3  National Planning Policy Guidance
7.4  Cycling Delivery Report
7.5  Southend-on-Sea City Council CIL Governance Framework 2015
7.6  Southend-on-Sea City Council Infrastructure Delivery Plan 2015
8. Appendices
8.1  Appendix A: Proposed Cycle Routes & Path Improvement Programme
8.2 Appendix A1: Short-term scheme (Seafront Cycle Track)
Report Title: Proposed Community Page 5 of 6

Infrastructure Levy (CIL) spending
— Cycle Infrastructure Improvement
Programme

109



https://www.southend.gov.uk/downloads/file/3717/cil_governance_framework
https://www.southend.gov.uk/downloads/file/3412/southend_infrastructure_delivery_plan_%20E2%2080%2093_february_2015

8.3 Appendix A2: Medium-term scheme (Quietway's)
8.4 Appendix A3: Long-term schemes

8.4 Appendix B: Infrastructure Funding Statement 2021-22

Report Title: Proposed Community Page 6 of 6
Infrastructure Levy (CIL) spending

— Cycle Infrastructure Improvement

Programme

110


https://www.southend.gov.uk/downloads/file/7640/infrastructure-funding-statement-2021-22

Cycle Routes & Path Improvement Programme CIL Main Fund Application

In 2020 the UK Government launch the cycling and walking strategy for England. Stating that:
‘Increasing cycling and walking can help tackle some of the most challenging issues we face as a society
— improving air quality, combatting climate change, improving health and wellbeing, addressing
inequalities and tackling congestion on our roads’.

In response the Council bid for and was awarded capital funding as part of the Active Travel Fund,
which is being used to install sustainable lighting along the Prittlebook Greenway, install secure cycle
parking and introduce further School Streets projects. Furthermore, following the completion of the
city-wide holistic cycle audit, which included public consultation, a short, medium and long-term
programme of future works has been developed. To support this Southend also receives Capability
Funding to encourage behavioural change as part of the government’s commitment to ensure ‘that
understanding of transport users’ needs, motivations and behaviours is central to what we do, in order
to maximise our chances of success’. The government have also indicated that there will be further
rounds of Capability Funds to reinforce the commitment to behavioural change.

In addition, as part of the Council’s development of the Local Transport Plan 4, a Local Cycling and
Walking Infrastructure Plan (LCWIP) is being produced. This will build on the work undertaken since
Southend was awarded Cycle Town status in 2008. Southend’s 2050 ambition states that we will
‘continue to work to ensure that our residents, visitors, and those who work in Southend-on-Sea can
easily get in, out of and around our city’. As part of this the Council is working to ‘facilitate a wide
choice of transport that improves accessibility, connectivity and mobility to all residents. Including,
working with public transport providers to deliver these long-term aspirations’.

To support and reinforce work that is already in the process of being delivered through the Active
Travel Fund, we have taken this opportunity to review the Cycling Delivery report. This Report has
been produced from the results of the holistic cycle audit, public consultation, and engagement with
the cycling community. The report has a proposed programme of future phased (short, medium and
long term) cycling measures to be delivered across the City.

By utilising the CIL funding, it will be possible to expedite the delivery of the cycling measures within
this report. These improvements will address a number of identified network deficiencies and also
network improvement requests from the cycling community. Taken together, (the Active Travel
Fund & CIL) these two cycling improvement programmes will provide the added impetus to net zero
by enabling our citizens who are able to travel around the city sustainably.

This CIL bid is in three phases: short, medium and long-term projects.

Short Term

Following a review of the existing cycle facilities there are several areas of existing cycle lanes where
the road markings and delineation has become worn. This can cause uncertainty for all road users
and discourage those existing or would be cyclists from using the facilities that already exist as well
as potentially reduce the uptake of any new facilities that may be constructed.

Seafront Cycle Track Infrastructure Improvement Scheme

The entire cycle track length from Chalkwell Avenue to Shoebury Common Road requires

considerable improvement works. Those items that require the earliest intervention have been
summarised below.

111



The work will cost in the region of £40,000 and will include:
e Replace all missing cycle signs
e Replace / refresh all existing cycle track line markings

e Replace all missing bollards

Chalkwell Avenue to Western Esplanade

e Most of the cycle signs to TSRGD Diag. No. 955 are missing in most of the bollards.
e Most cycle track line markings need refreshing
e ‘GIVE WAY’ cycle signs to TSRGD Diag. No. 955 are missing in most bollards

e The majority of the cycle track markings on Western Esplanade (near the Southend Pier)
need refreshing.

112



e Additionally, the existing green high friction surface treatment is almost gone from cycle
track from Chalkwell Avenue to Western Esplanade. It will cost in the region of £210,000 to
re-apply the green high friction surface treatment on the cycle track from Chalkwell Avenue
to Western Esplanade.

Near Lifstan Way (Eastern Esplanade)

e All cycle track line markings need refreshing.
e Ponding on cycle track, either kerb gully is blocked, or cycle track profile needs reprofiling.

113



Opposite property No. 173 Eastern Esplanade

e Cycle track in poor condition

e Missing signage

e All cycle track line markings need refreshing
e  Missing bollards and signs on existing island

Opposite Camper Road, Eastern Esplanade

e Numerous cracks on the cycle track
e Cycle track line markings needs refreshing
e Lots of missing signs

114



Opposite Premier Inn, Eastern Esplanade

e Lots of cracks on the cycle track
e Cycle track needs resurfacing & cycle line markings refreshing

e Additionally, this area of cycle track requires cycle track reconstruction, the cost is estimated
in the region of £110,000 to undertake this work from Forge Way to Plas Newydd (Eastern
Esplanade).

Thorpe Esplanade

o Refresh all cycle lane markings
e Replace all missing cycle signs

115



Eastern Esplanade — Shoebury Common Road

e Refresh all cycle lane markings
e Replace all missing cycle signs
e Replace all missing and defective bollards

(O}
LOOK
BOTH WAYS

Short-term scheme estimate is £360,000.00

(Please note, no intrusive investigations have been undertaken in terms of carriageway coring or
CCTV drainage surveys at the present time).

For proposed scheme drawings, please see Appendix Al.

116



Medium Term

There are a number of existing roads that do not attract significant levels of motorised vehicles and
therefore are ideal for use by less confident cyclists to either link between existing off road cycle
facilities or provide relatively ‘car free’ routes to destinations within the city. These quieter routes
will be signed and minimally lined (where required).

The first of these routes will be:

e Leigh to Central Southend Quietway (Southern Spur)
e Leigh to Southend Victoria Quietway (Northern Spur)
e Shoeburyness to Southend Victoria Quietway

The emerging LCWIP will build on these routes along with introducing others.

The estimated cost for these three quieter routes are as follows

Leigh to Central Southend Quietway £39,000.00
Leigh to Southend Victoria Quietway £45,000.00
Shoeburyness to Southend Victoria Quietway £65,000.00

Medium-Term scheme estimate is £149,000.00

For proposed scheme drawings, please see Appendix A2.

117



Long Term

An off-carriageway cycle route is proposed, utilising the boulevard areas within the central reserve.
The proposed route is Blenheim Chase to Prittlewell Chase via Kenilworth Gardens.

An additional route is also proposed, which would connect the proposed Blenheim Chase to
Prittlewell Chase route to the existing A127 route, via Mountdale Gardens.

This design will be developed whilst the short and medium terms items are being introduced and
their usage monitored.

This work will be subject to a public consultation through the formal Traffic Regulation Order (TRO)
process. Following the TRO process, and once the design is developed further, a second report to

Cabinet will follow.

The estimated costs for this long-term scheme is as follows

Boulevard (off- Boulevard (off-carriageway)
carriageway)
Asphalt Surface Granular Surface

Blenheim to £600,000.00 £1,000,000.00

Prittlewell Chase

For proposed scheme drawings, please see Appendix A3.
Price and Programme Summary for CIL Cycling Improvements Bid

Depending on which long-term proposed option is chosen, the total price of the works varies, please
see below.

Short Term Scheme £360,000.00

Medium Term Schemes £149,000.00

Long Term Scheme — off carriageway £600,000 to £1,000,000.00 (dependant on surface type
chosen)

Whilst it is clear from the summary table above that the estimated cost of the whole proposed
scheme is in excess of the £1,000,000.00 currently available from CIL fudning, it is proposed that LTP
funding, spanning two finanical years (23/24 & 25/25) will be utilised to address the shortfall in
funding.

For this reason, and to also allow sufficient time to develop the detailed design of the proposed off
and on carriageway routes, (including time for consultations, Cabinet reports, statutory traffic
orders) the proposed programme is below.

Scheme Commence Complete
Short Term March 2023 April 2023
Medium Term March 2023 May 2023

Long Term — preliminary design March 2023 August 2023
Long Term — detailed design September 2023 January 2024
Long Term — construction February 2024 May/June 2024

118



119



This page is intentionally left blank



40¥0-301005 K005 100¢ 00120 143035

WOUODULAY 150U

g

31NOY SINIWIAOHdNI

HOVHL 310AD LNOYH-Y3S
iy O

NOWIWOO AYNE30HS
= 3NN3AV TIIMAIVHO
L ewipe

'DZ TS5 '005 U0 PUaYINOS “anuony UORIA
04480 W ‘0955 x00 Od

WO PUe BpOOUINORUIN

I1puneg Ay
©2S-UO-pUOYINOS

AAVNV1dST 3d40HL

S
3avNvdsa N¥aLsam )

QvNvds3
AN o

24N0H XOVHL TIIAD INoNAvaS I

g

LR

R ——
P e il kit

NovioiN
AVANTANOMANG ONY HITVIH ‘AL34vS




10D A33-098 NIO001H0000II

WOV 0D ey bomac]
SIN
.| v o)
el

m .4_ EE
g paoiday| wing]_pavseur)

ooz o3| comons| ol
| o owo| _umain|
YNdS NY3HLNOS - AN3
HLNOS TVHLNIO OL HOI31
i Do)

$31N0Y L3IND

5.103ro¥d ONITOAD - 1D
LN

073 55 5 U0 PUOLINGG ‘ONUGAY ELTIIIA
‘auoD WD 0955 00 Od
WOWUBIALT] PUU SPOOUINOGUTION.

Ijounog Ao
00S-UO-pUOYINOS

= e e SRR T ]
17 avou NOLLYYOS Jm:h v
el ST
,.._;.xJ, N e /

- { S
T ML}M ,_

5 ﬁv nr =i

KNy -
mwf.b,/e ”!;n =

7 I . > Y2/ i ¥ ; = A = —
I

el

)

nﬂ.mmai.; SN

T

e i)
BENBHE

Hesxe |

) imSne ey

& vy 2,
ol e L
é_,.L Sl s i X

XD ; o Qs v =4 7 i N Y 5
=it oo aVOd S.LNJONIA LS 707 e Zie e
SN T/ I o &a avoy _._e_m:%
Ammw A, 7 : aeSsHESAe IR
.r, \// . k , ) A

i avod 3

4
BT

. avoy

e

SEERT

R NS

m@@ﬂ\y e
VAU e it
N e e

SR e

A3 NHIHINOS - AYMLTIND
Ee== \

okt - \ <

- T = g AR e %\WM%P”“ .,“ e i YId3dini n‘..j*# |
SRR e ; S Z A ) Z 2 SRR S Se = it Wﬂ sz
i =\ MRS T W A s #ESERRAES R S fwwmmﬁ%}m@mmw% B




e T

a al] ﬂ._.z_lUlil

IOvDI 199308 1IN 112908

=3 ve| ceion| ol

cwnon| m|  wewiow| oy
smmr)

ANdS WAYUON - BUOJOIA
puayInos o3 ybia|

om; Guanau|

S3)noy 32D
sielaid Bulohd 11D
e

020 233 '€US UD PUARNOS "enueay SUIA
SUNPD ND 0955 X008 Od

AN PUE EONOTRAN

I1Punog Ao
U9S-uo-pueyinos:

N4 KABUNON - AVIALIND.
VIHOLAA GNHINOB OL KO

7

/%

Z




XXXX-XX=XX-XXX-XXX-0ES-XXX-XXXXXI08S

Jaquinpn Bumelqg

Aeuiwald

smiejg Bumelq

X

uoIsIney

S1N
£

v © se|edg

€20z/e0/€e
siedg

Wr
panoiddy

£202/L0/€T
sjed

ov
P3%93yd

€2/1L0/EL
ajeq

SS
MIIASY

£€202/10/€2
sjeq

oS
umelg

0s 14

Juswabuelly [elauan)

B110J31A PUSYINOS 0] SSauAingaoys
3L Bumelq

SN0y 18IND
sjoefoud BulpAD 110

3L wafoid

0Z9 ZSS ‘B9S UO pUsyINos ‘anusAy BLORIA
813U NI “098S X0d Od

JuswuolIAUg pue spooylnoqybiaN

[lounog Aj9
B9S-Uo-pusyjnos

ajeq|ddy| uig -uonduosaq|Asy

v

P5= NOLNOIZLSMIYE
NOLNSIZLSJOHSIE

0\
INNIAV SONINAO

QdvAZTINOg

HOYNHOHLNOS

AVMLIIND VIYOLIIA
AN3HLNOS OL SSANAYNGIOHS

AN

Bujysijowaq

HLYON AVM NITdYIN

ISVYHO
NI3HO SaINANOE
AVM 3AATD

Wl><»> 3aA19

SNIAQAVYO Nv3IA30d

- v

=

avod AYNg30HS

3NON |/ Bujuoissiwwodeq

3NON asn

3NON

Bujuesjd
| 9dueudjuien

N3I3YO SaININOE

Y

3NON UORINISUCY

S¥si [enpisa. Juedyjubls Buimol|o} 3y} Bjou ‘Buimep siy) Lo pajieep
Hom Jo sedAy ay) yum Ayeuuou 2y} 0 uopippe Ul

NOILLVIN¥OLNI
Y.LNIWNOUIANT ANV HLTVIH ‘AL3dVS

A

2
g
f
<7

0896100041V "sBuipasooid

1IA0 Jo uoynoasoud o} pee| Aew pue JyBuAkdos
umaig sebuuju uoponpoides pesuoyineun
“JyBluAdod umas) @ @ayQ Aieuonels

sAisafely JaH Jo Ja]0u0D aY) Jo Jleyeq uo
AKaming soueupiQ Jo uoissiuued oY) Yim eusjew
Asnng aoueupIQ Woy paonposdal st dew sjy )

AVM SN33N0

13341S LJOHS
AYOd JNOSHNYHE =

avod NOLLNS
Qvod ALINIFL

QvOod 3OVNVMS
Qvod ad04alino

avod ST3LSNVH NOILVLS

VIJOLIIA ANIHLNOS




1010-0-0718-08S-2011LL008S
§§§§§§
popngsuogsy | | uepuay
uopanas 1su0) Asevjwijoid
neis Bumelq
v 0T0ZTHILL
ooy o10g| poacuddy
OZOZZHLL
oeq MaIAa}
o i TR
SL'N oy
0Z0T/BOIYE|
1y B st ang|

< ‘ wﬁ@%ﬁ%@@@ﬂﬁm il
s ﬂlvﬂ(/wmﬁ u.s_aaaru wnog m .‘

R
ZALNSE Puod UnoI0GlliH
§
» e
1 I

T
SRVA =i
el 5 v/ il f

Repp 310A pasodoud

_ 5Aog o) [00yos

L YBIH pusLnog
0Z92sS - S
'89S UO PUSYINOS 'aNUIAY BUORIA | ™

|1UaY IO ‘095S X°8 Od

jusWuolAUT pue
spooysnoqyBian Joy
juswpedag

[ounog AjQ
B3S-U0-pusaynos

anig u.EoE.w__o S

: 2
RN { o A _
= — ¥ =t P B oroe: o
; : il X
i - =
t 1] G fi ol L
=) s E . el 5 {7
H i 5 i 11
1 L T | i = +
b it s —L peoy uojais T
S e N e e 1 1 ol L
] i Ty
N S on o
G : i f
l |} — =

...,‘v ..\ n

O jooyos yem |

4 - EQSEEEFH\Q
AT 1 | T

uB|80p PATAP |- N
01 129(QNG PUT GA|IBIIPU] 5| UMOYS BINCS BAAT i £

o| u .xm.m.l .“ UAPJED JopnL
o]

% It a el
-
¢\ rl 1 e ~ e \
o um o | B t RS - % & \
S ol 7 L
3 < ol -aqna- TT 17Tk p H T %
; =X 2 b 3
% T ) i
Lt e, 3 up ;
Lo H i L by D, e 1 =
= A R o . N riny YUON proy poomises N
: Hr 4 e [ S/eS
4 £ ) [ 7 ~ - Ay ‘. 4 71l ¢ y -
R - angaash S
- 2] =} L[ T SISO /
(= I e Lo .
o
3 T %




m A
BangERas()

=T =
20L0-0-018-08S-£0L1L008S =
Joquiny Buimnig

Japuoy B @ t

Aivuwiosd Au

PRIAIEUOD BY

uognAsuo)

smuig Bummg [2

v 02022411 HN|
uorainoy g porciddy|

020Z2H/b4| W
o moinoy

SUAPITD ULOM||LSY

0TOZ/TL/LL| HN| )
g popou)
0Z0Z/GO/YZ | oV
Lv 3 soleag | oweg umi
—wiomsl __ovgl _uwig

‘SI'N

it

1
':-:l:':l__':',

——

N0Y [BUOKIPPY ki mm.
asey) wisyua|g

ol Bupmasg|

=0
T T T 1 11 8

SUBPICD OJUPIUNON.

Aepp 9j9A pasodoid .A
()

L EL

0z9zss
‘23S U0 puUaYINog ‘anUaAY BLOJIA
34uaQ 21D '095S X0F Od

PN

jJuswuoiAUT pue
spooyinoqyBian Joj
juswyedaqg

jlounod Ao — > Ne)
B9S-UO-puayINog X

—

=

DAUQ 109001

ONIQ UNE|20I )"

=

890U Wieyualg

:-:l:-:-:':-:':

2 SUAPITD S[UPIUNO
N (e

—— 1 o 1 )

-

0AUQ O[EPUOAY.

AN
b PO [|j0U0IS.

=l

ubjop pojoiop
01120/qnS PUE OANEIPU| 5 UMOYS BINCJ 0] |

TN _ =

oinoY 914D £Z4 Bupispxa

ainoy
0fao eseyp wioyuolg pesodold

2inoy 91243 |euolippy pasodasy

o iewiouo [ v

owq | wny seg now 7

suojsjney

| onuony sHoxdlq -

{UON proy poomisn3

) 0524D Wioyuolg

-
e
o

[l

07810001 TV 3w
e 0 s o pee o e o

Tooin
o}

=
=

TR LT
(&
]

4

8nuQ YBja|sw|

YHON proy poomises
o

onuohy poomyBio

anUBRY POOMIEQ g 5|

aNiQ poomB

pooy Aaju

Lo oy

31y

2l iy )0 0103100 o0 o G 0

Ao SR o perpasdas v e

T

Y

2
=
S

s
i

)

e ——

T

i
5

LT

| e e

T

mmn

Iy

i

p

oAuQ poomiog
T

1A e e o

)

=0

W

> ONUOAY POOMYEQ FH1

o

81 ~

L2 ®

A




XA

Infrastructure Funding Statement

Reported Year
1 April 2021 to 31 March 2022

onsed

w\uthend



8¢T

Contents

INFraStrUCTUIE FUNING STATEMENT ..ottt ettt ettt et et e st s e s e s e et et esessesese et et aseesesase et et aseasesese s et assssasase s et asarsesase s et esersesanesesesarsesesersasanens 1
Lo INETOAUCTION L.ttt ettt ettt e ettt b et b et e bt e h et Rt e e b st e h e et e R st e s e st e s R st e e s st e e R e s et eaeaeatsbes e et eseaesnenesesaesenenene 4
2. EXECULIVE SUMMAIY oottt st e et st et et e st et et e st et ese st assese st e st eseesasseseesanses et asseseasasseseesanses et ans et e et anses e et enses et entes et anseseesansesensasseseatenessensensssensansesensansesens 5
Summary Table 1: Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) FUNAS 2027110 2022.......coiiieeeireeieieetsieeeeteesesaesessesesesassesesessesassssesassssesessssesassssesessesessssssesessssens 5
Summary Table 2: Section 106 (S.106) Planning Obligation FUNAS 202110 2022.......eiiieeeeeteetestetetete ettt et re st et ese s essesa st e s esessassesessassesassassesens 5
3. Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) contributions fOr 2027110 2022 ...ttt ettt e et e et s et esesbesaesesseseesasseseesasseseesansessesesseneasan 6
31 CIL FUNAING SUMMAIY ..otiitiietieieieieteteteteteteete e testeste e st etesessestesassasseseesasseseasasseseesassesessessessasansestesensestesessesssensessesessessesensestesensessesensessesensessesensessesensessesensesseseseseeses 6
TADIE 1: TOTAI CIL SUMMIAIY vttt ettt ettt et et et et et et e s e se st e s et ese et et aneesassaneesaasentesessanses et anteseasantesersenteseasenseseasantesessantesersentesersantesersantesensansesersensesensan 6
3.2 CIL MAIN FUNG ittt ettt bbbttt sttt b b bttt a4 s 4 b bbbt b et a e s e s 44 b bbb bttt ettt e bbb bbb e sttt st st st et et bbb s et aeaeaes 7
3.3 CIL NeighbDOUINOOA AIIOCAIION ..ottt st ettt e e te st et ebe st e e ete st eseese st asaesessaseesessaseesessassasessesses et asaesessassas et aseesessassesessaneasessessasessansesensasensensasenns 7

3.31 CIL LOCAl COUNCI AIIOCATION. ...ttt ettt ettt ettt b ettt be bt s ke st b e b et et e s et s b e b et et esea e e b e b et et e s eatebeb et et esentebeb et et esentebese e ebesentebesentas 7

332 CIL Ward NeighbOUIrNOOA AHOCATION ..ottt sttt ettt et st st e e st et e s e e b et ese s b et e st sbantesees et eneesesteseebantesessentenessantenensansesensanes 9
Table 2: Details of CIL Ward NeighboUrNOOA AHOCALIONS ..ottt ettt ettt e st abese b e ssese b esseseeseasesesbassessesensessessasesessessesasessessesensenes 9
Figure 1: CIL Ward Neighbourhood AllOCations DY 2050 OULCOMES......couoiiiiiiiirieeteeree ettt b ettt et b et b et be st b et et eb et s beb et stebenesbebeneas 13
4. Section 106 (S.106) planning obligation contributions fOr 202110 2022 ...ttt ettt ettt s bt st e e esesseseesesseneesenes 14
4.1 S.106 fINANCIAl CONIDULIONS FECEIVET ...ttt bbb bbb bttt ettt s bbb b bttt d bbb b bbbttt st st sttt bene 14
Table 3: Details of S.106 income received to date in financial year 2021t0 2022 (as at 31 March 2022) ... 15
Figure 2: Contribution of S.106 income received to achieving 2050 OUICOMES ......c.oeiirieiririeitrieertete ettt ettt ettt sttt be e ssebe st stebeneas 16
4.2 S106 fINANCIAl CONIIDULIONS SPENT.. .ottt ettt et et et e be s teebeetsetbesb et asba st aebeessessessassasbasbanbeebsessessassessansansesesetsessessensassensestaseessass 17
Table 4: Details of S.106 expenditure in financial Year 2027110 2022 ... ettt sttt sttt et e et e st e e e be st e e s b et e st sbestesesbentenessansenessanes 17
Figure 3: S.106 expenditure DY 2050 OULCOMES .......civiiiiiieicteeieteteetete ittt e et e st et et e te e etesse st etessessesassassesessassesassassesessass et et assesassassesassassesessessesesassesasassesessaneas 19
4.3 S.106 financial contributions NOt reQUITEd @NA FEIUIMEM ...ttt ettt ettt ettt e bt e st et et e s e et et e st ebasbessesesbessesassassesansassesensaseesans 20
4.4 S.106 financial contributions alloCated DU NOT YOT SPENT......o ettt ettt st ettt et et e b et ese st et e s e sbe st enessassesessansenessansanessans 20
Table 5: Details of S.106 financial contributions allocated to projects (but not yet spent) in financial year 202110 2022 ......ccooevvevevrenecnenerennns 20
5. Estimated future income from developer CONTIDULIONS .......ccvoiieieieeeeeee ettt et ettt e bt e b e seese s eseebasseseebassasaesessassesansaseesensansasenes 22



62T

5.1 Value of CIL set out in all Demand Notices issued in the rePOITEA YEAI ...ttt sttt ettt nes 22

5.2 Value of S.106 planning obligations entered iNtO iN the FEPOIMEA YEAT ... ettt et ettt e s e e senseneens 22
Table 6: Details of planning obligations entered into during the reported year 202110 2022 ...ttt 23
6.  Planning for iNfraStrUCIUIE E@XPENAITUIE .....coov ittt ettt et e et s b e e et e st ese et e b eseebesbeseesassassesesbassebessessasassessesasseseesassessesassensasassessesansesenns 27
6.1 What do developer CONTIIDULIONS AEIIVEIT ...ttt sttt e et sttt st et et e st et et e st e e e b e st eseese st esees et eseebassessasessassesansasaesassaseesansansasessesensansasenns 27
6.2 FULUIE SPENUING PHIOMTIES ..ottt ettt ettt et et st et et e et e e st e st et ese st eseesessesees et essesesaseesassaseeseseseesasseseesesseneebenseneesentaseesanteseesenseseesansensasansesensansesense 28
T CONCIUSION ittt ettt ettt ettt b sttt b e et b et s b b et st e bt b e b et e b eae et e b e e et e bt ot b e b e ot et beae e b e b et et esea e e b e b eae et e b e st b e b e a e et e b eat b e b et et e b eat et eb e e st ebeneebebe et ebenentene 29
Appendix 1: SOUTNENT 2050 OULCOMIES.......cviiieieiiietetestete ettt ettt e ettt e b e st b et et e sessesessessessesessesessassesessassesesassasesasseseasassesesassessseasessesessesensessesassensesessensesensan 30
Southend 2050 THEMES & OULCOMIES .....c.coiiriririririeieieicitiet ettt ettt ettt ettt sttt b bbbttt st e e s bbb sttt ettt et bbb s at ettt st sttt bebebeneatateaeseees 31



0€T

1. Introduction

Local authorities are required to publish an annual infrastructure funding statement (IFS) providing details of developer contributions
to infrastructure' from the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL)? and Section 106 (S.106) planning obligations?.

Southend-on-Sea City Council became a CIL Charging Authority, and commenced CIL charging, in July 2015; and has been securing
developer contributions through planning obligations since the introduction of Section 106 of The Town and Country Planning Act
1990 (as amended).

For the purpose of this IFS, the Reported Year is the financial year from 1 April 2021 to 31 March 2022.

Further information regarding CIL and S.106 planning obligations can be found on the Council’s website or obtained from the
Planning Portal or the Government’s online Planning Practice Guidance.

" Regulation 121A of the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) Regulations 2010 (as amended). The matters included in this IFS reflect the requirements set out in
Schedule 2 of the regulations.

2 The Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) is a charge which can be levied by local authorities on new development in their area. It is an important tool for local
authorities to use to help them deliver the infrastructure needed to support development in their area.

3 Planning obligations under Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended), commonly known as S.106 agreements, are a mechanism
which make a development proposal acceptable in planning terms, that would not otherwise be acceptable. They are focused on site specific mitigation of the
impact of development.

4


http://www.southend.gov.uk/cil
https://www.planningportal.co.uk/info/200136/policy_and_legislation/70/community_infrastructure_levy/5
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/community-infrastructure-levy

TET

2. Executive Summary

Summary Table 1: Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) Funds 2021 to 2022
. Amount
Total value of CIL set out in all Demand Notices issued in the reported year £1,127,607.67
Total amount of CIL receipts carried over from previously reported years £1,979,577.69
Total amount of CIL receipts in reported year £1,296,881.50
Total amount of CIL expenditure (including admin expenses) in reported year £74,797.63
Total overpayments returned* in reported year £31,408.68
Total amount transferred to other organisations in reported year £37,678.73
Total amount of CIL allocated but unspent in reported year £94,878.39
Total amount of CIL collected in any year yet to be allocated and remaining to be spent at the end of the £3,037,695.76
reported year

Reported Year 2021 to

Summary Table 2: Section 106 (S.106) Planning Obligation Funds 2021 to 2022%
- _Amount

~ Total amount of money to be provided under any planning obligations which were entered into during reported tbc

N year®

8 Total amount of money under any planning obligations carried over from previously reported years which had not | £1,726,797.35
f:) been allocated and was available to spend at the start of reported year

- Total amount of money under any planning obligations carried over from previously reported years which was £2,325,106.42
S allocated but not spent at the start of the reported year

E Total amount of money under any planning obligations which was received in reported year £141,825.94

o Total amount of money under any planning obligations which was spent in reported year £1,207,751.34
> Total amount of money under any planning obligations transferred to other organisations in reported year £0.00

8 Total amount of money under any planning obligations which was allocated but not spent at the end of the £1,304,351.44
"g reported year

% Total amount of money under any planning obligations yet to be allocated and remaining to be spent at the £1,681,626.93
o end of reported year

4 Payments are returned under CIL Regulation 75 (Overpayments) if the amount paid proves to be greater than the amount due.

5 Figures correct at time of preparation of this report but may be subject to adjustments.

8 This figure relates to either development that has yet to commence or implemented schemes for which the due date for contributions has not yet been
reached i.e. the contributions have not been received and cannot be guaranteed to be received. The figure cannot be confirmed as the developments
concerned included an outline planning permission, details of which have yet to be agreed.

5



CceT

3. Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) contributions for 2021 to 2022

3.1 CIL Funding Summary
Table 1 sets out the CIL financial summary for 2021to 2022 for the period from 1 April 2021 to 31 March 2022.

Table 1: Total CIL Summary

Total CIL receipts carried over from i £1,979,577.69
Total CIL receipts? in reported year including: £1,296,881.50
CIL receipts in CIL Main Fund in reported year £1,046,563.55
CIL receipts in CIL Neighbourhood Allocation in reported year (15% of total receipts less surcharges) £185,473.87
CIL received for administrative expenses in reported year (5% of reported year total) £64,844.08
Total CIL receipts carried over from previously reported years and received in reported year £3,276,459.19
Total overpayments returned in reported year® £31,408.68
Balance of CIL receipts after overpayments returned £3,245,050.51
Total amount of CIL applied to administrative expenses in the reported year™ £63,273.64
Total expenditure from CIL Ward Neighbourhood Allocation in reported year™ £11,523.99
Total amount of CIL transferred to Leigh Town Council (LTC) from the reported year (Local Council £37,678.73
Neighbourhood Allocation)

Total CIL receipts in CIL Main Fund and CIL Ward Neighbourhood Allocation unspent at the end of the £3,132,574.15
reported year™

Total CIL Ward Neighbourhood Allocation amount allocated but unspent in the reported year™ £94,878.39
Total CIL receipts in CIL Main Fund and CIL Ward Neighbourhood Allocation yet to be allocated and £3,037,695.76

remaining available to spend at the end of the reported year"

7 This includes all unspent receipts within the CIL Main Fund and CIL Ward Neighbourhood Allocation.

8 This figure comprises total funds received in financial year 2021to 2022 only i.e. does not include the value of any unpaid invoices raised in the reported
year. In addition, CIL receipts include the value of land payments and infrastructure payments made in respect of CIL charges.

9 Payments are returned under CIL Regulation 75 (Overpayments) if the amount paid proves to be greater than the amount due.

10 Receipts to CIL Admin Fund reduced by £ £1,570.43 to take into account overpayments returned in reported year.

" See Table 2 for a detailed breakdown.

12 This figure can include the value of acquired land on which development consistent with a relevant purpose has not commenced OR the acquired land has
been used or disposed of for a purpose other than the relevant purposes and the amount deemed to be CIL by virtue of regulation 73(9) has not been spent
AND the value of infrastructure if the infrastructure has not been provided.

3 See Table 2 for a detailed breakdown.

4 £0.01 difference to table in section 3.2 and 3.3 due to rounding differences.

6



€eT

3.2 CIL Main fund

The CIL Main Fund is to be spent on strategic infrastructure that is considered essential to deliver the growth identified in the city’s
Local Development Plan. This infrastructure was initially identified in the CIL Infrastructure Delivery Plan 2015 (‘IDP’) but is under
review as part of the new Southend Local Plan.

CIL Main Fund (summary)

Main Fund carried over from previously reported years £1,745,122.24
Main Fund receipts for the reported year £1,046,563.55
Total overpayments returned in the reported year®™ £25,126.94
Main Fund expenditure for the reported year £0.00

Main Fund retained at the end of the reported year £2,766,558.85

3.3 CIL Neighbourhood Allocation

Neighbourhood Allocation (summary)

Neighbourhood Allocation carried over by Southend-on-Sea City Council from previously reported years £234,455.46
Total Neighbourhood Allocation receipts for the reported year including funds to be transferred to LTC £185,473.87

Total CIL receipts to be transferred to LTC for the reported year £37,678.73
Total overpayments returned in the reported year™ £4,711.30
Neighbourhood Allocation expenditure for the reported year excluding funds transferred to LTC £11,523.99
Total CIL Ward Neighbourhood Allocation unspent at the end of the reported year" £366,015.31
Total CIL Ward Neighbourhood Allocation amount allocated but unspent in the reported year™ £94,878.39

Total CIL Ward Neighbourhood Allocation yet to be allocated and remaining to spend at the end of the £271,136.92
reported year™

3.3.1 CIL Local Council Allocation

'S Payments are returned under CIL Regulation 75 (Overpayments) if the amount paid proves to be greater than the amount due.
'8 Payments are returned under CIL Regulation 75 (Overpayments) if the amount paid proves to be greater than the amount due.
7. £0.02 difference to Table 2 due to rounding differences.

'8 See Table 2 for a detailed breakdown.

9. €0.02 difference to Table 2 due to rounding differences



Local parish council: Leigh Town Council (LTC

Total CIL receipts allocated to LTC for the reported year £37,678.73
Ward breakdown:

CIL receipts within Belfairs (within LTC boundary) £3,716.83
CIL receipts within Blenheim Park (within LTC boundary) £10,888.35
CIL receipts within Leigh £18,954.46
CIL receipts within West Leigh £4,119.09
Deductions?° from allocated amount in reported year £0.00

Details of any requests for repayment of CIL receipts from LTC that have not been applied to support the
development of its area within 5 years of receipt:

Total value of CIL receipts requested to be returned from LTC £0.00
Total value of CIL receipts yet to be recovered from LTC for the reported year £0.00
Total CIL receipts to be transferred to LTC for the reported year £37,678.73

Leigh-on-Sea Town Council’s CIL Annual Reports, setting out details of expenditure, are published on the Parish Council’s website:
http://www.leighonseatowncouncil.gov.uk

VeET

20 payments are returned under CIL Regulation 75 (Overpayments) if the amount paid proves to be greater than the amount due.

8


http://www.leighonseatowncouncil.gov.uk/

GET

3.3.2 CIL Ward Neighbourhood Allocation

The CIL Ward Neighbourhood Allocation must be spent on schemes that will help support development of the ward area by funding
either: a) the provision, improvement, replacement, operation or maintenance of infrastructure; or b) anything else that is concerned
with addressing the demands that development places on an area.

Details relating to expenditure of the Neighbourhood Allocation within Southend-on-Sea City Council Wards in the reported year are
set out in Table 2 below.

Table 2: Details of CIL Ward Neighbourhood Allocations

Receipts Funds Overpayments Items to which  Total Expenditure Expenditure Funds Remaining Available

in 2021to  carried returned for the budget in for the retained at committed funds after

2022 (£) over from the reported Neighbourhood allocated previously reported the end of funds to commitments
previously | year (£) Allocation have to each reported year (£) the be (£)

reported been applied itemised years (£) reported deducted
years (£) project (£) year (£) (£)

Chalkwell 799.00 0.00 0.00 - 799.00 -
Speedwatch

\ 8,982.18 13,715.08 0.00 0.00 22,697.26 799.00 21,898.26

Tree planting 2,191.20 661.00 0.00 - 1,530.20 -
between

Eastwood and

Oakwood parks

Rochford 1,394.93 0.00 1,354.87 - 40.06 -
Corner power

connection

Eastwood 1,846.07 4,500.80 0.00 1,354.87 4,992.00 1,570.26 3,421.74
Park
Kursaal 8,034.66 1,881.35 1,089.89 0.00 8,826.12 0.00 8,826.12




[EEN
W
(o2}

26,554.69

3,475.68

ety as  28,762.33
ness

351.86

22,094.26

34,610.54

15,681.20

1,902.10

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

Milton Park
improvements

Park Street
replacement
bollards

Milton railway
bridge artwork

Whitegate Play
Space

Priory Park
fountains
restoration

Resurfacing
Shoebury High
Street

East Beach
improvements

Southchurch
Speedwatch

St Laurence
whip hedge
planting

1

2

10

5,000.00

2,856.54

3,779.03

5,000.00

5,000.00

8,418.39

4,289.19

44435

174.90

3,024.00

1,517.31

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

246.60

0.00

0.00

0.00

246.60

7,827.52

7,827.52

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

120.00

48,402.35

30,258.70

44,443.53

2,253.96

1,729.40

1,339.23

3,779.03

15,000.00

21,847.66

17,172.48

17,172.48

8,418.39

4,289.19

12,707.58

44435

444.35

54.90

26,554.69

13,086.22

31,735.95

1,809.61



[ERN
w
\I

Laurence

St Lukes

Thorpe

Victoria

West
Shoebury

West-
borough

1,011.17

957.95

4,351.83

43,613.96
4,616.05

7,803.99

22,805.09

1,216.47

14,203.25

58,533.80
6,420.63

5,834.45

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00
718.91

2,902.50

Eastwood
Community
Centre
replacement
water heaters

1,975.00 0.00

Eastwood
Community
Centre LED
lighting project

4,032.00 0.00

Southchurch
Bowls Club
Irrigation
System

8,500.00 0.00

Balmoral 1,250.00 0.00
Community

Centre Garden

Westborough 1,151.36 0.00

Signposting

Belfairs
Memorial Bench

1,810.00 0.00

"

1,975.00

0.00

2,095.00
0.00

0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

- 0.00

- 4,032.00
21,721.26 4,086.90
2,174.42 0.00

- 8,500.00
18,555.08 8,500.00
- 1,250.00
102,147.76 1,250.00
10,317.77 0.00
- 1,151.36
10,735.94 1,151.36
- 1,810.00

17,634.36

2,174.42

10,055.08

100,897.76
10,317.77

9,584.58



8ET

Belfairs 2,879.54 3,846.06 0.00 0.00 6,725.60 1,810.00 4,915.60

(outside
LTC
boundary)
Mendip Wildlife 2,000.00 0.00 0.00 - 2,000.00 -
Garden
Blenheim Park 5,000.00 3,671.58 0.00 - 1,328.42 -
‘Makeover’
Blenheim Park 20,210.38 0.00 0.00 - 20,210.38
Gym and
Games
Equipment
Blenheim 4,553.20 27,210.38 0.00 0.00 31,763.58 23,538.80 8,224.78

Park
(outside
LTC
boundary)

The contribution this CIL expenditure makes to particular Southend 2050 Outcomes?! is shown in Figure 1 below, which reflects
column 6 (‘Total budget allocated to each itemised project (£)’) of Table 2 above. The main focus of investment has been on a range

of projects to ensure that ‘Our streets and public spaces are valued and support the mental and physical wellbeing of residents and
visitors.’

More information on Southend 2050 is provided in Appendix 1, including a list of all the 2050 Outcomes.

2! See www.southend.gov.uk/southend2050 for further details.

12


http://www.southend.gov.uk/southend2050

6€T

Figure 1: CIL Ward Neighbourhood Allocations by 2050 Outcomes

£1,151.36 £4,099.89

£110,025.02

m Our streets and public spaces are valued and support the mental and physical wellbeing of residents and visitors.
® A range of initiatives help increase the capacity for communities to come together to enhance their neighbourhood

and environment.
m People in all parts of the borough feel safe and secure at all times.

13



ort

4. Section 106 (S.106) planning obligation contributions for 2021 to 2022

The total amount of money under any planning obligations carried over from previously reported years, which had not been allocated
and was available to spend at the start of the reported year was £1,726,797.35 %2.

The total amount of money received through planning obligations, agreed in any year, retained at the end of the reported year (less
£1,304,351.44 allocated funds) was £1,681,626.93 .

41 S.106 financial contributions received

Income received during the reported year 2021to 2022 amounted to £141,825.49.

Figure 2 below indicates the contribution of S.106 income received towards achieving 2050 Outcomes?*. Most of the contributions
are to be targeted towards the outcome ‘We are well on our way to ensuring that everyone has a home that meets their needs’.
Other outcomes that will benefit from S.106 income are ‘Our children are school and life ready and our workforce is skilled and job
ready’, and ‘People have a wide choice of transport options’.

22 Correct at time of preparation of this report but may be subject to adjustments.
23 Correct at time of preparation of this report but may be subject to adjustments.
24 See www.southend.gov.uk/downloads/file/6148/southend-2050-ambition for further details.

14



http://www.southend.gov.uk/downloads/file/6148/southend-2050-ambition

Table 3: Details of S.106 income received to date in financial year 2021 to 2022 (as at 31 March 2022)

T

Site Address Application no. Date of S.106 Amount Date received Service area Purpose
agreement received (£)

1307 London Road 17/01426/DOV5 22/03/2018 85,088.00 05/05/2021 Strategic For the provision of affordable housing
Leigh-On-Sea (as amended) Housing within the city
Essex
SS9 2AD
University Of Essex = 04/01561/FUL 15/05/2006 10,000.00 02/08/2021 Traffic/ To be spent on improving pedestrian
Southend. Princess transport facilities and providing cycle spaces on

i H Luker Road and other areas within the
Caroline House vicinity of the development to enhance
1High Street sustainability
Southend On Sea
Essex
SS11JE
The Esplanade 17/02266/FULM 05/09/2018 31,043.69 07/02/2022 Education Towards the expansion of secondary
Western (as amended) places at Eastwood Academy required as a
Esplanade consequence of the Development to

provide 4.28 additional secondary school
Southend-On-Sea |
places
Essex
SS11EE
The Esplanade 17/02266/FULM 05/09/2018 15,694.25 07/02/2022 Traffic/ To provide a loading bay, re-provision of
Western (as amended) transport parking spaces, dropped kerbs and tactile
Esplanade paving
Southend-On-Sea
Essex
SS11EE
Total: 141,825.49

15



44"

Figure 2: Contribution of S.106 income received to achieving 2050 Outcomes

£25,694.25

£31,043.69
£85,088.00

m We are well on our way to ensuring that everyone has a home that meets their needs
m Our chilldren are school and life ready and our workforce is skilled and job ready
m People have a wide choice of transport options

16



evl

4.2 S.106 financial contributions spent

The total amount of money under any planning obligations which was spent in the reported year 2021to 2022 was £1,207,751.34.

Table 4: Details of S.106 expenditure in financial year 2021 to 2022

Site Address Application no. Date of Amount spent | Service area Purpose
S.106 (£)
agreement

Ajax Works, Station 03/00130/FUL 05/05/2004 623.80 Parks and Open Ongoing maintenance of the Public Open Space
Avenue SOS Spaces

Former Municipal 00/00273/0UT 20/12/2004 1,131.84 Parks and Open Ongoing maintenance of the Public Open Space
College Playing Fields and Spaces

Lifstan Way 07/01/2005

Southend-on-Sea

Essex

SS12XX

Vacant Land Adj Asda  03/01504/0OUT 20/12/2004 26,910.00 Parks and Open Ongoing maintenance of Shoebury Park extension
North Shoebury Road and Spaces

Shoeburyness 07/01/2005

Avenue Works 14/01968/AMDT 05/03/2015 8,904.69 Culture Public art provision within the vicinity of the site

Southchurch Avenue
Southend-On-Sea

Essex

Hinguar Primary 14/01672/BC4M 23/04/2015 796.00 Culture Public art provision within the vicinity of the site

School

Hinguar Street

Shoeburyness

Southend-On-Sea

Essex

SS3 9AN

Land West Of Oak 18/00437/NBC 01/07/2013 63,027.00 Traffic/ transport Used towards highway improvements at the Bell Junction

Road And North Of (as amended) on the A127 Junction at Hobleythick Lane and Rochford

Hall Road Road with Prince Avenue including new signage road

Rochford markings and kerb realignments which are required to

Essex satisfy and facilitate additional traffic flow resulting from the
Development.

Shoebury Garrison, 14/00153/DOV 15/01/2015 85,603.03 Civil Engineering Repair and maintenance of the sea wall and associated

Ness Road structures at Shoebury Garrison

17



124"

3 Acacia Drive,
Thorpe Bay,
Essex

SS13JU

32-36 Valkyrie Rd,
Westcliff-on-Sea,
Essex

SSO 8BU

British Heart
Foundation,

3-5 High Street,
Southend-on-Sea,
Essex SS11JE

St Hildas School, 13-15
Imperial Ave, Westcliff-

on-Sea,

Essex SSO 8NE
Heath House And
Carby House
Victoria Avenue
Southend-On-Sea
Essex

258 Leigh Road
Leigh-On-Sea
Essex

Total:

16/00876/DOV

17/00893/DOV5

15/01496/AMDT
and 15/01070/DOV

17/00530/AMDT

15/02019/S106BA

18/00484/FULM

28/07/2016

10/10/2017

23/12/2015

27/06/2017

25/02/2016

03/07/2018

165,458.00

146,767.00

24,232.00

8,530.00

520,610

155,157.98

1,207,751.34

18

Strategic Housing

Strategic Housing

Strategic Housing

Strategic Housing

Strategic Housing

Strategic Housing

Feasibility work for Phase 5 and 6 of the Housing Revenue
Account (HRA) Land Review and acquisition of 44 Harwich
Road for affordable housing.

Acquisition of 44 Harwich Road for affordable housing.

Spent on acquiring properties as part of the Next Steps
Accommodation Programme (NSAP) to provide permanent
and supported accommodation for rough sleepers.

Phase 5 or 6 design work for HRA Land Review Project
providing new affordable homes in the city.

Towards the Next Steps Accommodation Programme to
provide permanent and supported accommodation for
rough sleepers.

Towards the Next Steps Accommodation Programme to
provide permanent and supported accommodation for
rough sleepers.



14%

Figure 3 below indicates the expenditure of S.106 income spent by 2050 Outcomes.

Figure 3: S.106 expenditure by 2050 Outcomes

£85,603.03
£38,366.33

£63,027.00

£1,020,754.98

® We have invested in protecting and nurturing out coastline, which continues to be our much loved and best used
asset

m Our streets and public spaces are valued and support the mental and physical wellbeing of residents and visitors

m People have a wide choice of transport options

= We are well on our way to ensuring that everyone has a home that meets their needs

19



T

4.3 S.106 financial contributions not required and returned

It is confirmed that in financial year 2021to 2022 no S.106 financial contributions were returned as a consequence of not being
required.

4.4 S.106 financial contributions allocated but not yet spent

The funds set out in Table 5 have been allocated to projects but not yet spent. All of the S.106 contributions set out in Table 5 have
been allocated to either the Strategic Housing or Education service areas. They will contribute towards the 2050 Outcomes ‘We are
well on our way to ensuring that everyone has a home that meets their needs’ and ‘Our children are school and life ready and young
people are ready for further education, training or employment’. The Southend 2050 Outcomes are set out in full in Appendix 1.

Total amount of money under any planning obligations which was allocated but not spent at the end of the reported year was
£1,304,351.44.

Table 5: Details of S.106 financial contributions allocated to projects (but not yet spent) in financial year 2021 to 2022

Essex House, 16/00116/DOV 06/05/2016  20/09/2016 319,588.23 Strategic Housing Strategic land acquisition for the
Southchurch provision of affordable housing in the
Ave, Southend- city

on-Sea,

Essex SS12LB

3 Acacia Drive, ~ 16/00876/DOV 28/07/2016 = 10/02/2017 5,000 Strategic Housing Strategic land acquisition for the
Thorpe Bay, provision of affordable housing in the
Essex SS13JU city

32-36 Valkyrie 17/00893/DOV5 10/10/2017 21/11/2017 71,233.00 Strategic Housing Strategic land acquisition for the

Rd, Westcliff- provision of affordable housing in the
on-Sea, city

Essex SSO 8BU

845-849 16/01030/AMDT 14/07/2016 09/01/2018 142,528.00 Strategic Housing Strategic land acquisition for the
London Rd, provision of affordable housing in the
Westcliff-on- city

Sea, Essex

20



YA

St Hildas 17/00530/AMDT 27/06/2017 09/01/2018 2,026.00 Strategic Housing
School, 13-15

Imperial Ave,

Westcliff-on-

Sea,

Essex SSO S8NE

H Portsmouth 15/01545/FULM 08/03/2016 11/06/2018 279,951.00 Strategic Housing
And Son,

1043 London
Road, Leigh-on-
Sea,

Essex SS9 3JY

Frankie And 16/00177/DOV 22/06/2016 18/10/2018 130,232.79 Strategic Housing
Bennys, 18-20

Southchurch

Rd, Southend-

on-Sea,

Essex SS12ND

258 Leigh Road = 18/00484/FULM 03/07/2018 07/07/2020 36,121.54 Education
Leigh-On-Sea

Essex

British Heart 15/01496/AMDT 23/12/2015 26/10/2017 171,686.00 Strategic Housing

Foundation, and 15/01070/DOV
3-5 High Street,

Southend-on-

Sea,

Essex SS11JE
Car Park At 18/02151/FULM 02/07/2019 07/07/2020 145,984.88 Education

27 Victoria
Avenue

Southend-On-
Sea

Essex
SS2 6AL

Total: 1,304,351.44

21

Phase 5 or 6 design work for HRA Land
Review Project providing new
affordable homes in the city

Strategic land acquisition for the
provision of affordable housing in the
city

Strategic land acquisition for the
provision of affordable housing in the
city

To be used for the expansion project at
St Bernard's High School

Strategic land acquisition for the
provision of affordable housing in the
city.

To be used for secondary school
expansion projects



214"

5. Estimated future income from developer contributions

5.1 Value of CIL set out in all Demand Notices issued in the reported year

The total value of CIL set out in all Demand Notices issued in the reported year (i.e. between 1 April 2021 and 31 March 2022) was
£1,127,607.67.

5.2 Value of S.106 planning obligations entered into in the reported year?

Table 6 below sets out the details of the planning obligations that were entered into during the reported year (i.e. between 1 April
2021 and 31 March 2022). The total amount of money to be provided under planning obligations, which were entered into in the
reported year, cannot yet be confirmed as the developments concerned included an outline planning permission (dwelling numbers
to be agreed as part of a reserved matters planning application, at which point formulae will be applied to developer contributions).

Table 6 includes details of non-monetary contributions such as affordable housing, open space provision, travel plans and highway
works. No monetary value has been attributed to these contributions for the purpose of this report but the infrastructure benefits are
noted and are set out in each Section 106 agreement as part of the planning file for each development.

It should be noted that there is no guarantee that the developer contributions set out in this section of the report will be delivered as
they may relate to either development that has yet to commence or implemented schemes for which the due date for contributions
has not yet been reached.

25 These amounts include some contributions that are stated in Section 106 agreements as a maximum and are subject to agreement between the parties
depending on final cost of infrastructure provision required; and also exclude some contributions that are subject to viability assessment or final costing post-
commencement.

22



67T

Site Address

245 Sutton Road
Southend-On-Sea
Essex

SS2 5PE

Suffolk House

5 -9 Grosvenor
Road

Westcliff-On-Sea
Essex
SSO 8EP

The Old Vienna
Restaurant

162 Eastwood Road
Leigh-On-Sea
Essex

SS9 3AG

Part Of Fossetts
Farm, Playing
Fields, Jones
Memorial
Recreation Grd and
SUFC Training Grd

Eastern Avenue
Southend-On-Sea
Essex

Date of S.106
greement

Application no.

Table 6: Details of planning obligations entered into during the reported year 2021 to 2022
Obligation

RAMS Contribution

Restriction on flats to:
Not dispose of any of the flats individually without the

consent of the Council
Give the Council details of any disposal of the site
Limit the tenancies to 12 months (5.1.3); and

Only rely on the planning permission (and not the LDC)

in respect of the lawful use of the site

Education Contribution £23,359.59
RAMS Contribution £1,654.90

See Public Access for Planning for further details. Includes:

19/02255/FULM 09/04/2021
17/02224/CLE 06/07/2021
L]
[ ]
[ ]
L]
19/01110/FULM 31/01/2022 o
[ ]
17/00733/FULM
[ ]
[ ]
[ ]
[ ]
[ ]
[ ]
[ ]
[ ]
[ ]
[ ]
[ ]
[ ]
[ ]
[ ]
[ ]

30% affordable housing

Secondary education contribution

RAMS contribution

Transport and highway work and contributions
Continuity of provision (training pitches, associated
car parking and clubhouse)

Amenity space and management plan

Car club

Local employment and skills training

Travel plan and monitoring fee

CCTV provision

Scheduled monument contribution
Community Use Agreement

Major Event Day Plan

Public art provision

Community fund

N
w

£ contribution
requested
2,762.76

n/a

25,014.49

Details tbc (in
excess of £2m)


https://publicaccess.southend.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=externalDocuments&keyVal=OP5V4LPALRI00

0ST

Site Address

The Esplanade
Western Esplanade
Southend-On-Sea
Essex

SS11EE

636 Southchurch
Road

Southend-On-Sea
Essex
SS12PT

Development Land
At

Fossetts Way
Southend-On-Sea
Essex

Car Park At

27 Victoria Avenue
Southend-On-Sea
Essex

£ contribution
I ... requested

e Cecil Jones Memorial Ground improvement
contribution

e SUCET (Southend United Community & Educational
Trust) increased activities

20/02071/AMDT 07/10/2021 The provisions of the agreement dated 05/09/2018 (details n/a
under planning permission ref. 17/02266/FULM) to remain in
effect on implementation of this new planning permission

21/00054/AMDT 21/09/2021 The provisions of the agreement dated 18/09/2018 (details n/a
under planning permission ref. 17/01180/FULM) to remain in
effect on implementation of this new planning permission

21/00711/FULM 16/09/2021 . Residential use through the release of restrictions Details tbc (in
imposed in the S106 agreement dated 8 January excess of £47k)
2004.

o 221 dwellings for affordable housing (60% shared-
ownership and 40% affordable rent).

o £4,000.00 for junction improvement and traffic
calming Traffic Regulation Orders.

o £10,000.00 for improved connectivity the site to
footpath 178 from the eastern boundary.
£5,000.00 for monitoring of the travel plan.
Essex RAMS payment of £28,133.30 to mitigate the
potential disturbance to European designated sites.

o Land in control of the applicant and 12% of the costs
associated with the implementation of the Prittlewell
Camp Scheduled Ancient Monument Archaeological
Conservation Management Plan (July 2020) prepared

by Orion.
o Details for travel packs to be distributed to future
occupiers.
20/01464/AMDT 10/09/2021 The provisions of the agreement dated 02/07/2019 (details n/a

under planning permission ref. 18/02151/FULM) to remain in
effect on implementation of this new planning permission

24



Site Address

Application no.

Date of S.106

Obligation £ contribution

SS2 6AL

Queensway
Development

Queensway Slip
Road Sw

Southend-On-Sea
Essex

16T

53 - 57 Sutton Road
Southend-on-sea
Essex

SS2 5PB

20/01479/BC4M

21/01643/FULM

greement

03/09/2021

22/02/2022

requested

See Public Access for Planning for further details. Includes: Details tbc (in

25

17.7% units of affordable housing on site (312 units) —  ©xcess of £1m)

with 300 social/ affordable rented units and 12 units
as shared equity (with the ability for additional
affordable housing subject to the viability review
mechanisms).

Viability review mechanisms.

Contribution towards secondary education (which
was initially estimated as £718,119.05) to be calculated
on a formula basis and with the ability for additional
deferred contributions subject to the viability review
mechanisms.

Highway Works, Travel Strategy Group and (if
required) up to £90,000 towards additional on and
off-site mitigation and sustainable travel initiatives.
Traffic Regulation Orders.

Stopping up Orders.

Travel Plans, Travel Plan Fund and monitoring fees of
£5,000 per year for a 10-year period.

Travel Packs.

Car Club.

Open Space and Play Space provision and
maintenance.

Public Art.

Cultural Provision.

Essex RAMS payment per dwelling to mitigate the
potential disturbance to European designated sites.
Employment and training.

CCTV.

A minimum of 4 Affordable housing units comprising ~ 23,828.24
3 for affordable rent and 1 unit for shared ownership;

A financial contribution towards secondary education

provision of £21,664.14, specifically for refurbishment

to access places at Cecil Jones Academy;

A payment of £127.30 per dwelling for 17 dwellings,

(£2,164.10) under the terms of the Essex Coast

Recreational disturbance Avoidance Mitigation

Strategy.


https://publicaccess.southend.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=externalDocuments&keyVal=QGFU63PA0EY00

¢ST

Site Address Application no. Date of S.106  Obligation £ contribution
requested

agreement
Roslin Hotel 20/01199/FULM 07/03/2022 Highways contribution - £1,500.00 per year for 5 years from 7,500
Thorpe Esplanade first occupation for monitoring of the travel plan.

Thorpe Bay
Essex SS13BG
Total: Details tbc (in
excess of

£3,106,105.49)

All S.106 agreements completed can be viewed on the Council’s Public Access for Planning system available on our website.

26


https://www.southend.gov.uk/planning-building/view-comment-planning-applications-online-1

€qT1

6. Planning for infrastructure expenditure

6.1 What do developer contributions deliver?

Developer contributions, secured through CIL and S.106 planning obligations, provide strategic and site specific infrastructure to
support development and growth in the city. The projects that will be funded, wholly or partly by developer contributions fall within
the following infrastructure and affordable housing categories:

education

health and social wellbeing
coastal flood protection
social and community

leisure and recreation

public realm and environment
affordable housing

27



vST

6.2 Future spending priorities

The categories listed in paragraph 6.1 above reflect the infrastructure needs identified in the Council’s Infrastructure Delivery Plan
(February 2015) as identified for the Development Plan period. The current Southend Development Plan covers the period up until
2021 and a review is underway as part of the new Southend Local Plan. This review will comprise a detailed assessment of
infrastructure requirements to support growth.

More detail will be provided in subsequent infrastructure funding statements regarding what infrastructure will be delivered, including
when and where once the new Local Plan is adopted. The current CIL Main Fund (as at the end of the financial year 2021to 2022) is
therefore carried forward and it is proposed that its spending will be prioritised as part of the Development Plan review, which will
identify essential infrastructure required to deliver growth set out in the new Southend Local Plan. S.106 planning obligations will
continue to meet the statutory tests in regulation 122 of the CIL Regulations 2010 (as amended) and as policy tests in the National
Planning Policy Framework. They must be:

e necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms;
e directly related to the development; and
e fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind to the development.

In accordance with the CIL Regulations 2010 (as amended), the Council will continue to allocate 5% of total CIL receipts to
administrative expenses associated with CIL; and 15% of total CIL receipts (less surcharges) to localised neighbourhood projects.

Details relating to the governance arrangements (including spending and reporting arrangements) for CIL can be found in the CIL
Governance Framework (July 2015).

Decisions relating to S.106 planning obligation requirements are made by the Development Control Committee. Further details in
relation to the Council’s approach and priorities in respect of seeking planning obligations when considering planning applications
can be found in the Supplementary Planning Document ‘Planning Obligations: A Guide to Section 106 and Developer Contributions 2015’.

28


https://www.southend.gov.uk/downloads/file/3412/southend_infrastructure_delivery_plan_%20E2%2080%2093_february_2015
https://www.southend.gov.uk/downloads/file/3412/southend_infrastructure_delivery_plan_%20E2%2080%2093_february_2015
https://localplan.southend.gov.uk/
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2010/948/regulation/122/made
https://www.southend.gov.uk/downloads/file/3717/cil_governance_framework
https://www.southend.gov.uk/downloads/file/3717/cil_governance_framework
https://www.southend.gov.uk/downloads/file/3720/supplementary_planning_document_2_planning_obligations_2015

GGT

7. Conclusion

Southend-on-Sea City Council is committed to working with its partners to ensure that CIL and S.106 developer contributions are
used in a fair and transparent way to maximise the benefits and opportunities arising from development, such as new affordable
homes, community infrastructure, jobs and environmental improvements.

If you have any further queries or comments about this statement, please do not hesitate to contact us via email:
S106andClLadministration@southend.gov.uk

29


mailto:S106andCILadministration@southend.gov.uk

94T

Appendix 1: Southend 2050 Outcomes

Southend 2050 is the city’s ambition for the future. It was developed following extensive conversations with those that live, work,
visit, do business and study in Southend- on-Sea. These conversations asked people what they thought Southend-on-Sea should be
like in 2050 and what steps are needed now, and in the coming years, to help achieve this. The ambition is grounded in the values of
Southenders. It is bold and challenging and will need all elements of our community to work together to make it a reality.

The Southend 2050 programme is not about one single publication or statement. It is a mind-set — one that looks to translate the
desires of local people and stakeholders into action, something that looks to the long term, but also at the action that is needed now
and in the medium-term.

Southend 2050 is made up of the ambition, associated themes and the outcomes we want to achieve. Our Road Map?®, and all future
delivery plans, strategies and policies will reflect this. The Road Map builds on our existing achievements and outlines what the

Council wants to achieve in the coming five years. Our delivery plans will focus on achieving desired outcomes that reflect our
ambition.

All the investment set out in this Infrastructure Funding Statement will contribute to achieving the 2050 Outcomes. Please see next
page for a breakdown of the 2050 Themes and Outcomes.

26 See www.southend.gov.uk/downloads/file/6148/southend-2050-ambition for further details.

30



http://www.southend.gov.uk/downloads/file/6148/southend-2050-ambition

LST

Southend 2050 Themes & Outcomes

Pride and Joy
By 2050 Southenders are

There is a tangible sense of pride in the place and local people are
actively, and knowledgeably, talking up Southend.

fiercely proud of, and go 2. The variety and quality of our outstanding cultural and leisure offer has
out of their way, to increased for our residents and visitors and we have become the
champion what our city region’s first choice coastal tourism destination.
has to offer. 3. We have invested in protecting and nurturing our coastline, which
continues to be our much loved and best used asset.
4. Our streets and public spaces are valued and support the mental and
physical wellbeing of residents and visitors.
Safe and Well 1. People in all parts of the city feel safe and secure at all times.
By 2050 people in 2. Southenders are remaining well enough to enjoy fulfilling lives,
Southend-on-Sea feel throughout their lives.
safe in all aspects of their 3. We are well on our way to ensuring that everyone has a home that
lives and are well enough meets their needs.
to live fulfilling lives. 4. We are all effective at protecting and improving the quality of life for
the most vulnerable in our community.
5. We act as a Green city with outstanding examples of energy efficient
and carbon neutral buildings, streets, transport and recycling.
6. Residents feel safe and secure in their homes

31




Opportunity & Prosperity | The Local Plan is setting an exciting planning framework for the city.

By 2050 Southend- on- 1. We have a fast-evolving, re-imagined and thriving town centre, with an

Sea is a successful city inviting mix of shops, homes, culture and leisure opportunities.
OPPORTUNITY and we share our 2. Our children are school and life ready and young people are ready for
B prosperity amongst all of further education, training or employment.

our people. 3. Key regeneration schemes, such as Queensway, seafront

developments and the Airport Business Park are underway and
bringing prosperity and job opportunities to the city.

4. Southend is a place that is renowned for its creative industries, where
new businesses thrive and where established employers and others
invest for the long term.

5. Southend provides fulfilling careers for our residents, and enough job
roles to match the needs of the population.

6. Southend businesses feel supported to respond to economic shock;
adapt to evolving global markets; and, have the tools to preserve their
businesses by responding effectively and positively to change.

84T

Active & Involved 1. Even more Southenders agree that people from different backgrounds
By 2050 we have a are valued and get on well together.

thriving, active and 2. Residents feel the benefits of social connection, in building and
involved community that strengthening their local networks through common interests and

feel invested in our city. volunteering.

3. Residents are routinely involved in the design and delivery of services.

4. Arange of initiatives help increase the capacity for communities to
come together to enhance their neighbourhood and environment.

5. More people have physically active lifestyles, including through the use
of open spaces.

32




6ST

CONNECTED [ ]
& SMART

Connected & Smart

By 2050 people can
easily get in, out and
around our city and we
have a world class digital
infrastructure.

2.
3.

4.

Working with the public transport providers to enhance and encourage
the use of the existing provision moving towards a long-term aspiration
to open new routes, enabling a wider accessibility to public transport
options.

People have a wide choice of transport options.

We are leading the way in making public and private travel smart, clean
and green.

Southend is a leading digital city with world class infrastructure that
reflects equity of digital provision for the young, vulnerable and
disadvantaged.

33




097

Published November 2022
This document is published by Southend-on-Sea City Council.

A summary can be provided in alternative formats such as Braille,
audio-tape or in large print.
Translations of this document in alternative languages are also

available upon request.

34

Civic Centre, Victoria Avenue,
Southend-on-Sea, Essex SS2 6ER

01702 215000

www.southend.gov.uk


http://www/
http://www.southend.gov.uk/

Southend-on-Sea City Council

Agenda
Report of Executive Director Item No.
(Neighbourhoods & Environment) 8
to

Traffic Regulations Working Party
and Cabinet Committee
on

20th February 2023

Report prepared by:

Rachel Murphy
Traffic Regulations Co-Ordinator

Traffic Regulation Orders (Junction Protection)

Cabinet Member: Steven Wakefield — Cabinet Member for Highways, Transport &

Parking
Public Agenda Item

2.2

Purpose of Report

To inform the Traffic Regulations Working Party and the Cabinet Committee of
the commencement of consultation and implementation of the Traffic Regulation
Orders in respect of one junction — Blatches Chase / Whitehouse Road — which
is to be included in the Junction Protection Project schemes across the City.
However, this particular junction is across the boundary of two wards, Eastwood

Park ward and St Laurence ward and therefore requiring TRWP agreement.

Recommendation

Approve the advertising of draft traffic regulation orders for the proposed
junction protection measure set out in this report; and,

Where there are no objections make the appropriate traffic regulation order and
implement the restrictions on site through delegated authority to the Head of

Service.

Background
The Traffic Regulations Working Party and Cabinet Committee at its

September 2021 meeting considered a report setting out the response to

161



3.2

3.1

public consultation on proposals for the introduction of city-wide no waiting
and no loading at any time junction protection safety measures (Report No.4).
The Cabinet Committee agreed the extent of the junction protection measures
to be implemented at each location would be discussed and agreed with the
relevant Ward Members based on the default length of the restrictions is a
maximum length of 10 metres.

The Cabinet Committee agreed to delegate to the Executive Director
(Neighbourhoods and Environment) in consultation with the Cabinet Member
for Highways, Transport and Parking for the final confirmation of the traffic

order for the measures.

4. Reasons for Implementation of Junction Protection

4.1

Junction protection measures are proposed to reinforce the Highway Code
(rule 243) that vehicles should not park within 10m (32 feet) of a junction, for
avoiding danger to persons or other traffic using the road or any other road or
for preventing the likelihood of any such danger arising, and for facilitating the
passage on the road or any other road of any class of traffic including
pedestrians being seen and wishing to cross the road at the junction.

5. Corporate Implications

5.1
5.1.1

5.2
5.2.1

5.3
53.1

Contribution to the Southend 2050 Road Map.

Ensuring parking and traffic is managed while maintaining adequate access for
emergency vehicles and general traffic flow and improved sightlines at the
various junctions is consistent with the Council’s vision and corporate priorities
of safety, prosperity, and health.

Financial Implications

Costs for the advertising of the Orders and implementation of the measures will
be met from the capital funding which was agreed for the junction protection
project.

Legal Implications

The statutory consultative process for Traffic Regulation Orders will be
followed. Any objections received will be responded to by the service area.
Members will be included in the circulation of the notice and any comments

received will be considered in the consultation process.

162



5.4 People Implications

5.4.1 Works required to implement the agreed scheme will be undertaken by existing
staff resources.

5.5 Property Implications

5.5.1 None

5.6 Equalities and Diversity Implications

5.6.1 Any implications have been taken into account in designing the schemes.

5.8 Risk Assessment

5.8.1 The proposals are designed to improve highway safety and traffic flow and as
such, is likely to have a positive impact.

5.9 Value for Money

5.9.1 Works associated with the scheme will be undertaken by the Council’s term
contractors, selected through a competitive tendering process to ensure value
for money.

5.10 Community Safety Implications

5.10.1 The proposals, if implemented, is likely to lead to improved community safety.

5.11  Environmental Impact

5.11.1 There is no significant environmental impact as a result of introducing the Traffic

Regulation Order.

Background Papers
6.1 None

7. Appendices
7.1 Appendix 1 — The draft notice for the Traffic Regulation Order advertisement.

163



1.

Appendix 1: The draft notice for the Traffic Regulation Order advertisement.

CITY OF SOUTHEND-ON-SEA
THE SOUTHEND-ON-SEA CITY COUNCIL (WAITING, LOADING, STOPPING AND
PARKING PLACES) (CONSOLIDATION) ORDER 2023

PTO1059 - Blatches Chase / Whitehouse Road junction protection

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that Southend-on-Sea City Council proposes to make the
amendments to the above Order under the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984 as amended.

The general effect of the Orders will be:

To introduce junction protection; no waiting at any time (double yellow lines) AND no loading
or unloading at any time (double yellow kerb blips) for approximately 10 metres at each of the
locations in below:

Blatches Chase with White House Road

Copies of the draft Order, plan and Statement of Reasons may be viewed at the Civic Centre
(address below) during normal office hours, the documents can also be viewed online at:
https://www.southend.gov.uk/tro or  http://www.southendtraffweb.co.uk/consult/main.html
from the date of this notice.

Comments on the proposals together with the reasons for which they are made must be in
writing to the Business Change and Development Team at the address below or by email to
traffweb@southend.gov.uk by no later than (date to be agreed).

All written representations received concerning Traffic Regulation Orders are public
documents that may be inspected by any person on demand.

Dated: (Dates to be agreed)
Sharon Harrington
Head of Traffic Management & Highways Network

Civic Centre, Victoria Avenue,
Southend-on-Sea, Essex
SS2 6ER

164


https://www.southend.gov.uk/tro
http://www.southendtraffweb.co.uk/consult/main.html

Site Location Plan

Scale 1:2000

S9T

10.0m
\‘
~
10.0m ~
\/ \
~
o~
-~
ST
-~
So
/\\

Works Plan
Scale 1:250

DIMENSIONS:

Length of Proposed Double
Yellow Line as indicated on
plan.

100mm Wide yellow markings

3m center kerb blips or less to
avoid short length at end

KEY:

Area of Interest

Proposed
Double Yellow
Road Markings

No loading or unloading at any time.

NOTES:

1.Do not scale. This drawing is to be read
in conjunction with all other contract
drawings and documents.

2. All works to be in accordance with the
Department of Transports Specification
for Highway Works and Standard
Construction Drawings.

3.All traffic signs and lines are to comply
with The Traffic Signs Regulations and
General Directions. Markings are to be
thermoplastic screed with applied solid
glass beads unless otherwise

stated.

B

A For Approval 02/23 | PRE | RKN
Rev | Description Date  |Drawn| Chk'd

cent southend
onsea

marlboroughN

we understand, we deliver

Drawing Title:

Proposed No Waiting Restriction
Road Marking for Junction Protection

2487 - Blatches Chase Junction
White House Road

Scale: As Shown @A3 | Drawn By: PRE

Date: 02/2023 Chk'd By: RKN
Apr'd By: File Ref:
Marlborough Highways
Woolf House,
15 Regiment Business Park,

Eagle Way,

Chelmsford

CM3 3FY

Drawing Number Revision:

REF/1/2487 A



AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1
60

AutoCAD SHX Text_2
77

AutoCAD SHX Text_3
70

AutoCAD SHX Text_4
64

AutoCAD SHX Text_5
83

AutoCAD SHX Text_6
85

AutoCAD SHX Text_7
BLATCHES CHASE

AutoCAD SHX Text_8
WHITE HOUSE ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_9
WHITEWAYS

AutoCAD SHX Text_10
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_11
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_12
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_13
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_14
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_15
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_16
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_17
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_18
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_19
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_20
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_21
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_22
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_23
BLATCHES CHASE

AutoCAD SHX Text_24
60

AutoCAD SHX Text_25
SUNNYBANK CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_26
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_27
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_28
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_29
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_30
77

AutoCAD SHX Text_31
WHITEHOUSE ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_32
55

AutoCAD SHX Text_33
54

AutoCAD SHX Text_34
70

AutoCAD SHX Text_35
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_36
65

AutoCAD SHX Text_37
64

AutoCAD SHX Text_38
56

AutoCAD SHX Text_39
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_40
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_41
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_42
82

AutoCAD SHX Text_43
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_44
95

AutoCAD SHX Text_45
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_46
83

AutoCAD SHX Text_47
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_48
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_49
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_50
85

AutoCAD SHX Text_51
97

AutoCAD SHX Text_52
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_53
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_54
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_55
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_56
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_57
101

AutoCAD SHX Text_58
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_59
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_60
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_61
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_62
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_63
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_64
111

AutoCAD SHX Text_65
59

AutoCAD SHX Text_66
58

AutoCAD SHX Text_67
FULFORD DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_68
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_69
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_70
63

AutoCAD SHX Text_71
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_72
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_73
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_74
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_75
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_76
MEAKINS CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_77
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_78
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_79
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_80
WHITE HOUSE ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_81
BLATCHES CHASE

AutoCAD SHX Text_82
WHITE HOUSE ROAD


This page is intentionally left blank



Southend-on-Sea City Council Agenda

Item No.
Report of Executive Director

(Neighbourhoods and Environment)

To
Traffic Regulation Working Party & Cabinet Committee 9
On

Monday 20th February 2023
Report prepared by: Andrew Gibbons, Engineer - Civil

Engineering

West Leigh ‘School Street’ — Ronald Hill Grove

Cabinet Member: Councillor Steven Wakefield — Cabinet Member for Highways,
Transport & Parking
(Public Agenda Item)

1. Purpose of Report

1.1 To inform the Traffic Regulation Working Party and Cabinet Committee of the
commencement of the statutory consultation of the Traffic Regulation Order in
respect of Ronald Hill Grove (West Leigh School Street) and implementation of
the scheme should the Traffic Regulation Order be made.

1.2 The scheme is capital funded by Active Travel Tranche 2 which was resolved at
Cabinet on 13th January 2022 and Place Scrutiny on the 7th February 2022.

2. Recommendations
2.1  That the report be noted
3. Background

3.1 A ‘School Street’ is a scheme which restricts access of motorised traffic to the
roads outside schools, during school drop-off and pick-up times during term
time only with the aim of creating a safer and less congested street around the
school to encourage alternative and greener modes of transport, such as
cycling and walking, and improving air quality in and around our local schools.

3.2  The first tranche of funding was announced by the Secretary of State for
Transport in May 2020 as part of the work to combat the COVID-19 pandemic.
The initial grant funding supported local transport authorities with producing
cycling and walking facilities.

3.3  As part of this initiative the school streets pilot schemes were introduced to 4
schools in the City; Greenways, North Street, West Leigh and Bournes Green.

Report Title Report Number

167



4, Scheme Details

4.1  Following consultation with a number of schools across the City, an
experimental scheme was introduced which banned vehicles from using the
roads during the schools during drop off and pick up times.

4.2 Volunteers were trained by our Traffic Management contractor and barriers were
placed in the road to secure the closure which was supported by signage either end
of the street in accordance with TSRGD and other design standards.

4.3 The experimental scheme lasted 18 months; and this allowed the scheme to be
monitored and any comments made and considered during the first 6 months in
operation. Although the scheme was very well received, the deadline for transition
from experimental order to permanent order was missed and therefore we now plan
to advertise a permanent Traffic Regulation Order for West Leigh School Street.

4.4  The scheme proposals for West Leigh School Street can be found in Appendix 1.
5. Corporate Implications
5.1  Contribution to the Southend 2050 Road Map

Safe & Well - This scheme contributes to the Council’s visions, particularly in
terms of moving towards a safer City by improving safety for pedestrians and
school children whilst ensuring residents feel safe and secure in their
neighbourhoods. This is in line with the Policy 16, taken from the Councils Local
Transport Plan, which highlights the need to “carry out a programme of
measures designed to improve road safety and to promote road safety for all
road users.”

Active & Involved — By improving safety, the ambition of the scheme is to
encourage our residents to use active and sustainable transport options. This
will be achieved by improving the perceived safety for pedestrians, who would
be more inclined to use active travel options if it was their belief that these
options were safe enough for use by both adults and children. This is in line with
the Councils Green City Action Plan sub-priority 2.4, which highlights the need
to enable sustainable transport within the City and the actions that can be taken
to achieve this

5.2  Financial Implications

The costs for the advertising of the Orders and implementation of the measures
will be met from the capital funding which was agreed for the project.

5.3 Legal Implications

The statutory consultation process for Traffic Regulation Orders will be followed.
Any objections received will be responded to by the service area. Ward
members will be included in the circulation of the notice and any comments
received will be considered in the consultation process.

Report Title Report Number

168



54

5.5

5.6

People Implications

Works required to implement the agreed scheme will be undertaken by existing
staff resources.

Property Implications
None
Consultation

Consultation with all Council Members has taken place to agree the measures.
A report on the Active Travel Plan went to Cabinet on 13th January 2022 where
it was referred to Place Scrutiny on the 7th February 2022. It was resolved with
authority be delegated to the Executive Director (Neighbourhoods and
Environment), in consultation with the Cabinet Member for Highways, Transport
and Parking.

A residential and stakeholder consultation was carried out on Your Say
Southend which ran from 12th October to 11th November 2022 for the School
Streets at West Leigh and Bournes Green:

e Atotal of 1,200 people accessed the campaign of that 244 responded
online, the rest were informed, but chose not to comment on the survey.
The consultation included a survey with questions and a free text box for
further comments requesting feedback on certain elements of the whole
project. Not every respondent answered all the questions.

e The consultation was promoted across social media and was available on
the Councils interactive consultation portal https://yoursay.southend.gov.uk/
it was also made available in a hardcopy format if requested. Letters were
sent to those properties that fall under the proposed schemes. The results
were as follows:

o The overall consensus from those responding was that they understood
and supported what the Council is trying to achieve in considering
making permanent the School Street Scheme.

o Of those responding 81% agree that it has enabled more people to walk
and cycle to school in a safer environment, 5% were unsure if it had
made a difference.

o 77% agreed that the School Street scheme has created a healthier
environment, only 17% didn’t think this was the case.

o 71% agreed that School Street Scheme has encouraged them to leave
the car at home.

o 86% of the respondents would support the implementation of the School
Streets Scheme permanently.

The statutory consultation will be carried out in accordance with primary
legislation including advertisement of the proposals in the local press, on-street
at each location and letter drops to the adjacent properties. The information will
also be accessible on-line via the Councils website and can be inspected at the
Civic Centre reception during normal office hours.

Report Title

Report Number

169


https://yoursay.southend.gov.uk/

5.7  Equalities and Diversity Implications
Any implications have been taken into account in designing the schemes.

5.8 Risk Assessment
The proposals are designed to improve highway safety with the aim of creating a
safer and less congested street around the school to encourage alternative and
greener modes of transport such as cycling and walking, and improving air
quality in and around our local schools.

5.9 Value for Money
Works associated with the draft scheme in Appendix 1 will be undertaken by the
Council’'s term contractors, selected through a competitive tendering process to
ensure value for money.

5.10 Community Safety Implications
The proposals in Appendix 1, if implemented, are likely to lead to improved
community safety.

5.11 Environmental Impact
The proposals in Appendix 1, if implemented, are likely to lead to improved air
quality.

6. Background Papers
None

7. Appendices
Appendix 1 — Draft West Leigh School Street Proposals

Report Title Report Number

170



E—

Area of 'School Street' Closure i
(08:20-09:20 & 14:40-15:40)

b

SNuUBAY BasUInos

Key:
v
| 1

= 1] 1

)

=
C |
]

London Road (A13

Ronald Hill Grove

et

aemt il
=



AutoCAD SHX Text_83
N


This page is intentionally left blank



Southend-on-Sea City Council Agenda

Item No.
Report of Executive Director

(Neighbourhoods and Environment)

To
Traffic Regulation Working Party & Cabinet Committee 1 O
on

Monday 20th February 2023

Report prepared by: Shavna Carty, Engineer, Civil

Engineering

Prittle Brook Greenway TRO (Traffic Regulation Order)

Place Scrutiny Committee
Cabinet Member: Councillor Steven Wakefield — Cabinet Member for Highways,
Transport & Parking
Part 1 (Public Agenda Item)

1. Purpose of Report

1.1 To advise members of the proposals for conversion of existing pedestrian only
footway to shared use cycle track in various locations as described below to
improve the continuity of Prittle Brook Greenway cycle track.

1.2  For members of the Traffic Regulation Working Party to discuss the proposals
and approve the advertising of the draft traffic regulation orders.

2. Recommendations

2.1 The conversion of existing pedestrian only footway areas, to shared use cycle
track suitable for pedestrians and cyclist and,

2.2 Where there are no objections delegate authority to the Head of Service to
make the appropriate traffic regulation order to facilitate the implementation of
the restrictions on site

3. Background

3.1 The Traffic Regulations Working Party and Cabinet Committee at its January
2022 meeting considered the submission of a public consultation/survey results
to the Department For Transport, to continue the work to encourage active
transport and implementation of the Tranche 2 project for creation of permanent
projects; following the cabinets approval of the construction of temporary
interventions to create an environment that is safe for walking and cycling during
the Covid-19 pandemic and the period directly after (Tranche 1).

3.2  The Cabinet Committee agreed to endorse the bid awarded to Southend by the
DfT on 20 November 2020 for Tranche 2 funding from the Active Travel Fund.
The Prittle Brook Greenway is part of Tranche 2, and is a strategic active travel

Report Title Report Number

173



link well used by pedestrians and cyclists owing to its close proximity to schools,
residential and retail areas, parks, and the hospital.

Scheme Details

3.3 The proposal is to convert and or widen areas of the existing pedestrian only footway
to shared use cycle track as detailed on the plan in the Appendix of this report.
Certain short sections of the existing route will not allow for off road or quiet road use,
so in these sections, a shared a use cycle track provision is needed to allow safe and
efficient travel. To provide this facility safely, it is intended that the existing footway is
widen in certain places; there by allowing an increased width for shared space to
reduce the risk of conflicts between cyclists and pedestrians. It is proposed that once
widened, the footway status will be removed pursuant to S66(4) of the Highways Act
1980 and simultaneously replaced with a cycle track per S65(1) of the same Act.
The section locations are as follows:

(Must be read in conjunction with plan in the Appendix of this report):

¢ Prittlewell Chase - Both footways and central verge

e Gainsborough Drive - Both sides

e Highfield Crescent - Both sides of the carriageway and both arms

e Springfield Drive - Both sides

e Westbourne Grove - Both sides

e Southbourne Grove — Both sides

e Eastwood Boulevard - Both sides

e Manchester Drive - South side — From the junction with Eastwood Boulevard to a
point 175 metres west

e Darlinghurst Grove - Both sides

e Pavillion Drive - Both sides

e Manchester Drive - Both sides

e Blenheim Crescent - Both sides

¢ Elmsleigh Drive - Both sides

e Station Road / Manchester Drive - Both sides — From the junction with Station
Road westwards to the junction with Tankerville Drive

e Tankerville Drive - Both sides

¢ Flemming Avenue - Both sides

e Eastwood Drive - Both sides

4. Consultation

41 A 6-week survey was conducted on the YourSay Southend online platform, to
consult with those who work, live, and visit Southend on active travel options in
the Borough. The consultation conclude that the public are in favour of introducing
a more connected and active City. Participants expressed a strong desire for the
Council to introduce the right measures towards helping Southend-On-Sea to
facilitate more active travel options, with an emphasis on cycling and walking.

4.2 Consultation with Ward Members has taken place to agree the location and
extent of the shared use cycle track that are shown on the drawings in the
Appendices.

Report Title Report Number

174



6.1

6.1.1

6.1.2

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

6.6

6.7

Reasons for Recommendations

To supply active travel improvements that further encourage increased walking
and cycling activity in the borough.

Corporate Implications
Contribution to the Southend 2050 Road Map

Safe & Well - This scheme contributes to the Council’s visions, particularly in
terms of moving towards a safer borough by improving walking and cycling
infrastructure that supplies active travel improvements; that further encourage
increased walking and cycling activity in the borough. In line with the Policy 21,
taken from the councils Local Transport Plan (which highlights the need to “tackle
health and inequalities by increasing the number of adults and children who walk
and cycle for work, education and leisure”); and Policy 2 which, “encourage and
facilitate the use of sustainable modes and public transport for travel”.

Active & Involved — By improving safety, the ambition of the scheme is to
encourage our residents to use active and sustainable transport options. This will
be achieved by improving the perceived safety for pedestrians, who would be
more inclined to use active travel options if it were their belief that these options
were safe enough for use by both adults and children. This is in line with the
councils Green City Action Plan sub-priority 2.4, which highlights the need to
enable sustainable transport within the city and the actions that can be taken to
achieve this

Financial Implications

6.2.1 DfT funding from Active Travel Fund Tranche 2.

Legal Implications

6.3.1 The scheme would require a Traffic Order.

People Implications
No people implications have been identified at this time

Property Implications
6.5.1 None
Consultation

6.6.1 For results of the consultation refer Department for Transport (DfT)
Tranche 2 - Active Travel Fund Report 26/01/2022.

Equalities and Diversity Implications

6.7.1 No EIA needed at this time

Report Title

Report Number

175



6.9 Community Safety Implications
None
7. Appendices

7.1 General arrangement drawings Sheets 1, 2.

Report Title Report Number

176



J ‘ - T 1 T TTII I | ] l l ! ‘ SAFETY, HEALTH AND ENVIRONMENTAL

INFORMATION
‘ o FLEMMING AVENUE & é KINGSWOOD CHASE & | " s ey oo
as ®

| Construction NONE
- [ANKERVILLE DRIVE | MANCHESTER DRIVE :
Maintenance / NONE
Cleaning R
Use NONE
Decommissioning /| NONE
Demolishing -
KEY:
- Proposed cycle and pedestrian shared
KX
':’% use path
i
IS
(X TSI
o ISR LIRSS
198 R KRR XIIIIIRRRZILREKIKIKLRLKS
9 T R
e TSI EE R TARIIELEES RRRLRLRRRREKLIXH XA KA
Bie% RIS IR LR LRIIIRLLHRRK KK IRRRR IR R HXIERRRRRK =
IR R PO e ettt tet St tetatat et s s St
00‘0‘0‘:0:‘:‘:0:0:03 Q/ R S R IRRRRRRARRRRGIAIANAAKX
RS =
XXXELRRKA

MANCHESTER DRIVE

Ia &

KINGSWOOD CHASE & —
MANCHESTER DRIVE

e L= [

<
— [l 1]

>%'
e

T T ) -
MANCHESTER DRIVE(CONT.) BLENHEIM CRESCENT
& STATION ROAD — ‘ \
\ o ] |
T
7 % ——— \/@ E!'; .
: s — L/ M
- = :
O | ] ot \///
< //\/// :%:;//1/
7y //\/K D—')
/ : I
2l O
MANCHESTER DRIVE / B z :
|
| < P 323 - 187
] [] 1119
| LI BE A
ﬂ 8 ~| |8 = ] P It F 1 I 161|159
0 | = MANCHESTER DRIVE 187 l—179 4 ] 1o
g i " I T

IR T o | = 7~ R
% MANCHESTER DRIVE ‘ u !\j PAVILION DRIVE ‘ . DARLINGHURST GROVE

 o-
||

— \

38

[

]

)
53

XK
KRR
#

SREEIT

XX 1545."”“

Project Title
TER DRIVE

<

Tranche 2

: 8 b
L - XX [XX
| Rev.|Description. Drn |App|Date
973 3 m B Southend-on-Sea
City Council
) L
N W)
7 3 () > Neighbourhoods and Environment
[ L | i - )
i ': PO Box 5560, Civic Centre
L e o Victoria Avenue, Southend on Sea, SS2 6ZQ

o <
RRRRERRR
q '
i‘

e
R
KS

Traffic Regulation Order

/

PA\{ILl/ON DRIVE
j
W&

el

Drawing Title

L

I

Zﬁ

J —
R 1 T - ] Q m ) Prittle Brook Greenway
\\ K e i M\\ - c;)o General Arrangement Sh 1 of 2
<
|:| \— - m SC 04/08/2022 JB 09/08/2022
> L]
On

- :

This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey

Drawn Date Review Date
MANCHESTER DRIVE [ Ao aowaze | | 1508z022
I\J—— <> Scales @ A1 1:500 Revision

Ordnance Survey

Stationary Office © Crown copyright.
Unauthorised reproduction infrJ nges Crown
copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil

ngs. AL100019680 |—| I— |

RICKETFIELD GROVE

L]
9 5??

. N r—i‘ L r ARLINGHURST GROVE .h T T —
— 1 S I Drawing Number
T 1 = NPT -

I SBCC11142-100-SBC-GEN-PB-DE-OR-0001
DA\/IL INN DDIN/E ]



AutoCAD SHX Text_84
62

AutoCAD SHX Text_85
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_86
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_87
60

AutoCAD SHX Text_88
54

AutoCAD SHX Text_89
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_90
59

AutoCAD SHX Text_91
53

AutoCAD SHX Text_92
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_93
62

AutoCAD SHX Text_94
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_95
68

AutoCAD SHX Text_96
61a

AutoCAD SHX Text_97
61

AutoCAD SHX Text_98
51a

AutoCAD SHX Text_99
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_100
51

AutoCAD SHX Text_101
52

AutoCAD SHX Text_102
82

AutoCAD SHX Text_103
65

AutoCAD SHX Text_104
62

AutoCAD SHX Text_105
63

AutoCAD SHX Text_106
56

AutoCAD SHX Text_107
76

AutoCAD SHX Text_108
268

AutoCAD SHX Text_109
61

AutoCAD SHX Text_110
52

AutoCAD SHX Text_111
276

AutoCAD SHX Text_112
252

AutoCAD SHX Text_113
264

AutoCAD SHX Text_114
56

AutoCAD SHX Text_115
57

AutoCAD SHX Text_116
260

AutoCAD SHX Text_117
65

AutoCAD SHX Text_118
272

AutoCAD SHX Text_119
58

AutoCAD SHX Text_120
262

AutoCAD SHX Text_121
232

AutoCAD SHX Text_122
188a

AutoCAD SHX Text_123
211

AutoCAD SHX Text_124
188

AutoCAD SHX Text_125
252

AutoCAD SHX Text_126
260

AutoCAD SHX Text_127
240

AutoCAD SHX Text_128
174

AutoCAD SHX Text_129
230

AutoCAD SHX Text_130
58

AutoCAD SHX Text_131
175

AutoCAD SHX Text_132
73

AutoCAD SHX Text_133
211

AutoCAD SHX Text_134
83

AutoCAD SHX Text_135
205

AutoCAD SHX Text_136
90

AutoCAD SHX Text_137
197

AutoCAD SHX Text_138
75

AutoCAD SHX Text_139
91

AutoCAD SHX Text_140
187

AutoCAD SHX Text_141
82

AutoCAD SHX Text_142
80

AutoCAD SHX Text_143
86

AutoCAD SHX Text_144
179

AutoCAD SHX Text_145
165

AutoCAD SHX Text_146
159

AutoCAD SHX Text_147
187

AutoCAD SHX Text_148
93

AutoCAD SHX Text_149
85

AutoCAD SHX Text_150
161

AutoCAD SHX Text_151
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_152
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_153
83

AutoCAD SHX Text_154
110

AutoCAD SHX Text_155
93

AutoCAD SHX Text_156
73

AutoCAD SHX Text_157
87

AutoCAD SHX Text_158
96

AutoCAD SHX Text_159
12 to 16

AutoCAD SHX Text_160
71

AutoCAD SHX Text_161
71

AutoCAD SHX Text_162
1 to 16

AutoCAD SHX Text_163
61

AutoCAD SHX Text_164
51

AutoCAD SHX Text_165
63

AutoCAD SHX Text_166
53

AutoCAD SHX Text_167
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_168
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_169
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_170
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_171
73

AutoCAD SHX Text_172
69

AutoCAD SHX Text_173
75

AutoCAD SHX Text_174
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_175
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_176
61

AutoCAD SHX Text_177
70

AutoCAD SHX Text_178
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_179
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_180
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_181
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_182
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_183
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_184
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_185
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_186
N


This page is intentionally left blank



MANCHESTER [

EASTWOOD BO MANCHESTER DRIVE

SAFETY, HEALTH AND ENVIRONMENTAL
INFORMATION

In addition to the hazards/risks normally associated with the types of work
detailed on this drawing, note the following significant residual risks

MADN

oo
KRELLRRTS N I

X VAV AV vavevave Ve % % %% %%

Au.:.:.:.:.:.:.:z:.:z:z*?z*.*.*.*.*.*.u*&.v.*.*

Z 40'0’
AT
A TTIEKLERL
Bt
A STSTSIEL KL
T 02020 % % %t e e 0
KX

TTITEE :'0‘00‘
STSTSTSIT R X
R RIIILERAR A
~~~~~ 5 00‘Q’0’Q’Q’Q’Q’Q’0‘0‘0‘Q’Q‘:’:’:’:‘:’:‘:‘:‘t’t‘?“""‘.‘ -
BRI R KA AA

Construction NONE

Maintenance / NONE
Cleaning -

Use NONE

Decommissioning /| NONE
Demolishing -

X

VAVAY

VaVa¥

6.

N |

WESTBOURNE GROVE

-
> a
O =
S0 D: Es
KK XA
S R
3RS KRR
3585 [
2525252553 ALY
,0,0,0‘0.0.9“ 262025 %0%
BRI Ne%e% %% %%
S9S9.92020°0" Il I I [ 5902030 %0°0%¢
REKEKLK, [5RRRKS
BOSIKEEL etele et
BRI Releete%0%%
KK, Relelelelede?
R RRKLLLL]

;HE)IH

INTDS3AHY AT |I4AHOIH

IN3JOS3d0O CI7(/EII

LTI
~ WESTBOURNE GROVE T

y
proceedings. AL100019680

. r\D\\IE

! KX

() &
v ogesey)
2R 00
"o%e%! %020
POCA XXX
KX KRR
odedd! 0%
XA CX XA
KT KX
'0'0'0'; R
5N
K \
%! (XXX
R toete!
A,

ol
‘\A &
%

!

g

KEY:

Proposed cycle and pedestrian shared
use path

- XX |XX
Rev.|Description. Drn |App|Date
Southend-on-Sea

City Council
Neighbourhoods and Environment

PO Box 5560, Civic Centre
Victoria Avenue, Southend on Sea, SS2 6ZQ

Project Title
Tranche 2

Traffic Regulation Order

Drawing Title
Prittle Brook Greenway

General Arrangement Sh 2 of 2

Drawn Date Review Date
SC 04/08/2022 JB 09/08/2022
Checked |Date Approved |Date
AG 15/08/2022 JM 15/08/22
Scales @ A1 Revision

1:500

Drawing Status

Preliminary

Drawing Number

SBCC11142-100-SBC-GEN-PB-DE-OR-0002



AutoCAD SHX Text_187
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_188
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_189
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_190
569

AutoCAD SHX Text_191
1 to 25

AutoCAD SHX Text_192
191

AutoCAD SHX Text_193
182

AutoCAD SHX Text_194
172

AutoCAD SHX Text_195
164

AutoCAD SHX Text_196
168

AutoCAD SHX Text_197
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_198
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_199
565

AutoCAD SHX Text_200
174

AutoCAD SHX Text_201
170

AutoCAD SHX Text_202
166

AutoCAD SHX Text_203
545

AutoCAD SHX Text_204
213

AutoCAD SHX Text_205
517

AutoCAD SHX Text_206
535

AutoCAD SHX Text_207
529

AutoCAD SHX Text_208
217

AutoCAD SHX Text_209
541

AutoCAD SHX Text_210
212

AutoCAD SHX Text_211
221

AutoCAD SHX Text_212
547

AutoCAD SHX Text_213
543

AutoCAD SHX Text_214
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_215
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_216
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_217
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_218
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_219
257

AutoCAD SHX Text_220
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_221
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_222
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_223
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_224
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_225
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_226
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_227
265

AutoCAD SHX Text_228
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_229
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_230
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_231
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_232
1 to 4

AutoCAD SHX Text_233
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_234
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_235
255

AutoCAD SHX Text_236
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_237
193 to 199

AutoCAD SHX Text_238
201 to 207

AutoCAD SHX Text_239
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_240
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_241
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_242
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_243
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_244
177

AutoCAD SHX Text_245
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_246
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_247
183

AutoCAD SHX Text_248
225

AutoCAD SHX Text_249
209

AutoCAD SHX Text_250
211

AutoCAD SHX Text_251
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_252
1 To 8

AutoCAD SHX Text_253
92

AutoCAD SHX Text_254
107

AutoCAD SHX Text_255
93

AutoCAD SHX Text_256
95

AutoCAD SHX Text_257
96

AutoCAD SHX Text_258
99

AutoCAD SHX Text_259
138

AutoCAD SHX Text_260
105

AutoCAD SHX Text_261
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_262
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_263
95

AutoCAD SHX Text_264
81

AutoCAD SHX Text_265
119

AutoCAD SHX Text_266
85

AutoCAD SHX Text_267
105

AutoCAD SHX Text_268
134

AutoCAD SHX Text_269
101

AutoCAD SHX Text_270
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_271
117

AutoCAD SHX Text_272
77

AutoCAD SHX Text_273
117a

AutoCAD SHX Text_274
89

AutoCAD SHX Text_275
97

AutoCAD SHX Text_276
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_277
91

AutoCAD SHX Text_278
103

AutoCAD SHX Text_279
99

AutoCAD SHX Text_280
97

AutoCAD SHX Text_281
83

AutoCAD SHX Text_282
79

AutoCAD SHX Text_283
101

AutoCAD SHX Text_284
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_285
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_286
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_287
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_288
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_289
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_290
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_291
N


This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	5 Minutes of the meeting held on Monday, 30th January, 2023
	6 Air Quality Action Plan 2022-2027
	Appendix 1 - Air Quality Action Plan
	Appendix 2 Air Quality Management Area 2
	Appendix 3 Air Quality Management Area 1
	Appendix 4 AQ Consultation reponses
	Air Quality Consultation Submissions with Council Responses


	7 Proposed Community Infrastructure Levy
	Southend-on-Sea City Council
	Report of Executive Director of Neighbourhoods & Environment and Interim Executive Director for Growth & Housing
	Cabinet

	Place Scrutiny Committee
	Cabinet Members: Councillor Steven Wakefield and Councillor Carole Mulroney
	A Part 1 (Public Agenda Item) 

	Appendix A (CIL Cycling Improvements)
	Appendices A1 to A3
	Appendix B - Infrastructure Funding Statement 2021-2022
	Infrastructure Funding Statement
	1. Introduction
	2. Executive Summary
	Summary Table 1: Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) Funds 2021 to 2022
	Summary Table 2: Section 106 (S.106) Planning Obligation Funds 2021 to 20224F
	3. Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) contributions for 2021 to 2022
	3.1 CIL Funding Summary
	Table 1: Total CIL Summary
	3.2 CIL Main fund
	3.3 CIL Neighbourhood Allocation
	3.3.1 CIL Local Council Allocation
	3.3.2 CIL Ward Neighbourhood Allocation

	Table 2: Details of CIL Ward Neighbourhood Allocations
	Figure 1: CIL Ward Neighbourhood Allocations by 2050 Outcomes
	4. Section 106 (S.106) planning obligation contributions for 2021 to 2022
	4.1 S.106 financial contributions received
	Table 3: Details of S.106 income received to date in financial year 2021 to 2022 (as at 31 March 2022)
	Figure 2: Contribution of S.106 income received to achieving 2050 Outcomes
	4.2 S.106 financial contributions spent
	Table 4: Details of S.106 expenditure in financial year 2021 to 2022
	Figure 3: S.106 expenditure by 2050 Outcomes
	4.3 S.106 financial contributions not required and returned
	4.4 S.106 financial contributions allocated but not yet spent
	Table 5: Details of S.106 financial contributions allocated to projects (but not yet spent) in financial year 2021 to 2022
	5. Estimated future income from developer contributions
	5.1 Value of CIL set out in all Demand Notices issued in the reported year
	5.2 Value of S.106 planning obligations entered into in the reported year24F
	Table 6: Details of planning obligations entered into during the reported year 2021 to 2022
	6. Planning for infrastructure expenditure
	6.1 What do developer contributions deliver?
	6.2 Future spending priorities
	7. Conclusion
	Appendix 1: Southend 2050 Outcomes
	Southend 2050 Themes & Outcomes



	8 Traffic Regulation Orders - Junction Protection
	Appendix 1 - Blatches Chase Junction White House Road
	Sheets and Views
	Layout1



	9 School Streets (West Leigh School - Ronald Hill Grove)
	Appendix 1 - West Leigh School Street
	Sheets and Views
	Layout1



	10 Prittle Brook Greenway TRO (Traffic Regulation Order)
	Appendix - Prittle Brook TRO Dwg - Sheet 1 of 2
	Sheets and Views
	Sheet 1 of 2


	Appendix - Prittle Brook TRO Dwg - Sheet 2 of 2
	Sheets and Views
	Sheet 2 of 2




